
 

 

Notice of Meeting 
 

THE EXECUTIVE 
 

Tuesday, 17 February 2009 - 5:00 pm 
Council Chamber, Civic Centre, Dagenham 

 
Members: Councillor C J Fairbrass MBE (Chair); Councillor L A Smith (Deputy Chair); 
Councillor J L Alexander, Councillor G J Bramley, Councillor S Carroll, Councillor H J 
Collins, Councillor R C Little, Councillor M A McCarthy, Councillor M E McKenzie and 
Councillor Mrs V Rush 
 
 
Date of publication: 9 February 2009       R. A. Whiteman 
           Chief Executive 
 

Contact Officer: Sola Odusina 
Tel. 020 8227 3103 
Fax: 020 8227 2162 

Minicom: 020 8227 2685 
E-mail: sola.odusina@lbbd.gov.uk 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

1. Apologies for Absence   
 
2. Declaration of Members' Interests   
 
 In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, Members are asked to declare 

any personal or prejudicial interest they may have in any matter which is to be 
considered at this meeting.  Members are reminded that the provisions of 
paragraphs 12.3 and 12.4 of Article 1, Part B in relation to Council Tax 
arrears and Council house rent arrears respectively apply to the agenda 
items 7 to 10.  
 

3. Minutes - To confirm as correct the minutes of the meeting held on 20 
January 2009 (Pages 1 - 6)  

 
Business Items  

 
Public Items 4 and 5 are business items.  The Chair will move that these be agreed 
without discussion, unless any Member asks to raise a specific point.  

 
4. Council Debt Write-Offs (Pages 7 - 15)  
 
5. Treasury Management Annual Strategy and Prudential Indicators (Pages 

17 - 52)  
 



 

 

Discussion Items  
 

6. Budget Monitoring 2008/09 (Pages 53 - 85)  
 
7. Fees and Charges 2009/10 (Pages 87 - 123)  
 
8. Housing Revenue Account Estimates and Review of Rents and Other 

Charges 2009/10   
 
 This report has been circulated separately as Supplementary Agenda 1.  

 
9. The Capital Programme 2009/10 - 2012/13   
 
 This report has been circulated separately as Supplementary Agenda 1.  

 
10. Council Tax 2009/10   
 
 This report has been circulated separately as Supplementary Agenda 1.  

 
11. Dagenham and Redbridge Football Club (Pages 125 - 127)  
 
12. Any other public items which the Chair decides are urgent   
 
13. To consider whether it would be appropriate to pass a resolution to 

exclude the public and press from the remainder of the meeting due to 
the nature of the business to be transacted.   

 
Private Business 

 
The public and press have a legal right to attend Council meetings such as the 
Executive, except where business is confidential or certain other sensitive 
information is to be discussed.  The list below shows why items are in the 
private part of the agenda, with reference to the relevant legislation (paragraph 
3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 as amended).   

 
14. Replacement of Customer Relationship Management (CRM) System 

(Pages 129 - 157)  
 
 Concerns a contractual matter (paragraph 3)  

 
15. Any other confidential or exempt items which the Chair decides are 

urgent   
 



 
 

THE EXECUTIVE 
 

Tuesday, 20 January 2009 
(5:00  - 5:43 pm)  

  
Present: Councillor C J Fairbrass MBE (Chair), Councillor L A Smith (Deputy 
Chair), Councillor J L Alexander, Councillor G J Bramley, Councillor S Carroll, 
Councillor H J Collins, Councillor R C Little, Councillor M A McCarthy and 
Councillor Mrs V Rush 
 
Apologies: Councillor M E McKenzie 
 

109. Declaration of Members' Interests 
 
 Councillor Liam Smith declared a personal interest as a member of the Governing 

Body of Dagenham Park School in respect of the Trewern Centre (agenda item 
10) in view of the proposed allocation of unused funding from an earlier project at 
Dagenham Park School to contribute to the proposed works at the Trewern 
Centre. 
 

110. Minutes - 16 December 2008 
 
 Agreed. 

 
111. Annual Performance Assessment of Social Care Services for Adults, 2007-08 
 
 Received and noted a report from the Corporate Director of Adult and Community 

Services which outlines the results of the annual performance assessment of the 
Council’s Adult Social Care Services by the Commission for Social Care 
Inspection. 
 
We are pleased with the Inspection results and would like to commend and 
congratulate all staff in Adult Services for their hard work.  
 

112. Barking Park: Contract for Restoration and Improvement Works 
 
 Received a report from the Corporate Director of Adult and Community Services 

concerning procurement proposals for the restoration and improvement of Barking 
Park. 
 
Agreed, in order to assist the Council to achieve its Community Priority of “Making 
Barking and Dagenham Cleaner, Greener and Safer”, to: 
 
(i) approve the procurement strategy for a works contract for the restoration 

and improvement of Barking Park; and   
 
(ii) delegate authority to the Corporate Director of Adult and Community 

Services in consultation with the Lead Member for Culture and on the 
advice of the Legal Partners, to award the contract following the agreed 
procurement process.    

 

AGENDA ITEM 3

Page 1



113. Dagenham Washlands: External Funding And Long Term Management 
Arrangements 

 
 Received a report from the Corporate Director of Adult and Community Services 

concerning external funding for the enhancement, long term management and 
maintenance of Dagenham Washlands.  
 
Agreed, in order to assist the Council to achieve its Community Priority of “Making 
Barking and Dagenham Cleaner, Greener and Safer”, to: 
 
(i) enter into a 99 year lease with the Land Restoration Trust in respect of the 

Council’s land holdings known as The Leys and the southern part of Beam 
Valley  Country Park Local Nature Reserve in order to facilitate the 
management by the Land Restoration Trust of the entire 53 hectare site on 
behalf of the current land owners as part of the Thames Gateway Parklands 
enhancement scheme and 

 
(ii) authorise the Corporate Director of Adult and Community Services, in 

consultation with the Legal Partners, to agree the detailed terms of the 
lease arrangements on the terms outlined in the report. 

 
114. Procurement of Design and Consultancy Services for the Restoration and 

Improvement of Abbey Green 
 
 Received a report from the Corporate Director of Adult and Community Services 

concerning proposals for the procurement of Design and Consultancy Services for 
the restoration and improvement of Abbey Green. 
 
Agreed, in order to assist the Council to achieve its Community Priority of “Making 
Barking and Dagenham Cleaner, Greener and Safer”, to: 
 

(i) approve the procurement strategy outlined in this report (design contest) for 
the procurement of design and consultancy services for the restoration and 
improvement of Abbey Green; and  

 
(ii) delegate authority to the Corporate Director of Adult and Community 

Services in consultation with the Lead Member for Culture and on the 
advice of the Legal Partners, to award the contract following the agreed 
procurement process. 

 
115. Scrattons Eco Park Extension: Land Restoration and Land Transfer 
 
 Received a report from the Corporate Director of Adult and Community Services 

concerning the tendering of the Scrattons Farm Eco Park remediation project. 
 
Agreed, in order to assist the Council to achieve its Community Priority of “Making 
Barking and Dagenham Cleaner, Greener and Safer”, to: 
 
(i) officers inviting, appraising and evaluating tenders for the remediation of the 

contaminated land at neutral cost to the Council as described in the report 
subject to planning consent and resident support; and to note that if the 
tender process does not produce a cost neutral situation the scheme will not 
proceed. 

Page 2



 
(ii) The acquisition of a long term lease of 2550 sq. metres of land, to the south 

of Levine Gardens, from its current owners Network Rail, at a nominal rent 
(peppercorn), as shown on the plan attached to the report. This will be 
carried out in accordance with the Council’s land acquisitions and disposal 
rules. The subsequent contract will be for a peppercorn consideration; and 

 
(iii) delegate authority to the Corporate Director of Adult and Community 

Services in consultation with the Lead Member for Culture and on the 
advice of the Legal Partners, to award the contract following the agreed 
procurement process. 

 
116. Provision of Wheelie Bins for Household Waste - Pilot Outcomes and 

Borough Roll-Out 
 
 Received a report from the Corporate Director of Customer Services outlining the 

results of the wheelie bin pilots that have taken place in five areas across the 
borough and proposals to roll-out the system across the Borough. 
 
Agreed, in order to assist the Council to achieve its Community Priorities of 
“Making Barking and Dagenham Cleaner, Greener and Safer” and “Raising 
General Pride in the Borough” 
 

(i) to the adoption of the system throughout the Borough and  
 

(ii) that implementation of the borough-wide scheme is subject to capital and 
revenue resources being approved as part of the Councils 2009/10 budget 
process. 

 
117. Trewern Centre: Additional Accommodation and Disability Discrimination 

Act Compliance 
 
 Received a report from the Corporate Director of Children’s Services concerning 

proposals to improve the facilities at the Trewern Centre to comply with the 
provisions of the Disability Discrimination Act (DDA) 2005. 
 
Agreed, in order to assist the Council to achieve its Community Priorities of “ 
Better Education and Learning For All” and “Promoting Equal Opportunities and 
Celebrating Diversity”, to: 
 
(i) The proposals for the creation of additional accommodation and other 

works to meet DDA requirements at the Trewern Centre as detailed in the 
report; 

 
(ii) that the following sums be vired to support the proposals in the report, 

providing a total capital sum of £443,000: 
a. underspend of Big Lottery funding on Dagenham Park Sports Hall 

and the Trewern Climbing Wall Schemes of £300,000 
b. £143,000 from the DDA budget 

 
(iii) the procurement proposal as set out in the report, using a specialist 

provider to support the design process; 
 

Page 3



(iv) authorise the Corporate Director of Children’s Services to conduct a design 
contest to  procure the works to the Trewern Centre and that such 
procurement be made in consultation with and on the advice of Corporate 
Procurement and the Legal Partners and in compliance with EU and 
national procurement regulations and in accordance with the Council’s 
Standing Orders and Contract Rules and 

 
(v) delegate authority to the Corporate Director of Children’s Services, on the 

advice of Legal Partners, to award the contract to the successful candidate 
after the tender process is complete. 

 
118. Demographic Change Influences on School Places Demand for Autumn 

Term 2008 
 
 Received a report from the Corporate Director of Children’s Services detailing 

steps taken over the Summer and Autumn of 2008 in response to the demand for 
School places in the primary phase and regularising financial arrangements to 
ensure that projects are contained within existing resources. 
 
Agreed in order to assist the Council to achieve its Community Priority of “Better 
Education and Learning For All”, to: 
 
i) The actions taken by the Corporate Director of Children’s Services in 

making available additional school places as set out in the report; and 
 
ii) The capital budget provisions as detailed in the report and that the 

appropriate amendment is made to the Capital Programme for allocating 
grant income from DCSF against the following capital schemes: 

 
 Gascoigne Primary £229,000    
 Ripple Infant & Junior £170,000 
 Beam Primary £197,000 
 Cambell Infants £50,000 
 Marsh Green Primary £85,000 
 Five Elms Primary £65,000 
 Thames View Infants  £75,000 
 Richard Alibon Primary £5,000 
 Rush Green Infant £65,000 
   Total  £941,000 
 

119. Budget Monitoring 2008/09 - April to November 2008 
 
 Received a report from the Corporate Director of Resources providing an update 

on the Council’s revenue and capital position for the period April to November of 
the 2008/09 financial year. 
 
The position for revenue expenditure indicates that current budget pressures exist 
across four departments amounting to £2.9million which are offset by projected 
underspends in one other department. Overall this reflects a £700k reduction from 
the position reported in October.   
 
Agreed, in order to assist the Council to achieve all of its Community Priorities and 
as a matter of good financial practice, to: 

Page 4



 
(i) note the current position of the Council’s revenue and capital budget as at 30 

November 2008; 
 

(ii) note the position and projected out-turn for the Housing Revenue account; and 
 

(iii) note that where pressures and targets exist, Directors are required to identify 
and implement the necessary action plans to alleviate these budget pressures 
to ensure that the necessary balanced budget for the Council is achieved by 
year end. 

 
120. Revised Budget 2008/09 and Base Budget 2009/10 
 
 Received a report from the Corporate Director of Resources setting out the 

Council’s revised revenue budget for 2008/09 and a base budget position for 
2009/10. 
 
Agreed in order to assist the Council to achieve all of its Community Priorities and 
as a matter of good financial practice to 
 

(i) note the current revised budget for 2008/09 ; 
 

(ii) the base budget for 2009/10 ; and 
 

(iii) note the position on the current projected outturn for 2008/09. 
 

121. Private Business 
 
 Agreed to exclude the public and press for the remainder of the meeting by 

reason of the nature of the business to be discussed which included information 
exempt from publication by virtue of paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the 
Local Government Act 1972 (as amended). 
 

122. Contract for the Provision of Fleet Vehicles, Plant and Associated Services 
 
 Received a report from the Corporate Director of Customer Services concerning 

proposals for tendering the provision of Fleet Vehicles, Plant Hire and Associated 
Services. 
 
Agreed, in order to assist the Council to achieve all of its Community Priorities, 
 

(i) That based on the outcome of the fleet procurement process and market 
testing, the maintenance of the council vehicle fleet and associated plant is 
outsourced to a third party organisation, using the council facilities at 
Frizlands Depot and transferring 10 affected staff to the service provider 
under TUPE arrangements.  

 
(ii) That the Council engage in contract discussion with the three short-listed 

third party organisations to establish the optimum provider based on the 
evaluation criteria. 

 
(iii) That the final decision regarding appointment of the preferred supplier is 

delegated to the Corporate Director of Customer Service and the Corporate 

Page 5



Director of Resources.  
 

123. Review of Council Car Allowance Scheme 
 
 Received a report from the Corporate Director of Resources concerning proposals 

to revise the Essential Car User Allowance scheme that applies to Council staff 
 
Agreed in order to assist the Council to achieve all of its Community Priorities, to: 
 
(i) The new criteria for the entitlement of Essential Car User Allowance and the 

rates as outlined in the report; 
 
(ii) The new rate for Casual Car Users as outlined in section 5 of the report; 
 
(iii) The additions to the Council Travel Allowance scheme as outlined in 

section 6 of the report; and 
 
(iv) that the new arrangements be introduced from 1 May 2009 with the relevant 

protections as outlined in section 7 of the report. 
 

Page 6



EXECUTIVE 
 

17 FEBRUARY 2009 
 

REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR OF CUSTOMER SERVICES 
 
Title: Debt Write Offs October - December 2008 (3rd 
Quarter) 
 

For Information 
 

Summary:  
 
Barking and Dagenham Direct is made up of a number of service areas.  One of these 
(Income & Collection) is linked to the billing, collection and recovery of the vast majority of 
debts that fall due to be paid to the Council for chargeable services and statutory levies 
such as Council Tax and Business Rates. 
 
The value and type of debts written off as uncollectible within these two sections, must be 
reported to the Executive on a quarterly basis in line with the Council’s financial 
regulations.  This is the third such report for the financial year 2008/9 and provides a 
summary of debts written off for Q3 i.e. October to December 2008 shown in table 3 of 
appendix A.  In total £1.049m of debts have been written off for the 2008/09 year up to 31 
December. 
 
Wards Affected: None. 
 
Recommendation(s) 
 
The Executive is asked to note the debt write-offs for the 3rd quarter of 2008/09 as detailed 
in the report and that a number of these debts will be publicised in accordance with the 
policy agreed by Minute 69 (6 November 2007). 
 
Reason(s) 
 
As a matter of good financial practice and to accord with the Council’s Financial Rules. 
 
Implications: 
 
Financial:  
 
All debts written off, will have been provided for within the Council’s Bad Debt Provision 
and as such there should be no specific financial implications.  However, there is the 
possibility that unforeseen and unplanned additional write offs occur, which lead to the 
value of debts written off in any year, exceeding the agreed bad debt provision. 
 
Where this is likely to happen, this quarterly report will act as an early warning system and 
will enable additional control measure to be agreed and taken, to either bring the situation 
back under control, or to make appropriate adjustments to the bad debt provision. 
 
Legal: 
 
As this report is likely to be a public report, there should not be any legal implication of 
publicising the details of individual debts.  In addition, any lists publicised will be limited to 

AGENDA ITEM 4

Page 7



those cases where prior to the debt being written off, the debt has been proven at Court as 
rightly and properly due. 
  
Risk Management: 
 
No specific implications save that of this report acting as an early warning system to any 
problems in the area of write offs. 
 
Social Inclusion and Diversity:  No specific implications. 
 
Crime and Disorder: No specific implications. 
 
Options Appraisal: Not applicable. 
 
Contact Officer: 
Jackie Adams  

Title: 
Group Manager 
(Income and Collection) 

Contact Details: 
Tel: 020 8227 2507 
Fax: 020 8227 2574 
E-mail: Jackie.adams@lbbd.gov.uk 

 
1.  Introduction and Background 
 
1.1 The Income & Collection section is responsible for the collection of the vast majority of 

debts falling due to the Council by way of statutory levies and chargeable services.  
Whilst measures are taken to collect all debts and levies due, it is invariably the case 
that some debts will remain unpaid, even after concerted efforts have been made to 
collect them.  

 
1.2 In order that the Council can take proper account of debts that will actually be paid 
 and also take account of debts that are unlikely to be paid, the writing off of 
 uncollectible debts are carried out on a regular basis.  This way the Council is able 
 to take account of just those debts that it knows will be paid, whilst making some 
 provision within its accounts for debts that are unlikely to be paid. 
 
2. Policy for write off of irrecoverable debts & unclaimed credits 
 
2.1 The processes and procedures in place for managing and recording debts written 
 off are governed by the Council’s write off policy.  The purpose of the policy is to 
 establish a framework to regulate the write off of irrecoverable debts and long 
 standing unallocated and unclaimed credits. 
 
2.2 Adherence to this policy will ensure that there is always consistency and probity 
 adopted in the procedures of debt and credit write offs and that best practice is 
 followed in: 
 

• Debt collection and recovery 
• Accountancy code of practice 
• Audit controls 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 8



3. Authorisation to write off debts 
 
3.1 Authority to write off debts and credits is delegated to the Chief Financial Officer by 
 the Council’s Constitution.  Further delegation is made via the constitution and is 
 specified below: 
 

• Up to £2,000    (Group Managers / Business Unit Head) 
• £2,000.01 to £10,000   (Head of Service) 
• Over £10,000     (Corporate Director of Customer Services or 

 Divisional Director of Corporate Finance) 
 
3.2 These authorisation levels are strictly adhered to for all write offs. 
 
4. Current Position 
 
4.1 The net value of debts written off for the third quarter (Q3) of 2008/9 (i.e. October 
 2008 – December 2008) was £457,966.66 as shown in table 3 of appendix A.  The 
 total cumulate debt write off for 2008/09 now stands at £1.049m. 
 
5. Points to note from debt write off tables (Appendix A) 
 
5.1 Council Tax and Business Rates are both statutory debts and for the most part, 
 regular monthly write offs take place.   
 
5.2 General Income debts relate to debts raised for chargeable services that the 
 Council either provides as a statutory duty or as a service where no other providers 
 are available to provide a similar service. 
 
5.3 Home Care and Residential Care debts are also dealt with within the General 
 Income section and are shown separately. 
 
6. Publication of individual details of debts written off 
 
6.1 A number of Authorities publicise the details (names, addresses etc.), of residents who 

have had debts written off.  In the vast majority of cases, these debts have been written 
off where the debtor has absconded. 

 
6.2 The Executive agreed in November 2007 (Minute 69, 6 November 2007) that a list 

showing the details of debtors, who have had debts written off, would be attached to 
this report.  A list has been attached at Appendix B.  The list has been limited to the top 
ten debts only. 

 
6.3 As outlined within recommendation 2 above, the Executive is asked to consider the 
 publication of this list of debtors locally (e.g. within the Citizen, local newspapers  etc.). 
 
6.4 As was previously outlined within the 6th November 2007 Executive report, It was 
 recommended that the following types of debt write offs are excluded from this 
 publicised list: 
 
 (a) Debts that have been written off following a corporate complaint being  
  upheld 

Page 9



 (b) Debts that have been written off due to the debtor falling within one of the  
  many vulnerable groups (e.g. elderly, disabled, infirm etc.) 
 (c) Where the original debt was raised in error 
 (d) Where debts have been written off, but no legal action has been taken to  
  prove that the debt was legally and properly due 
 (e) Where the debt has been written off following bankruptcy or insolvency  
  action (the majority of these cases will be individually publicised) 
 
6.5 The exclusion of the category of debts listed above will eliminate the possibility of any 

unnecessary and potentially costly legal challenges from debtors, who take issue with 
their details being publicised. It is intended that where the details or whereabouts of 
debtors become known following publication, those debtors will be pursued as far as is 
possible, to secure full payment of the debt. 

 
6.6 The list provided at appendix B does not include any debts or debtors that fall within 
 categories a-e above, so the list as it stands can be publicised. 
 
7. Ongoing debt recovery and tracing work 
 
7.1 It should be noted that debt recovery and tracing work is an ongoing activity within the 

Income & Collection section.  Some form of tracing work continues on debts even after 
the debt has been written off.  In many cases, tracing and follow-up work can continue 
for up to a year after the debt has been written off (e.g. in the case of higher debts) and 
debtors have been known to resurface up to five years after a debt has been written 
off. 

 
7.2 Where debtors are located after a long period of time, measures are taken to 
 recover the debts and in some cases, the debt is written back on so that legal action 
 can commence or be picked up from where it was left. 
 

8. Consultees 
 
 

• Councillor Graham Bramley- Lead Member Resources 
• Joe Chesterton -Divisional Director of Corporate Finance 
• Bola Odunsi - Head of Barking & Dagenham Direct 
• Yinka Owa – Legal Partner & Deputy Monitoring Officer 

 
Background Papers Used in the Preparation of the Report: 
 

• Report to Executive on 6/11/07 titled “Council Debt Write Offs” Minute 69, November 
2007 

• Policy for write off of irrecoverable debts and unclaimed credits 
• Income & Collection tracing procedure 

 

Page 10



A
pp

en
di

x 
A

 
D

eb
ts

 w
rit

te
n 

of
f 2

00
6/

7 
Ta

bl
e 

1 
 M

on
th

 
G

en
er

al
 

In
co

m
e 

D
eb

ts
 

 

Fo
rm

er
 

Te
na

nt
 

A
rr

ea
rs

 
 

H
om

e 
C

ar
e   

R
es

id
en

tia
l 

C
ar

e   

C
ou

nc
il 

Ta
x   

N
N

D
R

 
   

To
ta

l 
   

20
06

/0
7 

£2
09

,5
71

£6
98

,4
23

 
£3

2,
23

4
£9

8,
60

8
£1

,9
65

,0
30

£8
2,

25
6 

£3
,0

86
,1

22
    D

eb
ts

 w
rit

te
n 

of
f d

ur
in

g 
20

07
/8

  
Ta

bl
e 

2 
 

W
rit

e 
O

ffs
 

G
en

er
al

 
In

co
m

e 
D

eb
ts

 
 

Fo
rm

er
 

Te
na

nt
 

A
rr

ea
rs

 
 

H
om

e 
C

ar
e 

R
es

id
en

tia
l 

C
ar

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
Ta

x 
N

N
D

R
 

TO
TA

L

20
07

-8
 T

ot
al

s 
 £

16
5,

41
3 

 £
37

3,
27

5 
 

 £
   

   
   

 - 
 £

10
,5

43
 

 £
 6

68
,1

63
 

£1
69

,6
57

  
 £

1,
38

7,
05

1 
              

Page 11



  D
eb

ts
 w

rit
te

n 
of

f 2
00

8/
09

 
Ta

bl
e 

3 
  D

eb
ts

 W
rit

te
n 

O
ff 

du
rin

g 
20

08
/0

9 
Q

ua
rt

er
 1

 
 

 
 

 
 

W
rit

e 
O

ffs
 

G
en

er
al

 
In

co
m

e 
D

eb
ts

 
 

Fo
rm

er
 

Te
na

nt
 

A
rr

ea
rs

 
 

R
en

ts
 

H
om

e 
C

ar
e 

R
es

id
en

tia
l 

C
ar

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
Ta

x 
N

N
D

R
 

TO
TA

L

U
nd

er
 

£2
k 

£2
1,

24
8.

79
 

£4
76

.8
7

  
£1

08
.2

6
£6

44
.2

9
£5

8,
93

7.
17

  
£8

1,
41

5.
38

O
ve

r 
£2

k 
£3

7,
54

5.
09

 
  

  
  

  
£2

,5
07

.9
1

  
£4

0,
05

3.
00

O
ve

r 
£1

0k
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
£0

.0
0

Apr-08 

To
ta

l 
£5

8,
79

3.
88

 
£4

76
.8

7
£0

.0
0

£1
08

.2
6

£6
44

.2
9

£6
1,

44
5.

08
£0

.0
0

£1
21

,4
68

.3
8

U
nd

er
 

£2
k 

£1
2,

86
1.

66
 

£7
2.

12
  

  
£1

59
.0

0
£2

9,
41

3.
39

  
£4

2,
50

6.
17

O
ve

r 
£2

k 
  

  
  

  
  

£5
,3

30
.7

3
  

£5
,3

30
.7

3

O
ve

r 
£1

0k
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
£0

.0
0

May-08 

To
ta

l 
£1

2,
86

1.
66

 
£7

2.
12

£0
.0

0
£0

.0
0

£1
59

.0
0

£3
4,

74
4.

12
£0

.0
0

£4
7,

83
6.

90
U

nd
er

 
£2

k 
  

£2
,4

72
.9

4
£5

90
.4

3
£8

1.
94

£3
47

.1
8

£2
8,

85
2.

60
  

£3
2,

34
5.

09

O
ve

r 
£2

k 
  

  
  

  
  

£1
1,

70
9.

69
  

£1
1,

70
9.

69

O
ve

r 
£1

0k
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
£0

.0
0

Jun-08 

To
ta

l 
£0

.0
0 

£2
,4

72
.9

4
£5

90
.4

3
£8

1.
94

£3
47

.1
8

£4
0,

56
2.

29
£0

.0
0

£4
4,

05
4.

78
Q

ua
rt

er
 1

 
To

ta
ls

 
  

£7
1,

65
5.

54
 

£3
,0

21
.9

3
£5

90
.4

3
£1

90
.2

0
£1

,1
50

.4
7

£1
36

,7
51

.4
9

£0
.0

0
£2

13
,3

60
.0

6

   

Page 12



  D
eb

ts
 W

rit
te

n 
O

ff 
du

rin
g 

20
08

/0
9 

Q
ua

rt
er

 2
 

W
rit

e 
O

ffs
 

G
en

er
al

 
In

co
m

e 
D

eb
ts

 
 

Fo
rm

er
 

Te
na

nt
 

A
rr

ea
rs

 
 

R
en

ts
 

H
om

e 
C

ar
e 

R
es

id
en

tia
l 

C
ar

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
Ta

x 
N

N
D

R
 

TO
TA

L

U
nd

er
 

£2
k 

£6
,0

73
.3

9 
  

  
£1

12
.5

0
  

£2
7,

52
2.

81
  

£3
3,

70
8.

70

O
ve

r 
£2

k 
  

£1
6,

60
2.

87
  

  
  

£7
,0

67
.2

8
  

£2
3,

67
0.

15

O
ve

r 
£1

0k
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
£0

.0
0

Jul-08 

To
ta

l 
£6

,0
73

.3
9 

£1
6,

60
2.

87
£0

.0
0

£1
12

.5
0

£0
.0

0
£3

4,
59

0.
09

£0
.0

0
£5

7,
37

8.
85

U
nd

er
 

£2
k 

£1
8,

61
3.

28
 

£5
,9

31
.4

3
  

£1
35

.9
9

  
£2

1,
88

0.
04

  
£4

6,
56

0.
74

O
ve

r 
£2

k 
£1

6,
61

8.
43

 
  

  
  

  
£1

3,
49

5.
98

  
£3

0,
11

4.
41

O
ve

r 
£1

0k
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
£0

.0
0

Aug-08 

To
ta

l 
£3

5,
23

1.
71

 
£5

,9
31

.4
3

£0
.0

0
£1

35
.9

9
£0

.0
0

£3
5,

37
6.

02
£0

.0
0

£7
6,

67
5.

15
U

nd
er

 
£2

k 
£5

3,
32

5.
14

 
£9

5,
19

1.
28

  
£1

32
.9

9
  

£3
9,

75
2.

50
  

£1
88

,4
01

.9
1

O
ve

r 
£2

k 
£6

,7
88

.5
7 

£4
8,

33
7.

15
  

  
  

  
  

£5
5,

12
5.

72

O
ve

r 
£1

0k
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
£0

.0
0

Sep-08 

To
ta

l 
£6

0,
11

3.
71

 
£1

43
,5

28
.4

3
£0

.0
0

£1
32

.9
9

£0
.0

0
£3

9,
75

2.
50

£0
.0

0
£2

43
,5

27
.6

3
Q

ua
rt

er
 2

 
To

ta
ls

 
  

£1
01

,4
18

.8
1 

£1
66

,0
62

.7
3

£0
.0

0
£3

81
.4

8
£0

.0
0

£1
09

,7
18

.6
1

£0
.0

0
£3

77
,5

81
.6

3

       

Page 13



D
eb

ts
 W

rit
te

n 
O

ff 
du

rin
g 

20
08

/0
9 

Q
ua

rt
er

 3
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

W
rit

e 
O

ffs
 

G
en

er
al

 
In

co
m

e 
D

eb
ts

 
 

Fo
rm

er
 

Te
na

nt
 

A
rr

ea
rs

 
 

R
en

ts
 

H
om

e 
C

ar
e 

R
es

id
en

tia
l 

C
ar

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
Ta

x 
N

N
D

R
 

TO
TA

L

U
nd

er
 

£2
k 

£7
4,

40
1.

96
 

£1
00

,6
98

.7
1

  
  

  
  

  
£1

75
,1

00
.6

7

O
ve

r 
£2

k 
£1

4,
43

1.
27

 
£9

,6
14

.1
7

  
  

  
  

  
£2

4,
04

5.
44

O
ve

r 
£1

0k
 

£2
4,

99
8.

34
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

£2
4,

99
8.

34

Oct-08 

To
ta

l 
£1

13
,8

31
.5

7 
£1

10
,3

12
.8

8
£0

.0
0

£0
.0

0
£0

.0
0 

£0
.0

0
£0

.0
0

£2
24

,1
44

.4
5

U
nd

er
 

£2
k 

£3
4,

38
2.

46
 

£7
5,

00
5.

57
  

  
£5

10
.6

5 
  

  
£1

09
,8

98
.6

8

O
ve

r 
£2

k 
£9

,3
48

.4
1 

£3
7,

19
4.

46
  

  
  

  
  

£4
6,

54
2.

87

O
ve

r 
£1

0k
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
£0

.0
0

Nov-08 

To
ta

l 
£4

3,
73

0.
87

 
£1

12
,2

00
.0

3
£0

.0
0

£0
.0

0
£5

10
.6

5 
£0

.0
0

£0
.0

0
£1

56
,4

41
.5

5
U

nd
er

 
£2

k 
£7

,8
15

.8
9 

  
  

  
  

  
£1

4,
47

0.
53

£2
2,

28
6.

42

O
ve

r 
£2

k 
£4

,9
13

.6
1 

  
  

  
  

  
£1

5,
87

3.
59

£2
0,

78
7.

20

O
ve

r 
£1

0k
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

£3
4,

30
7.

04
£3

4,
30

7.
04

Dec-08 

To
ta

l 
£1

2,
72

9.
50

 
£0

.0
0

£0
.0

0
£0

.0
0

£0
.0

0 
£0

.0
0

£6
4,

65
1.

16
£7

7,
38

0.
66

Q
ua

rt
er

 3
 

To
ta

ls
 

  
£1

70
,2

91
.9

4 
£2

22
,5

12
.9

1
£0

.0
0

£0
.0

0
£5

10
.6

5 
£0

.0
0

£6
4,

65
1.

16
£4

57
,9

66
.6

6

  20
08

/0
9 

To
ta

ls
  

£3
43

,3
66

 
£3

91
,5

98
£5

90
£5

72
£1

,6
61

 
£2

46
,4

70
£6

4,
65

1
£1

,0
48

,9
08

     

Page 14



A
pp

en
di

x 
B

 
To

p 
10

 d
eb

ts
 w

rit
te

n 
of

f i
n 

Q
ua

rt
er

 3
 

  R
ef

er
en

ce
 

D
at

e 
of

 
In

vo
ic

e 
N

am
e 

A
dd

re
ss

 
C

om
m

en
t 

Va
lu

e 

G
I2

00
05

85
1 

20
.1

0.
08

M
r A

 M
 J

am
 

10
9 

R
ip

pl
e 

R
d,

 B
ar

ki
ng

 
In

vo
ic

e 
ra

is
ed

 3
1.

3.
00

 a
nd

 h
el

d,
 

ch
ar

gi
ng

 o
rd

er
 w

as
 n

ot
 o

bt
ai

ne
d.

. 
£2

4,
99

8.
34

 

G
I9

90
03

13
X

 
8.

10
.0

8 
T 

N
ob

le
 

13
 B

ra
dw

el
l A

ve
, D

ag
. 

C
ol

le
ct

io
n 

ag
en

cy
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

un
ab

le
 to

 
co

lle
ct

. 
£7

,1
67

.7
3 

70
43

30
42

 
30

.6
.0

3 
M

r &
 M

rs
 E

lm
es

 
76

5 
Lo

ng
br

id
ge

 R
d,

 D
ag

. 
A

ll 
tra

ci
ng

 u
ns

uc
ce

ss
fu

l. 
£6

,0
18

.7
8 

61
39

45
71

 
24

.1
1.

08
M

r G
 L

 B
om

ba
ta

10
3 

Ilc
he

st
er

 R
d,

 D
ag

. 
B

an
kr

up
t 

£6
,1

70
.5

5 

71
08

26
22

 
7.

8.
06

 
M

r N
na

m
ud

i 
E

zi
ke

 
50

 C
ap

e 
C

lo
se

, B
ar

ki
ng

 
R

et
ur

ne
d 

fro
m

 N
ew

yl
ns

 b
ai

lif
f u

na
bl

e 
to

 
re

co
ve

r d
eb

t. 
 

£4
,3

80
.3

9 

71
09

85
89

 
8.

12
.0

3 
M

rs
 T

in
a 

W
es

tle
y 

16
0 

Ib
sc

ot
t C

lo
se

 
D

ag
en

ha
m

 
O

ld
 D

eb
t t

ha
t h

as
 b

ee
n 

st
uc

k 
in

 
C

as
ef

lo
w

 re
co

ve
ry

 s
ys

te
m

 
£3

,9
58

.1
8 

70
72

41
33

 
9.

7.
07

 
M

r &
 M

rs
 

M
is

au
sk

as
 

14
8 

C
he

lm
er

 C
re

s.
 B

ar
ki

ng
Al

l t
ra

ci
ng

 u
ns

uc
ce

ss
fu

l. 
£3

,6
79

.0
5 

71
21

87
77

 
15

.3
.0

4 
S

us
an

 W
al

ke
r 

17
 T

he
 L

in
to

n,
 B

ar
ki

ng
 

A
ll 

tra
ci

ng
 u

ns
uc

ce
ss

fu
l. 

£3
,6

48
.2

2 

70
80

26
24

 
19

.6
.0

6 
M

r A
nt

ho
ny

 
Te

rr
y 

69
 C

ob
ha

m
 H

ou
se

, S
t 

M
ar

ga
re

t’s
, B

ar
ki

ng
 

A
ll 

tra
ci

ng
 u

ns
uc

ce
ss

fu
l. 

£3
,5

47
.7

2 

71
39

18
15

 
2.

7.
07

 
F 

B
oc

k 
41

 N
as

h 
R

oa
d,

 C
ha

dw
el

l 
H

ea
th

 
A

ll 
tra

ci
ng

 u
ns

uc
ce

ss
fu

l. 
£3

,4
94

.5
7 

    

Page 15



Page 16

This page is intentionally left blank



 1

 
         THE EXECUTIVE  

 
17 FEBRUARY 2009 

 
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES    

 
TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 
 

For Decision  

Summary  
 
This report deals with the Treasury Management Annual Investment Strategy Statement, 
Prudential Indicators,  Annual Investment Strategy and borrowing limits, in compliance 
under section 15 (1) (a) of the Local Government Act 2003 for consideration by the 
Executive. 
 
The production and approval of a Treasury Management Annual Strategy Statement and 
Annual Investment Strategy are requirements of the Council under Section 15(1) of the 
Local Government Act 2003. It is also a requirement of the act to set an authorised 
borrowing limit for the forthcoming financial year. 
 
The Local Government Act 2003 also requires the Council to have regard to the Prudential 
Code, and to set prudential indicators which take into account the Council’s capital 
investment plans for the next 3 years. 
 
Wards Affected 
All wards. 
 
Recommendations 
 
The Executive is asked to consider and refer the following to the Assembly on 25 
February 2009 for approval: 
 
1. The Treasury Management Strategy Statement for 2009/10 (this document), and 

within this document the following: 
 
2. The authorised borrowing limit of £200million for 2009/10, which will be the 

statutory limit determined under section 3(1) of the Local Government Act 2003;  
 
3 The Borrowing Strategy for 2009/10;  
 
4 The Minimum Revenue Policy Statement for 2009/10 which sets out the Council’s 

policy on repayment of debt;   
 
5 The Annual Investment Strategy for 2009/10, which outlines the investments that 

the Council may use for the prudent management of its investment balances. It also 
includes details of benchmarks set for external managers. The power is delegated 
to the Chief Financial Officer to change these benchmarks as required;  

 
6.       The Treasury Management Prudential Indicators for 2009/10 (Appendix A); and      
 
7.       Treasury Management Principles 2009/10 (Appendix D). 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 5

Page 17



 2

Reason(s) 
It is necessary for the members to approve this report due to the requirements of the Local 
Government Act 2003. 
 
Financial Implications 
 
The aim of this treasury management strategy is to maximise the Council’s financial 
resources. Detailed financial considerations are considered throughout this document. 
 
Legal Implications  
 
It is a legal requirement for the Council to set an annual treasury management strategy, as 
set out in the Local Government Act 2003. The legal implications of the recommendations 
are contained in the report.  
 
Risk Management 
 
There are no further risks issues other than those already detailed in this report.  
 
Social Inclusion and Diversity 
 
As this report does not concern a new or revised policy, there are no specific adverse 
impacts insofar as this report is concerned. 
 
Crime and Disorder 
 
This report has given careful consideration to the implications of Section 17 of the Crime 
and Disorder Act 1978 and there are no specific implications insofar as this report is 
concerned. 
 
Contact Officers: 
Joe Chesterton  
 
 
 
Miriam Adams 

Title: 
Divisional Director of 
Corporate Finance 
 
 
Treasury & Pensions 
Manager  

Contact Details: 
Tel: 020 8227 2932 
 Fax: 020 8227 2770 
E-mail: joe.chesterton@lbbd.gov.uk 
 
Tel: 020 8227 2722 
 Fax: 020 8227 2770 
E-mail: Miriam.adams@lbbd.gov.uk  

 
 
1. Introduction 
 
1.1 The Local Government Act 2003 and supporting regulations requires the Council to 

‘have regard to’ the Prudential Code and to set Prudential Indicators for the next 
three years to ensure that the Council’s capital investment plans are affordable, 
prudent and sustainable.   

 
1.2 The Act and investment guidance issued subsequent to the Act requires local 

authorities to set out their treasury strategy for borrowing and to prepare an Annual 
Investment Strategy. This sets out the Council’s policies for managing its 
investments and for giving priority to the security and liquidity of those investments.  

 
1.3 It is a statutory requirement under Section 33 of the Local Government Finance Act 

1992, for the Council to produce a balanced budget. In particular Section 32 

Page 18



 3

requires a local authority to calculate its budget requirement for each financial year 
to include the revenue costs that flow from capital financing decisions. This means 
that increases in capital expenditure must be limited to a level whereby charges to 
revenue caused by borrowing and any increases in running costs are limited to a 
level which is affordable within the projected income of the Council for foreseeable 
future. 

 
1.4 The 2009/10 strategy covers: 
 

• The Treasury Management Policy; 
 
• Treasury limits in force which will limit the treasury risk and activities of the 

council;   
 

• Treasury Management Prudential Indicators; 
 

• The current treasury position and borrowing requirement; 
 

• Prospects for interest rates; 
 

• The borrowing strategy; 
 

• The debt rescheduling strategy; 
 

• The MRP strategy; 
 

• Security of Capital; 
 

• The investment strategy; 
 

• The Council’s position on the Local Housing Company; 
 
• End of year investment report;  

 
• Use of External Fund Managers; and 

 
• Treasury Management Principles.  

 
2. Treasury Management Policy 
 
2.1 The Council defines the policies and objectives of its treasury management 

activities as the management of the authority’s cash flows, its banking, money and 
capital market transactions, the effective control of the risks associated with those 
activities, and the pursuit of optimum performance with those risks. 
 

2.2. The Council regards the successful identification, monitoring and control of  
risk to be the prime criteria by which the effectiveness of its treasury 
management activities will focus on their risk implications for the Council.    

 
2.3 The Council is aware that effective treasury management will provide support 

towards the achievement of its business and service objectives. It is therefore 
committed to the principles of achieving best value in treasury management, and to 

Page 19



 4

employing suitable performance measurement techniques, within the context of 
effective risk management.     

 
3. Treasury Management Prudential Indicators and Treasury Limits 
 
3.1. It is a statutory duty under section 3 of the Local Government Act 2003 and 

supporting regulations, for the Council to determine and keep under review how 
much it can afford to borrow.  The Act specifies that Councils must have regard to 
CIPFA’s Prudential Code for Capital Investment. This code sets a range of 
indicators in respect of Treasury Management. A key indicator is the Authorised 
Borrowing Limit.  In setting this limit, the Council must have regard to the Prudential 
Code by ensuring that total capital investment remains within sustainable limits and, 
in particular, that the impact upon its future council tax and council rent levels is 
‘acceptable’.   
The code defines this limit as a limit gross of its total external debt, gross of 
investments, separately identifying borrowing from other long term liabilities. 
  

3.2. It is proposed that the ‘Authorised limit’ increase to £200m for the years 2009/10 to 
2011/12. The capital programme report that is also being considered on this 
agenda is proposing a total capital programme that will lead to a borrowing 
requirement of around £80m to £90m over the next 3 years.  

 
3.3. As this is a legal limit, sufficient headroom has been provided to ensure that any 

major capital investment projects where financing has yet to be finalised, are not 
restricted by this statutory limit. This limit would cover any short term borrowing for 
cashflow purposes as well as long term borrowing for capital projects, finance 
leases, as well as any unforeseen incidences where expected capital receipts are 
not forthcoming due to unexpected economic factors.  

 
3.4 The code also requires the local authority to set an operational limit for the 2009/10 

financial year and the following two financial years for its total external debt. The 
operational limit is the level at which the Council would actually need to borrow in 
any one year to meet it’s capital financing requirements for the capital programme.  

 
3.5 A borrowing limit of £200m has been set per paragraph 3.1. This limit would apply 

to both short term and long term borrowing, and would be used to address cashflow 
issues in the short term, and capital financing issues in the longer term.  

 
3.6 Full details of the Council’s Treasury Indicators have been included in Appendix A 

to this document. 
 
4. Current Portfolio Position 
  

Investments and borrowing balances  
 

4.1 The table below shows the Council’s current treasury portfolio position at 31st 
December 2008: 

Page 20



 5

 
 31 December 2008 Average rate of 

return/payment 
 £ Million % 
Investments    
Council in House Team 66.7 5.87 
Scottish Widows 22.9 4.59 
Investec Asset Management 37.1 6.00 
Royal Bank of Scotland (RBS) 15.0 8.00 
TOTAL INVESTMENTS  141.7 7.76 
Borrowing   
Fixed rate Funding   PWLB 30.0 4.06 
                                 Market 20.0 3.98 
TOTAL BORROWING  50.0 4.02 

 
4.2 The sum invested broadly represents the reserves, provisions and balances that the 

Council holds together with the impact of any difference between the collection of 
income and expenditure (working capital).  

 
4.3 Based on its cash flow forecasts, the Council anticipates its fund balances by 31st 

March 2009 to be approximately £125 million. This is based upon the 2008/09 
capital programme expenditure profile and both agreed and forecast use of 
reserves and other balances.  

 
4.4 Benchmarks are set to ensure that the council maximises its return on investments, 

provide sufficient challenge to fund managers, and ensure that the treasury 
management strategy is in line with the budget strategy. It also takes into account 
the effect of future projections for interest rates in addition to current and predicted 
future economic conditions. 

 
5.  Prospects for Interest Rates 
  
5.1. The level of, and fluctuations in, interest rates, are a key consideration for any 

treasury management strategy. The Council invests it’s portfolio throughout the 
year, and the level of interest rates determines the interest receipts that are 
generated to support ongoing revenue expenditure.  

 
5.2. To arrive at an expectation of interest rates for 2009/10, and beyond, a number of 

judgements and assumptions are made; in addition this involves a high degree of 
uncertainty.  

 
5.3.     The Council has appointed Sector Treasury Services as treasury adviser to the 
           Council. Part of the service provided assists the Council in formulating a view on  
            interest rates. Appendix B draws together a number of current City forecasts for  
           short term or variable and longer fixed interest rates.   
 
5.4 It is expected that Bank Rates in 2009/10 will take a downward trend from the  

current levels of 1.5% with expectations tending towards a further 1.0% cut in 
quarter 1 and quarter 2 of 2009 before the Bank Rate begin to rise in quarter 2 
2010. 

 

Page 21



 6

5.5. This is a significant reduction in the prevailing interest rate compared to 2008/09. 
The Council has ensured that sufficient provision has been made in the Medium 
Term Financial Strategy to cover this reduction in income for 2009/10.   
 

6. Borrowing Strategy and Borrowing Requirement 
 
6.1. The decision to borrow is a treasury management decision and is taken by the 

Chief Financial Officer under delegated powers of the Council’s constitution. The 
key objective of the Council’s borrowing strategy is to secure long term funding for 
capital projects at borrowing rates that are as low as possible.  

 
6.2   Borrowing Objectives 

The Council will look to reducing the revenue cost of borrowing to its minimum by 
appraising new sources of finance and loan instruments in order to achieve 
minimum risk while having regard to the maturity profile of loans. The authority will 
consider borrowing fixed rate funds when interest rates are low and variable rates 
when borrowing or investment cash rates are high and expected to go lower  
When the market becomes favourable to borrow the Council may have to fund 
known capital needs ahead of that need in order to take advantage of lower fixed 
term rates and market opportunities.  

 
6.3 Borrowing Options 

The option to borrow is always a financing option. The decision to borrow is being 
taken in consultation with our expert treasury advisors. A mix between Public Works 
Loans Board (PWLB) and money market loans is recommended by our treasury 
management advisers. 
With current investment rates at an all time low, in contrast to current borrowing 
rates, the Council can also consider the use of its internal investments as an 
alternative to borrowing, as returns on investments will be so low in 2009/10.  

 
6.4. Portfolio Mix  

The Council’s will continue to seek the advise of its treasury management advisers 
on the best portfolio mix, currently the portfolio mix recommended is a 50/50 split in 
the debt portfolio in the long term. It is advised that at any one point in time the 
Council should have a portfolio where no more than 10% of its debt matures in any 
one year. As the Council has only recently started to borrow, this objective will only 
be achieved as a portfolio of debt has been built up (i.e. the Council has more than 
10 loans on it’s books). The Chief Financial Officer monitors the portfolio mix on a 
periodical basis. 

 
6.5. Risk Evaluation 

The Council will continue to borrow in tranches as the opportunities arise in the 
market in order to reduce financing risk.  

 
6.6 Portfolio Life 

In any debt portfolio there will be a range of maturities out as far as 70 years. As 
part of the proactive management of the debt portfolio these loans will be 
considered for debt restructuring through monitoring and where a financial benefit 
can be made, debt will be restructured within acceptable risk parameters in the 
treasury management strategy. The debt maturity profile will not stay static because 
when opportunities arise they are taken in order to reduce the council’s underlying 
financing costs which will impact on the revenue budget.  

 
6.7 The table below indicates the estimated range of total borrowing requirement 

Page 22



 7

(cumulative) from 2009/10 to 2010/11: 
 

Borrowing Requirement 2008/09 
£m 

Estimate

2009/10 
£m 

Estimate 

2010/11 
£m 

Estimate 

2011/12 
£m 

Estimate 

CUMULATIVE TOTAL 50 85-90 110-115 120-125 
 
  
6.8 The borrowing rate forecast for 2009/10 from Sector is as follows: 

 
• The 50 year PWLB rate is expected to fluctuate by 0.05% between quarters 

in 2009/10, Q1 3.85%, Q2 3.80%, Q3 3.80% and Q4 3.85%; 
• Similarly, the 25 year PWLB rate is expected to fall progressively from 4.00% 

to 3.95% in Q4; 
• The 10 year PWLB rate is expected to fall from 3.10% in Q1 2009 to 2.55% 

in Q3, followed by a gradual rise; 
• The 5 year PWLB rate is expected to fall from 2.50% in Q1 2009 to reach 

2.15% in Q4 2009 and to then gradually rise; and  
• The forecast indicates that the borrowing strategy for 2009/10 should be set 

to take shorter term PWLB loans under 10 years. Consideration will also be 
given to borrowing fixed rate market loans at 25 – 50 basis points below the 
PWLB target rate if they become available.  

 
6.9 In summary, considering the factors set above, the recommended borrowing 

strategy: 
• That cash balances, not identified for longer term investments, may be used 

to finance capital expenditure on a temporary basis as current interest rates 
are such that returns on cash balances are so low;  

• Other forms of financing capital should be evaluated when considering long 
term borrowing decisions, principally PWLB and market loans;  

• The maximum repayment spread for borrowing remains at 70 years; and 
• No more than 10% of borrowing should mature in one year, however this 

position will only be reached as a portfolio of debt is built up.  
 
7.0 Debt Rescheduling Strategy 
 
7.1 £10m of the Council’s current debt will mature in 2009/10. The key decision in debt 

restructuring will be the ability to make a saving. The decision to reschedule will be 
taken by the Chief Financial Officer under delegated powers of the Council’s 
constitution and in consultation with the council treasury management advisers.  

 
7.2 Due to the short term borrowing rates being expected to be considerably cheaper 

than long term rates, there are likely to be significant opportunities to generate 
savings by switching from long term debt to short term debt. There are also 
opportunities to use cash balances to finance capital expenditure in the short term, 
given the current interest rate environment.  

 
8. Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Strategy  
 
8.1 The Government issued new guidance in February 2008 which looks at asset life as 

a prudent period for which to write MRP over and accordingly. It is the Council’s 
policy to charge MRP at 4% of the opening capital financing requirement.  

Page 23



 8

 
9. Annual Investment Strategy and Investment Policies  
    
9.1 The Council will have regard to the DCLG’s Guidance on Local Government 

Investments (“the Guidance”) issued in March 2004 and the Chartered Institute of 
Public Finance Accountants (CIPFA)’s Treasury Management in Public Services 
Code of Practice and Cross Sectoral Guidance Notes (“the CIPFA TM Code”).  The 
Council’s investment priorities are:  
(a)   the security of capital;   
(b)   the liquidity of its investments; and 
(c)   the minimisation of risk exposure.      
 

9.2  Investment instruments identified for use in the financial year are listed in Appendix   
C to this report. Under the requirements of the Investment Guidance issued by the 
Department of Communities, investments need to be classified into specified and 
Non-Specified. The Annual Investment Strategy states which investments the 
Council may use during the financial year. It is a requirement to report these 
investments to the Executive for approval. It is the delegated responsibility of the 
Chief Financial Officer to determine the exact instrument to use within these 
classifications.  Appendix C also sets out: 

 
• The procedures for determining the use of each asset class (advantages and 

associated risk), particularly if the investment falls under the category of 
“non-specified investments”; and 

 
• The maximum periods for which funds may be prudently committed in each 

asset class. 
 
9.3 For 2009/10, the strategy has been amended so that the Council can invest in  

products which most importantly minimise risk and obtain favourable returns. The 
Council will maintain a mixed portfolio of investments in 2009/10. Where the 
maximum returns can be achieved and on the advice of our advisers, we may seek 
to invest in structured investment products and money market funds. In addition our 
external fund managers may seek to invest in pooled money market funds with 
permitted weighted average maturity of less than 1 year so can be classified as 
specified investments. Gilts investments will continue to remain on a segregated 
basis. 

 
9.4 The principles of the proposed strategy for 2009/10 are as follows: 
 

• The weighting of the funds between the different fund managers which may occur 
as a result of requesting for money back will be kept under review in order to 
ensure that an adequate spread of risk is maintained within the portfolio;  

 
• To minimise interest rate risk and maintain balances between short and long term; 

and 
 

• The credit rating of counterparties will be kept under continuous review. Due to the 
current economic crisis and issues within the banking sector, all investments made 
in house will be held in UK institutions. The Council’s external fund managers will 
operate within the credit ratings and parameters set in this strategy, but will have 
the flexibility to invest in institutions outside of the UK.   
 

       

Page 24



 9

9.5 Treasury Advisor’s Outlook 
The Council’s treasury management advisors are forecasting that the bank rate will 
continue the downward trend from 1.5% January 2009, with rates expected to fall to 
0.5%. It is then expected to stabilise at 0.5% until the starting to rise gradually with 
the first increase in Q2 2010 and then back to 4.0% during Q1 2012. 
The Council will therefore avoid locking into longer term deals a greater part of its 
core balances while investment rates are down at historically low levels.  

 
9.6 For its cash flow generated balances, the Council will seek to utilise its business 

reserve accounts and short-dated deposits (1-3 months) in order to benefit from the 
compounding of interest and where a borrowing option is cheaper seek to consider 
such options.  

 
9.7 Icelandic Bank Investments 
 The Council has no frozen investments in Icelandic banks 

 
9.8 Each year, Council Officers consult with its treasury management advisor to 

determine appropriate benchmarks for investment returns. External fund managers 
have been informed of these proposed benchmarks and have set their investment 
strategies accordingly. They are as follows: 
 

Fund Manager 2009/10 
Benchmark 

Reason 

• Investec 
Asset 
Management 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
• Scottish 

Widows 
(SWIP) 

3.0% (or 3 month 
LIBID, whichever is 
higher) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.0%, (or 3 month 
LIBID, whichever is 
higher) 

• Bank Rate now 1.5% as at 
January 2009 

• A greater part of the Council’s 
portfolio was locked away for 
longer periods in 2008/09 while 
investment rates were high 

• Bank Rate Forecast to remain 
within the range of 1.0% and 0.5% 

• A greater part of the Council’s 
portfolio was locked away for 
longer periods in 2008/09 while 
investment rates were high 

• Maximising of council’s return on 
investments at minimal risk 

• Maximisation of the Council’s 
returns in order to meet budget 
pressures  

 
 The power to change benchmarks as above is delegated to the Chief Financial 

Officer.  
 
9.9 The 2009/10 benchmarks for Investec and SWIP have reduced to the higher of 

3.0% and 3 month LIBID. 

Page 25



 10

 
9.10 The table below shows the projected level of investments and borrowing  

from 2009/10 to 2012; 
 

 31 March
2008 

Actual 
£m 

31 March
2009 

Estimate 
£m 

31 March
2010 

Estimate 
£m 

31 March 
2011 

Estimate 
£m 

31 March 
2012 

Estimate 
£m 

Investments      
Total Investments at 31 
March  

104 125 102 103 105 

External Debt      

Borrowing  0 50 86 110 122 
   
9.11 The Council may permit its external fund managers to use instruments such as gilts, 

bonds, pooled funds, callable investments and other longer-dated instruments. 
Limits will have to be established in the use of such instruments to ensure that the 
Council can have access to its investments.  These Treasury Management limits 
can be set as either a £ amount or percentage.  

  
9.12 Investments defined as capital expenditure 

The acquisition of share capital or loan capital in any body corporate is defined as 
capital expenditure under Section 16(2) of the Local Government Act 2003. Such 
investments will have to be funded out of capital or revenue resources and will be 
classified as ‘non-specified investments’.  

 
9.13 A loan or grant by this Council to another body for capital expenditure by that body 

is also deemed by regulation to be capital expenditure by this Council. It is therefore 
important for this Council to clearly identify if the loan has made for policy reasons 
(e.g. to the registered social landlord for the construction/improvement of dwellings) 
or if it is an investment for treasury management purposes.  The latter will be 
governed by the framework set by the Council for ‘specified’ and ‘non-specified’ 
investments.   

  
9.14 Provisions for Credit-related losses   
 If any of the Council’s investments appeared at risk of loss due to default, (i.e. this a 

credit-related loss and not one resulting from a fall in price due to movements in 
interest rates) the Council will make revenue provision of an appropriate amount. 
Where there is a loss of the principal amount borrowed due to the collapse of the 
institution, the Council will seek legal advise and consult with its advisers.  

 
9.15 Investment instruments identified for use in the financial year are listed below under 

the ‘Specified’ and ‘Non-Specified’ Investments categories. Counterparty limits will 
be as set through the Council’s Treasury Management Practices.  

 
9.16 The Council’s external fund managers will comply with the Annual Investment 

Strategy. The agreements between the Council and the fund managers also 
stipulate guidelines on duration and other limits in order to contain and control risk.  

 
9.17 Investment Objectives  

All investments will be in sterling. The general policy objective for this Council is the 
prudent investment of its treasury balances.  The Council’s investment priorities are 
the security of capital and liquidity of its investments. The Council will aim to 

Page 26



 11

achieve the optimum return on its investments commensurate with the proper levels 
of security and liquidity. We have set challenging targets for 2009/10, and the risk of 
balancing returns with prudence will need to be managed. 

 
9.18 The DCLG maintains that the borrowing of monies purely to invest or on-lend and 

make a return is unlawful and the Council will not engage in such activity.  
 

 
10. Security of Capital: the use of Credit Ratings 
 
10.1 For the Council the duty to protect capital is paramount, improved performance is 

only achieved by taking effective decisions regarding the timing and duration of the 
investment rather than making ‘higher-risk’ investments to generate higher returns. 
The Council relies on credit ratings published by Fitch and Moody to establish the 
credit quality of counterparties (issuers and issues) and investment schemes. 

 
10.2 Monitoring of credit ratings: 
 

• All credit ratings will be monitored monthly. The Council has access to Fitch and 
Moody’s credit ratings and is alerted to changes through its use of the Sector 
website and in some cases the Council may use the Standards and Poor credit 
ratings;  

 
• If a counterparty’s or investment scheme’s rating is downgraded with the result 

that it no longer meets the Council’s minimum criteria, the further use of that 
counterparty /investment scheme as a new investment will be withdrawn 
immediately; 

 
• If counterparty is down graded but still meets the Council’s minimum criteria, it 

would be watched closely and any further downgrading would result in the 
Council removing it from its lending list. It should however be noted that where 
the Council enters in to a fixed term deposit, the borrower has no obligation to 
entertain any request for premature redemption, the Council may ask for the 
deposit to be broken, however this is not market practice and the institution is 
under no obligation to comply. 

 
• If a counterparty is upgraded so that it fulfils the Council’s criteria, its inclusion 

will be considered and put to the Chief Financial Officer for approval;  
 
• The Council will establish with its fund managers their credit criteria and the 

frequency of their monitoring of credit ratings so as to be satisfied as to their 
stringency and regularity; and 

 
• The Council will continue its approach of investing no more than 20% of its 

aggregate funds to any particular counterparty or £15m which ever is higher.  
 

• As a result of recent activity in the UK banking sector regarding mergers, the 
Council will also set a “group limit” of investing no more than 30% of aggregate 
funds in any particular group.  

 
10.3  Use of Nationalised banks   

Page 27



 12

Nationalised banks in the UK generally have credit ratings which do not conform to 
the credit criteria commonly used by local authorities to identify banks which are of 
credit worthiness.  
In particular as they no longer are separate institutions in their own right, it is 
impossible for Fitch to assign them an individual rating for their stand alone financial 
strength. Accordingly they have assigned an F rating which means that at a 
historical point in time this bank failed and is now owned by the Government. 
However, these institutions are now recipients of an F1+ short term rating as they 
effectively take on the creditworthiness of the Government itself. Deposits made 
with them are effectively made to the Government. They also have a support rating 
of 1; in other words, on both counts, they have the highest ratings possible.      
 

10.4 UK banking system support package 
The Council is aware that as at the time of setting its treasury management strategy 
that the UK Government has NOT given a blanket guarantee on all deposits but has 
underlined its determination to ensure the security of the UK banking system by 
supporting eight named banks with a £500 billion support package. However where 
the Council will lend to these banks it would not only rely on the implicit guarantee 
given by the government but in addition consider the credit ratings of the individual 
bank and UK government sovereign rating.  
 

10.5 Use of foreign banks 
The Council’s in-house team will not invest in foreign banks, however the Council’s 
fund managers may invest in foreign banks which in their judgement have sound 
standing, meet the Council’s minimum credit rating criteria and whose sovereign 
have a AAA long-term credit rating. In addition Fund managers will ensure that the 
geographical spread of funds is considered and avoid high concentration of funds in 
one country. In addition the Council considers that fund managers should not invest 
in countries where the rating is denoted as ‘local currency rating’ which does not 
take account of the possibility of foreign exchange controls limiting transfer into 
foreign currency.   
 

10.6 Use of other Local Authorities  
Where the investment is a straightforward cash loan the Local Government Act 
2003 s13 suggest that the credit risk attached to English and Welsh local authorities 
is an acceptable one. The Council will limit its lending to local authorities in England 
and Wales. 
 

10.7 Use of Multilateral Development Banks 
S15 of the Local Government Act 2003 SI 2004 no. 534 amended provides 
regulations to clarify that investments in multilateral development banks were not to 
be treated as being capital expenditure. Should the Council invest in such 
institutions then only such institutions with AAA credit rating and government 
backing would be invested in consultation with the Council’s treasury management 
adviser and the Chief Financial Officer.   

 
11. Use of External Fund Managers 
 
11.1 It is the Council’s policy to use external fund mangers for part of its investment 

portfolio. The fund managers will use both specified and non-specified investment 
categories, and are contractually committed to keep the Council’s investment 
strategy. The level of external balances is under constant review as the level of 
capital receipts diminishes. The performance of each manager is challenged 
quarterly by the Chief Financial Officer and the Council’s treasury advisers.  

Page 28



 13

 
11.2  The Council currently uses two fund managers, Scottish Widows (SWIP) and  

Investec Asset Management. £60m of the Council’s funds are currently managed 
on a discretionary basis by Investec and Scottish Widows.  
In selecting the institutions to include in their counterparty listing it is the external 
manager’s policy to maintain a list of counterparties and assets based on the 
Council’s set minimum criteria. This list is approved by their specialist credit team 
who independently research all potential counterparties before inclusion and 
regularly monitor and update to ensure that any change in credit worthiness and 
valuation is captured.  
 

11.3 Investec provides the Council with a periodic outlook on fund returns. For 2009/10, 
the worst case is 2.0%, and best case is 2.25%. These scenarios are based on the 
recent trend of the MPC rate cuts with at least rate cuts to 1.0%.  

 
11.4  Investec will be employing a strategy which will enable them buy shorter dated  

Certificate of deposits because in the current economic climate the upside for 
capital gains is limited.   
Investec will anticipate the use of supranational bonds in addition to gilts in other to 
increase returns of the portfolio. However they expect to see higher yield before 
establishing a position.   
In choosing its counterparty, in addition to the Council’s minimum credit rating, 
Investec employs further credit rating criteria which considers the size of the 
institution and activity in Sterling markets   
 

11.5  Scottish Widows provide the Council with a forecast of their returns on the  
Council’s investments based on the use of STL and GLF funds as the main part of 
the Council’s portfolio. In the an environment where interest rates have moved to 
extremely low levels, possibly to zero, SWIP will be permitted to use UCIT funds as 
part of the existing portfolio asset allocation. The absolute return bond fund and the 
credit advantage fund may also be used in the course of the year if advantageous.  

  
12. End of year Investment Report 
 
12.1   At the end of the financial year, the Council will report on its investment activity as   
           part of its Annual Treasury Report.    
 
Consultees 
 

Joe Chesterton –Divisional Director of Corporate Finance 
John Hooton – Group Manager Accounting & Technical Finance 
External – Sector Treasury Services 

 
Background Papers 
 

Local Government Act 2003 
CIPFA – The Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities 
CIPFA – Treasury Management in the Public Services 
Approved capital programme 2008/09 to 2010/11 
Monthly Treasury Management Report   
Medium Term Financial Strategy 2008/09 to 2010/11 
Sector – Guide to Establishing Credit Policies April 2008 

 

Page 29



Page 30

This page is intentionally left blank



 - 1 - 

Appendix A 
 

The Prudential Code for Capital Investment in Local Authorities 

 
1. Introduction. 
 
1.1. The Prudential Code for Capital Investment was introduced in April 2004 

as part of the Local Government Act 2003. The Prudential Code for 
Capital Investment allows each council freedom over its level of capital 
expenditure so long as it is prudent, affordable and sustainable. In other 
to show it is working within these limits the Council must approve, revise 
and monitor a range of indicators. 

 
1.2. To enable councils to establish whether their proposed borrowing is 

affordable and prudent the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy (CIPFA) has produced The Prudential Code for Capital 
Finance in Local Authorities. This identifies a range of indicators which 
must be considered by the Council when it makes its decisions about its 
future capital programme and sets its budget.   

 
1.3. The Prudential Code prescribes a number of Treasury Indicators. This 

appendix deals with the following indicators: 
 

• PI (prudential indicator) 10 – Authorised Borrowing Limit 
• PI 11 – Operational Borrowing Boundary 
• PI 13 – Adoption of the CIPFA Treasury Management Code 
• PI 14 – Fixed Interest Exposure 
• PI 15 – Variable Interest Exposure 
• PI 16 – Maturity Structure of Borrowing 
• PI 17 – Investments over 364 days 

2. External Debt 
 
2.1 In the medium term local authorities only have the power to borrow for 

capital purposes. The current position is that the Council will embark in 
borrowing in 2009/10. 

 
2.2 External borrowing and investment arises as a consequence of all the 
 financial transactions of the Council and not simply those arising from 
 capital spending. In accordance with best professional practice the 
 Council does not associate borrowing with particular items or types of 
 expenditure. This means that in day to day cash management no 
 distinction can be drawn between revenue or capital funds nor, similarly, 
 between Housing Revenue Account and the General Fund. It should be 

Page 31



 - 2 - 

noted that the code requires that off-balance sheet private finance  
initiative (PFI) schemes will be treated as outside the prudential indicator 
for debt, by absorbing revenue resources, they will have to be taken into 
account in determining the proposed level of capital investment is 
affordable.  

 
2.3   The authorised limit – This represents a limit beyond which external debt  

is prohibited, and this limit needs to be set or revised by members. It 
reflects the statutory limit determined under section 3 (1) of the Local 
Government Act 2003. 

 
2.4   The operational limit – This represents a limit beyond which  

external debt during the course of the year; it is not a limit. Actual external 
debt could vary around this boundary for short times during the year. It 
should act as a monitor indicator to ensure the authorised limit is not 
breached. The limit is usually lower than the authorised limit.  

 
2.5 At any point in time there are a number of cash flows in and out of the 

Council’s bank account which are caused by the differential timing of 
payments and receipts from the Council.  It is possible that an 
unanticipated cash movement could lead to a requirement for temporary 
borrowing.  Such decisions will need to take into account the affordability 
of borrowing, but it is important that the operational boundary leave 
sufficient “headroom” for these eventualities. 

 
2.6 The difference between the authorised limit and operational boundary for 

borrowing is that the authorised limit includes a head room for borrowing 
for future known capital needs now. However the Council will only do so if 
it expected long term borrowing rates to rise significantly before 2009/10 – 
2011/12.    

 
2.7 For this reason the Executive is recommended to approve the authorised 

limits and operational boundary limit set out in Table 1.  
 
Table 1: Operational Limit and Authorised Borrowing Limits 
(Prudential Indicators 10 and 11) 

 
 2008/09 

£’million 
2009/10 
£’million 

2010/11 
£’million 

2011/12 
£’million 

Borrowing 50.0 90 115 125 
Operational Boundary on Borrowing 50.0 90 115 120 
Authorised Limit (affordable limit) 150.0 200 200 200 

 
 

Adoption of the CIPFA Treasury Management Code (Prudential 
Indicator 13) 

Page 32



 - 3 - 

 
3.2 The authority has an integrated treasury management strategy and has 

adopted the CIPFA Code of Practice for Treasury Management in the 
Public Sector.  Treasury management creates the link between an 
authority’s CFR and the structure of its external debt. Like the operational 
boundary, these are of direct relevance to day to financial management.  

 
3.3 The new Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities 

supplements this by requiring council’s to calculate specific indicators to 
demonstrate the prudence of its treasury management policies. These are 
detailed below: 

 
Fixed Interest Exposure (Prudential Indicator 14) 

3.4  
 2008/09

Actual 
2009/10 
Estimate 

2010/11 
Estimate 

2011/12 
Estimate 

Fixed Rate 50 90 115 125 
 

This indicator will be reviewed in detail when the Council considers the 
option to reschedule its debt maturing in 2009/10.  

 
Variable Interest Exposure (Prudential Indicator 15) 

 
3.5 The Council will not be exposed to variable interest rate risk since all its 

borrowing has been at fixed rates. Should the Council borrow at variable 
rate, a 10% of portfolio upper limit will apply.   

 
Maturity Structure of Borrowing (Prudential Indicator 16) 
 

3.6 This prudential indicator deals with projected borrowing over the period 
and the rates that they will mature over the period. 

   
 Actual 

position 
Upper 
Limit 

Lower 
Limit 

Under 12 months 0% 10% 0% 
12 Months and within 24 months 0% 20% 0% 
24 months and within 5 years 40% 80% 0% 
5 years and within 10 years 20% 80% 0% 
10 years and above 40% 100% 0% 

  
Investments over 364 days (Prudential Indicator 17) 
 

3.7 The overriding objective of the investment strategy is to ensure that funds 
are available on a daily basis to meet the Council’s liabilities. The risk 
inherent in the maturity structure of the Council’s investments is that it may 
be forced to realise an investment before it reaches final maturity and thus 

Page 33



 - 4 - 

at a time when its value may be dependent on market conditions that 
cannot be known in advance. Taking into account the current level of 
investments, and future projections of capital expenditure, the following 
limits will be applied to sums invested: 

  
Table 2: Principle Sums Invested  

 
 2008/09 

£’million 
Estimate

2009/10 
£’million 
Estimate 

20010/11 
£’million 
Estimate 

Total Investments 
(average) 

125 102 103 

Maximum invested 
under 1 year  

125 102 103 

Maximum invested over 
1 year 

50 50 50 

Maximum invested over 
2 years 

20 20 20 

Maximum invested over 
3 years 

10 10 10 

 
3.8 These limits are derived from current projections on interest receipts and 

spending on the capital programme. They also include a level of 
contingency to take into account an element for new capital bids, and 
potential shortfalls in receipts from the disposals programme.  

4. Summary Assessment 
 
4.1 The Prudential Indicators confirm that the proposed treasury management 

strategy, in conjunction with the Council’s budget strategy and capital 
programme, is in compliance with the key themes of the Prudential Code, 
those being prudence, affordability and sustainability.  
 

4.2 The Council needs to confirm it is happy with the arrangements, whereby 
the Chief Financial Officer has authority, in exceptional circumstances, to 
borrow up to £200 million.  It is anticipated that in practice that such 
borrowing is unlikely to be necessary.  
 

4.3 The treasury management indicators will be regularly monitored 
throughout 2009/10.  
 

Page 34



1 

 Appendix B 
 
INTEREST RATE FORECASTS      
                                                                                        
Sector Treasury Services compile forecasts on interest rates that are key 
considerations for the Council’s Treasury Management Strategy. Appendix B 
draws together a number of current city forecasts for short term bank rate and 
longer term fixed interest rates. The table below give the Sector central view 
 
Sector View interest rate forecast: 
Sector’s view is that the bank rate will fall from current levels because of the 
intensifying global recession. Interest rates are expected to fall to 0.5% in Q1 
2009; it is then expected to remain there until starting to rise gently up from 
Q2 2010 till it reaches 4.0% in Q1 2012. There is a downside risk to these 
forecasts if the recession proves to be deeper and more prolonged than 
currently expected.  
                                                             

  

Q/E1 
2009 

% 

Q/E2 
2009 

% 

Q/E3 
2009 

% 

Q/E4 
2009 

% 

Q/E1 
2010 

% 

Q/E2 
2010 

% 

Q/E3 
2010

% 

Q/E4 
2010 

% 

Q/E1 
2011 

% 

Q/E2 
2011 

% 

Q/E3 
2011 

% 

Q/E4 
2011 

% 

Q/E1 
2012 

% 
Bank  
Rate  0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.75 1.00 1.25 1.75 2.50 3.25 3.75 4.00 

5 yr 
PWLB  2.50 2.25 2.15 2.15 2.15 2.45 2.80 3.15 3.65 3.95 4.29 4.45 4.601 

10yr 
PWLB 3.10 2.75 2.55 2.55 2.55 2.85 3.25 3.65 4.15 4.40 4.70 4.75 4.85 

25 yr 
PWLB 4.00 3.95 3.95 3.95 4.00 4.15 4.35 4.45 4.60 4.85 4.95 5.00 5.05 

50 yr 
PWLB 3.85 3.80 3.80 3.80 3.85 3.90 4.00 4.25 4.40 4.70 4.80 4.95 5.00 

 
 
 

 
Economic background  
 
The sub prime crisis of early 2008 was supplanted by the banking crisis of 
autumn 2008. This section summarises some of the key developments. 
 
UK 
� GDP: growth was already slowing in 2008 from 2007 before the full 

impact of the credit crunch was felt 
� Growth slowed across the economy and unemployment rose throughout 

the year with forecasts of continued increase through 2010. 
� Bank lending came to a virtual standstill in the autumn as the credit 

crunch tightened its grip and various banks internationally had to be 
rescued, or supported, by their governments. 

� The Government and Bank of England supplied massive amounts of 
liquidity to the banking market in an attempt to reignite longer interbank 
lending. 

� The Government took action in September to either supply finance itself 
to recapitalise some of the major clearing banks or to require the others 
to strengthen their capital ratios by their own capital raising efforts.  This 

Page 35



2 

was so that these banks would be seen to have sufficient reserves to last 
through the coming recession with its inevitable increase in bad loans 
etc. 

� The housing market also came to a virtual standstill as lenders 
demanded larger deposits and higher fees.  House sales and prices both 
dropped sharply. 

� U.K. equity prices declined sharply in the 3rd and 4th quarters as the 
impending recession was priced into the markets.  Prices hit five year 
lows and volatility was extremely high. It was the strength of the banking 
crisis, pre-empted by the collapse of Lehman in New York that eventually 
drove the MPC to cut interest rates  

� The LIBOR spread over Bank Rate has also been a feature, and a 
concern, of 2008/9. Because of the credit fears and reluctance of lenders 
to place cash for long periods. 

 
International  

� Early in 2008, the US economy was being badly affected by the housing 
market slump. 

� The second quarter of 2008/9 was torn between inflation worries on the 
one hand, with oil rising towards $150 per barrel, and the deteriorating 
economic outlook on the other. 

� In the second and third quarters of the year the financial crisis erupted 
and escalated as the world became aware of the extent of the sub-prime 
fiasco and the impact it was having on institutions that had invested in 
these issues. 

� In September Fannie Mae/Freddie Mac (the mortgage banks) and AIG, 
the insurance giant, had to be bailed out by the US Federal Government. 

� Then in mid September, Lehman Bros., the investment bank, was 
allowed to fail.  This triggered a domino effect with other banks and 
financial institutions having to be rescued or supported by governments 
around the world. 

� After the collapse into receivership of the Icelandic banks in early 
October, other countries then started to feel the strain and a number had 
to approach the IMF for support. 

� The financial crisis had therefore precipitated an economic crisis and 
there was a co-ordinated global interest rate cut with the Fed, ECB and 
MPC all cutting rates by 50bp on 8th October.  The Fed subsequently cut 
rates again by 50bp to 1% on 29th October and again on 16 December to 
a band of 0.0% to 0.25% in an attempt to stave off the oncoming 
recession.  Inflation was yesterday’s problem. 

 

Page 36



1 

          Appendix C 
  
Specified Investments: 
 
The classification of investments as specified and non-specified is constantly 
reviewed. The Chief Financial Officer ensures that investment products are 
fully understood and the risks and compliance with CIPFA Code of Practice 
on Treasury Management is full appraised and understood. 
 
The choice of minimum credit rating criteria has been set in consultation with 
the Council’s treasury management advisers. 
 
All investments which fall under the classification of specified investments will 
be sterling denominated and have maturities up to maximum of 364 days, 
meeting the minimum ‘high’ rating criteria at the time of investment.  

 
 Minimum Credit Criteria 

 
Max. 

PERIOD 
Organisation 

Short-term Long-term  Individual Support 
Rating  

Use 

Under 3 
months 

F1 or 
equivalent 

A C 

3 

In-house 
and Fund 
Managers 

Over 3 
months 
but under 
365 days 

 
 
 
 
Term deposits – 
banks and 
building societies 

F1 or 
equivalent 

 

AA- B 

2 

In-house 
and Fund 
Managers 

Certificates of 
deposits issued 
by banks and 
building societies 

F1 or 
equivalent 

A C 2 Fund 
Managers 

Structured 
deposits  

F1 or 
equivalent 

A C 
 

2 In-house 
and Fund 
Managers 

Term deposits – 
UK government 

Govt Backed-not credit rated In-house 

Term deposits – 
other Local 
Authorities  

High Security – although not credit rated In-house 

Term deposits – 
UK Nationalised 
banks and 
building societies 

F1      Government Backed In-house 
and Fund 
Managers 

Page 37



2 

Debt 
Management 
Agency Deposit 
Facility 
 

Govt Backed Agency -not credit rated 
 

In-house 
and Fund 
Managers 

Money Market 
Funds 

AAA In- house 
and Fund 
Managers 

UK Government 
Gilts 

AAA Fund 
Managers 

Gilt Funds and 
Bond Funds 

 long-term AA Fund 
Managers 

Treasury Bills Govt Backed-Not Credit Rated Fund 
Managers 

Short term funds  AAA Fund 
Managers 

Pooled funds  AAA Fund 
Managers 

 
Non-Specified Investments:  
Where investments are held for longer than 365 days they are classified as 
Non-specified Investments. Strong credit quality is a major factor in the choice 
of lender. 
 
A maximum of 75% will be held in aggregate in non-specified investments 

 
 Minimum Credit Criteria 

 
Use Max. maturity 

period 
Organisation 

Short-
term 

Long-
term  

Individual Support 
Rating 

Max 5 of total 
council 

investments 
In-house 5 Years Term deposits – UK 

government (with 
maturities in excess of 1 
year) 

Govt Backed-Not Credit Rated 

 25% 

In-house 5 Years Term deposits – other 
LAs (with maturities in 
excess of 1 year) 

High Security – although not 
Credit rated  25% 

In-house 5 Years Term deposits – banks 
and building societies 
(with maturities in 
excess of 1 year) 

F1+ 
 

AA or 
equivalent 

B 
 

2 25% 

Fund 
managers 

5 Years Certificates of deposits 
issued by banks and 
building societies 

F1,or 
equivalent 

  

2 75% 

Page 38



3 

10 Years UK Government Gilts 
with maturities in excess 
of 1 year 

AAA Fund 
Managers 75% 

In-house 5 Years Structured deposits with 
variable rates and 
variable maturities – 
callable  and flappable 
deposits, range trades 
and snowballs  

F1+ 
 

AA or 
equivalent 

B 

2 25% 

Fund 
Managers 

5 Years Pooled Funds various  
 

F1+ 
 

AA or 
equivalent 

B 

2 75% 

10 Years Bonds issued by 
multilateral development 
banks  

AAA  
 

Government 
guarantee 

In-house 
on a ‘buy-
and-hold’ 
basis. Also 
for use by 
fund 
managers 

75% 

10 Years Bonds issued by a 
financial institution which 
is guaranteed by the UK 
government 

AAA In-house on a ‘buy-and-
hold’ basis. Also for use 
by fund managers 

75% 

10 Years Sovereign bond issues 
(i.e. other than the UK 
govt) 

AAA  Fund Managers 

75% 
 
Alternative Credit ratings available from Moody’s & Standard & poor  
Eg Ftich F1- Moody’s P1 , Fitch A – Moody’s Aa3 
 
Key 
Short Term Ratings – F1 – Indicates the strongest capacity for timely repayment 
Long Term Ratings – A – Capacity for payment of commitments considered strong 
   AA – Very strong capacity for payment of commitments 

AAA –Exceptionally strong capacity for payment of 
commitments 

 
Individual Rating   B – Strong organisation , no major concerns . 

C – Adequate organisation , some concerns regarding its 
profitability and Balance sheet. 

Support Rating  2 – High probability of external support 
   3 – Moderate probability of support 

Page 39



Page 40

This page is intentionally left blank



           Appendix D                       
2009/10 TREASURY MANAGEMENT PRACTICES 

 
Treasury Management Practices (TMPs) set out the manner in which the Council will seek 
to achieve its treasury management polices and objectives and how it will manage and 
control those activities. 
 
TMP 1 Treasury risk management   

TMP 2 Best value and performance measurement  

TMP 3 Decision–making and analysis  

TMP 4 Approved instruments, methods and techniques   

TMP 5 Organisation, clarity and segregation of responsibilities, and dealing arrangements 

TMP 6 Reporting requirements and management information arrangements   

TMP 7 Budgeting, accounting and audit arrangements  

TMP 8 Cash and cash flow management     

TMP 9 Money laundering     

TMP 10 Staff training and qualifications   

TMP 11 Use of external service providers  

TMP 12 Corporate governance   

 

 

Page 41



2009/10 LBBD Treasury Management Practices 

  2 

1. TMP1 RISK MANAGEMENT 

1.1. General Statement 
It is the responsibility of the Divisional Director Corporate Finance and relevant 
delegated officers, to design, implement and monitor all arrangements for the 
identification, management and control of treasury management risk and report at 
least annually on the adequacy/suitability thereof. The Divisional Director Corporate 
Finance will report, as a matter of urgency, the circumstances of any actual or likely 
difficulty in achieving the Council’s objectives in this respect. This will be done in 
accordance with the procedures set out in TMP6 Reporting requirements and 
management information arrangements.   

1.2. Liquidity 
The Council will ensure it has adequate, though not excessive cash resources, 
borrowing arrangements, overdraft or standby facilities to enable it at all times to 
have the level of funds available to it which are necessary for the achievement of its 
service objectives. 

1.3. Interest rates 
The Council will manage its exposure to fluctuations in interest rates with a view to 
containing its interest costs, or securing its interest revenues, in accordance with 
the amounts provided in its budgetary arrangements as amended in accordance 
with TMP6 Reporting requirements and management information arrangements 
The Council will achieve the above objectives by the prudent use of its approved 
financing and investment instruments, methods and techniques primarily to create 
stability and certainty of costs and revenues, but at the same time retaining a 
sufficient degree of flexibility to take advantage of unexpected, potentially 
advantageous changes in the level or structure of interest rates, exchange rates or 
inflation.  These policies will be established each year through the approval by the 
Council of the indicators required under The Prudential Code for Capital Finance in 
Local Authorities.   
It is not Council’s policy not to use financial derivatives and other instruments for 
interest rate management. 

1.4. Exchange rates 
The nature of the Council’s activities means that it is unlikely that it will be exposed 
to exchange rate risks.   It could, however, arise from the receipt of income or the 
incurring of expenditure in a currency other than sterling.  
Where there is a contractual obligation to receive income or make a payment in a 
currency other than sterling at a date in the future, forward foreign exchange 
transactions will be considered, with professional advice, to comply with this full 
cover hedging policy. Unexpected receipt of foreign currency income will be 
converted to sterling at the earliest opportunity unless the Council has a contractual 
obligation to make a payment in the same currency at a date in the future. In this 
instance, the currency will be held on deposit to meet this expenditure commitment.  

Page 42



2009/10 LBBD Treasury Management Practices 

  3 

1.5. Inflation  
The effects of varying levels of inflation, insofar as they can be identified as 
impacting directly on its treasury management activities, will be controlled by the 
Council as an integral part of its overall exposure to inflation. Inflation both current 
and projected will form part of the debt and investment decision-making criteria both 
within the strategy and operational considerations. During periods of unexpected, 
potentially advantageous changes in the level or structure of inflation. The key 
consideration is that investments reap the highest real rate of return while taking 
into consideration risk, with debt costing the lowest real cost, consistent with other 
risks mentioned within this section. 

1.6. Credit and Counter-party Policies 
The Council regards a prime objective of its treasury management activities to be 
the security of the principal sums it invests. Accordingly, it will ensure that its 
counter-party lists and limits reflect a prudent attitude towards organizations with 
which funds may be deposited, and will limit its investment activities to the 
instruments, methods and techniques referred to in TMP4. It also recognises the 
need to have, and will therefore maintain, a formal counter-party policy in respect of 
those organisations from which it may borrow, or with whom it may enter into other 
financing arrangements.  This is set out in Schedule TMP1 

1.7. Refinancing 
The Council will ensure that its borrowing, private financing and partnership 
arrangements are negotiated, structured and documented, and the maturity profile 
of the money so raised are managed with a view to obtaining offer terms for 
renewal or refinancing, if required, which are competitive and as favourable as can 
reasonably be achieved in the light of market conditions prevailing at the time. 
It will actively manage its relationships with its counter-parties in these transactions 
in such a manner as to secure this objective and will avoid over-reliance on any one 
source of funding if this might jeopardise achievement of the above. 
The affordability of the revenue consequences of capital financing will be assessed 
through compliance The Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities. 

1.8. Legal and Regulatory 
This Council will ensure that all of its treasury management activities comply with its 
statutory powers and regulatory requirements. It will demonstrate such compliance, 
if required to do so, to all parties with whom it deals in such activities. In framing its 
credit and counterparty policy under TMP 1 (credit and counterparty risk 
management), it will ensure that there is evidence of counterparties’ powers, 
authority and compliance in respect of the transactions they may effect with the 
Council, particularly with regard to duty of care and fees charged. 
The Council recognises that future legislative or regulatory changes may impact on 
its treasury management activities and, so far as it is reasonably able to do so, will 
seek to minimise the risk of these impacting adversely on the Council. The Council 
will report such changes in its annual treasury management strategy.     

1.9. Fraud, Error and Corruption, and Contingency Management 
The Council will ensure that it has identified the circumstances which may expose it 
to the risk of loss through fraud, error, corruption or other eventualities in its 

Page 43



2009/10 LBBD Treasury Management Practices 

  4 

treasury management dealings. Accordingly, it will employ suitable systems and 
procedures, and will maintain effective contingency management arrangements, to 
these ends. 

1.10. Market Value of Investments 
This Council will seek to ensure that its stated treasury management policies and 
objectives will not be compromised by adverse market fluctuations in the value of 
the principal sums it invests, and will accordingly seek to protect it from the effects 
of such fluctuations. 

 
2. TMP 2 VALUE FOR MONEY AND PERFORMANCE MEASUREMENTS  
2.1. This organisation is committed to the pursuit of value for money in its treasury 

management activities, and to the use of performance methodology in support of 
that aim, within the framework set out in its treasury management policy statement. 

 
2.3. Accordingly, the treasury management function will be the subject of ongoing 

analysis of the value it adds in support of the organisation’s stated business or 
service objectives.  It will be the subject of regular examination of alternative 
methods of service delivery, of the availability of fiscal or other grant or subsidy 
incentives, and of the scope for other potential improvements.  
 

2.3. The Council’s policy is to appoint full-time professional cash/external investment 
fund managers to manage surplus funds beyond the core funds that it manages 
itself. It will comply with the Local Organisations (Contracting out of Investment 
Functions) Order 1996 [SI 1996 No 1883]. The Code of Practice places an 
obligation on the organisation to monitor the performance of the fund managers.   
The Council has appointed Sector Treasury Services Limited to assist in this 
respect. 

 

3. TMP 3 DECISION-MAKING AND ANALYSIS 
 
3.1. The Council will maintain full records of its treasury management decisions, and of 

the processes and practices applied in reaching those decisions, both for the 
purposes of learning from the past, and for demonstrating that reasonable steps 
were taken to ensure that all issues relevant to those decisions were taken into 
account at the time.  The factors that should be taken in to account are set in 
Schedule TMP 5. 

 

4. TMP 4 APPROVED INSTRUMENTS, METHODS AND TECHNIQUES 
 
4.1. The Council will undertake its treasury management activities within the limits and 

parameters defined in TMP1 Risk Management.   
 
4.2. From April 2004 the choice of instruments has been determined the Annual 

Investment Strategy that complies with guidance issued by the Secretary of State. 
 

Page 44



2009/10 LBBD Treasury Management Practices 

  5 

5. TMP 5 ORGANISATION, CLARITY AND SEGREGATION OF RESPONSIBILITIES, 
AND DEALING ARRANGEMENTS 

 
5.1. The Council considers it essential, for the purposes of the effective control and 

monitoring of its treasury management activities, for the reduction of the risk of 
fraud or error, and for the pursuit of optimum performance, that these activities are 
structured and managed in a fully integrated manner, and that there is at all times a 
clarity of treasury management responsibilities. 

 
5.2. The principle on which this will be based is a clear distinction between those 

charged with setting treasury management policies the Divisional Director 
Corporate Finance and those charged with implementing and controlling these 
policies, particularly with regard to the execution and transmission of funds, the 
recording and administering of treasury management decisions, and the audit and 
review of the treasury manager and relevant treasury management staff. This is 
achieved by the Statement of Duties/Responsibilities for Each Treasury Post set out 
in Schedule TMP 5 

 
5.3. If and when the Council intends, as a result of lack of resources or other 

circumstances, to depart from these principles, the Treasury Manager will ensure 
that the reasons are properly reported in accordance with TMP6 and the 
implications properly considered and evaluated. 

 
5.4. The Treasury Manager will ensure that there are clear written statements of the 

responsibilities for each post engaged in treasury management, and the 
arrangements for absence cover. 
 

5.5. The Treasury Manager will ensure there is proper documentation for all deals and 
transactions, and that procedures exist for the effective transmission of funds. 
 

5.6. The Treasury Manager will fulfil all delegated responsibilities in accordance with the 
organisation's policy and TMPs and, if a CIPFA member, the Standard of 
Professional Practice on Treasury Management. 

 
5.7. It is also the responsibility of the Treasury Manager to ensure that the Organisation 

complies with the requirements of The Non Investment Products Code (formerly 
known as The London Code of Conduct) for principals and broking firms in the 
wholesale markets. 

 

6. TMP 6 REPORTING REQUIREMENTS AND MANAGEMENT INFORMATION 
ARRANGMENTS 

 
6.1. The Council will ensure that regular reports are prepared and considered on the 

implementation of its treasury management policies; on the effects of decisions 
taken and transactions executed in pursuit of those policies; on the implications of 
changes, particularly budgetary, resulting from regulatory, economic, market or 
other factors affecting its treasury management activities; and on the performance 
of the treasury management function. 

6.2. As a minimum, the Council will receive: 

Page 45



2009/10 LBBD Treasury Management Practices 

  6 

• an annual report on the strategy and plan to be pursued in the coming year;  

• an annual report on the performance of the treasury management function, on 
the effects of the decisions taken and the transactions executed in the past year, 
and on any circumstances of non-compliance with the organisation's treasury 
management policy statement and TMPs. 

• An annual investment strategy setting out the procedures for determining the 
use of each class of investment and appropriate limits to be applied to each 
class. 

6.3. The content of these reports is set out in Schedule TMP6 
 

7. TMP 7 BUDGETING, ACCOUNTING AND AUDIT ARRANGEMENTS 
 
7.1. The Divisional Director Corporate Finance will prepare, and the Council will approve 

and, if necessary, from time to time amend, an annual budget for treasury 
management function, together with associated income. The matters to be included 
in the budget will at minimum be those required by statute or regulation, together 
with such information as will demonstrate compliance with TMP1 Risk 
management, TMP2 Best Value and Performance Measurement, and TMP4 
Approved instruments, methods and techniques. The Treasury Manager will 
exercise effective controls over this budget, and will report upon and recommend 
any changes required in accordance with TMP6 Reporting requirements and 
management information arrangements. 

7.2. The Council will account for its treasury management activities, for decisions made 
and transactions executed, in accordance with appropriate accounting practices 
and standards, and with statutory and regulatory requirements in force for the time 
being. 

7.3. The Council will ensure that its auditors, and those charged with regulatory review, 
have access to all information and papers supporting the activities of the treasury 
management function as are necessary for the proper fulfilment of their roles, and 
that such information and papers demonstrate compliance with external and 
internal policies and approved practices. 

8. TMP 8 CASH AND CASH FLOW MANAGEMENT 
8.1. Unless statutory or regulatory requirements demand otherwise, all monies in the 

hands of this organisation will be under the control of the responsible officer, and 
will be aggregated for cash flow and investment management purposes.  Cash flow 
projections will be prepared on a regular and timely basis, and the Treasury 
Manager will ensure that these are adequate for the purposes of monitoring 
compliance with TMP1 liquidity risk management.   

9. TMP 9 MONEY LAUNDERING 
9.1. The Council is alert to the possibility that it may become the subject of an attempt to 

involve it in a transaction involving the laundering of money.  Accordingly, it will 
maintain procedures for verifying and recording the identity of counterparties and 
reporting suspicions, and will ensure that staffs involved in this are properly trained. 
The present arrangements are detailed in Schedule TMP 9 

 

Page 46



2009/10 LBBD Treasury Management Practices 

  7 

10. TMP 10 STAFF TRAINING AND QUALIFICATIONS 
10.1. This Council recognises the importance of ensuring that all staff involved in the 

treasury management functions are fully equipped to undertake the duties and 
responsibilities allocated to them.  It will therefore seek to appoint individuals who 
are both capable and experienced and will provide training for staff to enable them 
to acquire and maintain an appropriate level of expertise, knowledge and skills.  
The responsible officer will recommend and implement the necessary 
arrangements.  

 
 Statement of Professional Practice 
 
10.2. The Divisional Director Corporate Finance has a professional obligation to be 

committed to professional responsibilities through both personal compliance and by 
ensuring that relevant staffs are appropriately trained.  

 
10.2. Other staff involved in treasury management activities who are members of various 

professional accounting bodies must also comply with the CIPFA Statement of 
Professional Practice. 

 

11.   TMP 11 USE OF EXTERNAL SERVICE PROVIDERS 
11.1. The Council recognises the potential value of employing external providers of 

treasury management services, in order to acquire access to specialist skills and 
resources.  When it employs such service providers, it will ensure it does so for 
reasons that will have been submitted to a full evaluation of the costs and benefits.  
It will also ensure that the terms of their appointment and the methods by which 
their value will be assessed are properly agreed and documented, and subjected to 
regular review.  And it will ensure, where feasible and necessary, that a spread of 
service providers is used, to avoid over reliance on one or a small number of 
companies.  Where services are subject to formal tender or re-tender 
arrangements, the Council’s procurement and legislative requirements will always 
be observed.  

 

12.   TMP 12 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
12.1. The Council is committed to the pursuit of proper corporate governance throughout 

its business and services, and to establishing the principles and practices by which 
this can be achieved.  Accordingly, the treasury management function and its 
activities will be undertaken with openness and transparency, honesty, integrity and 
accountability. 
 

12.2. This organisation has adopted and has implemented the key recommendations of 
the Code of Practice on Corporate Governance.  This, together with the other 
arrangements which will be detailed in the schedule to the TMP’s, are considered 
vital to the achievement of proper corporate governance in treasury management, 
and the responsible officer will monitor and, if and when necessary, report upon the 
effectiveness of these arrangements. 

 
 
 

Page 47



2009/10 LBBD Treasury Management Practices 

  8 

TREASURY MANAGEMENT PRACTICE SCHEDULES  

SCHEDULE TMP 1    
Criteria to Be Used For Creating/ Managing Approved Counterparty Lists/Limits 
 
The Divisional Director Corporate Finance will formulate suitable criteria for assessing and 
monitoring the credit risk of investment counterparties and shall construct a lending list 
comprising time, type, sector and specific counterparty limits.   
The Divisional Director Corporate Finance is responsible for applying the stated credit 
rating criteria  for selecting approved counterparties, and will add or delete counterparties 
as appropriate to / from the approved counterparty list when there is a change in the credit 
ratings of individual counterparties or in banking structures e.g. on mergers or takeovers.  
Treasury management staff will add or delete counterparties to/from the approved 
counterparty list in line with the policy on criteria for selection of counterparties.   
 
The following organizations are to be approved organizations for investment purposes:- 

• UK Local Authorities 

• UK Clearing banks and Building Societies with a FITCH Short Term Credit 
Rating of F1 or above 

• Any foreign bank on the Bank of England’s Banking Act 1987: Authorised 
Institutions List with a FITCH Short Term Credit Rating of F1. The Council’s 
internal treasury team does not invest in foreign banks.  

• Any other body approved in The Local Authorities (Capital Finance) (Approved 
Instruments) Regulations 1990 

In practice, the in-house team will only invest in UK institutions. External fund manager 
can invest in foreign banks provided they operate within the criteria set in the Council’s 
treasury management strategy.  
The maximum period and level for investments will set by the Divisional Director Corporate 
Finance. 

SCHEDULE   TMP3   

Issues to be addressed in decision making. 

In respect of every decision made the organisation will: 
 

• Above all be clear about the nature and extent of the risks to which the organisation 
may become exposed 

• Be certain about the legality of the decision reached and the nature of the 
transaction, and that all authorities to proceed have been obtained 

• Be content that the documentation is adequate both to deliver the organisation’s 
objectives and protect the organisation’s interests, and to deliver good 
housekeeping 

• Ensure that third parties are judged satisfactory in the context of the organisation’s 
creditworthiness policies, and that limits have not been exceeded 

Page 48



2009/10 LBBD Treasury Management Practices 

  9 

• Be content that the terms of any transactions have been fully checked against the 
market, and have been found to be competitive. 

 
In respect of borrowing and other funding decisions, the organisation will: 
 

• Evaluate the economic and market factors that might influence the manner and 
timing of any decision to fund 

• Consider the merits and demerits of alternative forms of funding, including funding 
from revenue, leasing and private partnerships 

• Consider the alternative interest rate bases available, the most appropriate periods 
to fund and repayment profiles to use.  

• Consider the ongoing revenue liabilities created, and the implications for the 
organisation’s future plans and budgets. 

In respect of investment decisions, the organisation will: 
• Consider the optimum period, in the light of cash flow availability and prevailing 

market conditions 

• Consider the alternative investment products and techniques available, especially 
the implications of using any which may expose the organisation to changes in the 
value of its capital. 

SCHEDULE   TMP5   

STATEMENT OF DUTIES/RESPONSIBILITIES OF EACH TREASURY POST 
The Divisional Director Corporate Finance and S151 Officer 
The responsibilities of this post will be to: - 

• In setting the prudential indicators, the Divisional Director Corporate Finance will be 
responsible for ensuring that all matters are taken into account and reported to the 
Council so as to ensure the Council ‘s financial plans are affordable, prudent and 
sustainable in the long term 

• Establish a measurement and reporting process that highlights significant variations 
from expectations  

• Recommend clauses, treasury management policy / practices for approval, 
reviewing the same regularly , and monitoring compliance 

• Submit regular treasury management policy reports to the Executive of the Council 
as appropriate. 

• Submit budgets and budget variations 

• Receive and review management information reports 

• Review the performance of the treasury management function and promote best 
value reviews 

• Ensure the adequacy of treasury management resources and skills, and the 
effective division of responsibilities within the treasury management function 

• Ensure the adequacy of internal audit, and liaising with external audit 

Page 49



2009/10 LBBD Treasury Management Practices 

  10 

• Ensuring that the system is specified and implemented 

• Recommend the appointment of external service providers. 
The Divisional Director Corporate Finance has delegated powers through this policy to 
take the most appropriate form of borrowing from the approved sources, and to take the 
most appropriate form of investments in approved instruments. 
The Divisional Director Corporate Finance may delegate his power to borrow and invest to 
members of his staff.  The Group Manager Accounting and Technical, Treasury & 
Pensions Manager,  Treasury Accountant or staff authorised to act as temporary cover for 
leave and sickness. All transactions must be authorised by at least two of the named 
officers above. 
The Divisional Director Corporate Finance and the Divisional Director Legal and 
Democratic Services (as the Monitoring Officer) will ensure that the Policy is adhered to, 
and if not will bring the matter to the attention of elected members as soon as possible.  
Prior to entering into any capital financing, lending or investment transaction, it is the 
responsibility of the Divisional Director Corporate Finance to be satisfied, by reference to 
the Divisional Director Legal and Democratic Services and external advisors as 
appropriate, that the proposed transaction does not breach any statute, external regulation 
or the Council’s Financial Regulations 
It is also the responsibility of the Divisional Director Corporate Finance to ensure that the 
Organisation complies with the requirements of The Non Investment Products Code 
(formerly known as The London Code of Conduct) for principals and broking firms in the 
wholesale markets. 
 
Treasury Manager  
The responsibilities of this post will be: - 

• Adherence to agreed policies and limits 

• Managing the overall treasury management function 

• Supervising treasury management staff 

• Ensuring appropriate segregation of duties 

• Monitoring performance on a day-to-day basis  

• Submitting management information reports to the Divisional Director Corporate 
Finance  

• Maintaining relationships with third parties and external service providers and 
reviewing their performance 

• Identifying and recommending opportunities for improved practices. 
 
The Divisional Director Legal and Democratic Services (as Monitoring Officer) 
The responsibilities of this post will be: - 

• Being satisfied that any proposal to vary treasury policy or practice complies with 
law or any code of practice 

• Giving advice to the Divisional Director Corporate Finance when advice is sought. 

Page 50



2009/10 LBBD Treasury Management Practices 

  11 

 
SCHEDULE TMP6 

Information Requirements 

Annual Treasury Management Strategy Statement 
The Treasury Management Strategy sets out the specific expected treasury activities for 
the forthcoming financial year. This Strategy will be submitted to the Executive for 
approval before the commencement of each financial year.  
The formulation of the annual Treasury Management Strategy involves determining the 
appropriate borrowing and investment decisions in the light of the anticipated movement in 
both fixed and shorter -term variable interest rates.   
The Treasury Management Strategy will establish the expected move in interest rates 
against alternatives (using all available information such as published interest rate 
forecasts where applicable), and highlight sensitivities to different scenarios.  
The Treasury Management Strategy Statement will include specific reference to the need 
to comply with the balanced budget requirement per the Local Government Finance Act 
1992 Section 33.  S32 also requires a local authority to calculate its budget requirement 
for each financial year including the revenue costs which flow from capital financing 
decisions.  Considerations of these costs will be informed by the indicators that have to be 
calculated according the CIPFA’s Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities. 

ANNUAL REPORT ON TREASURY MANAGEMENT ACTIVITY 
An annual report will be presented at the earliest practicable meeting after the end of the 
financial year, but in any case by the end of September.  This report will include the 
following: -  

• a comprehensive picture for the financial year of all treasury policies, plans, 
activities and results 

• transactions executed and their revenue (current) effects 

• report on risk implications of decisions taken and transactions executed 

• monitoring of compliance with approved policy, practices and statutory / regulatory 
requirements 

• monitoring of compliance with powers delegated to officers 

• degree of compliance with the original strategy and explanation of deviations 

• explanation of future impact of decisions taken on the organisation 

• measurements of performance 

• report on compliance with CIPFA Code recommendations 
 
SCHEDULE TMP 9 

Procedures for Establishing Identity / Authenticity of Lenders 
 
The Council does not accept loans from individuals.  Decision to borrow will be done in 
consultation with the Council’s treasury management advisers. All loans are obtained from 

Page 51



2009/10 LBBD Treasury Management Practices 

  12 

the PWLB or from authorised institutions under the Banking Act 1987:  (the names of 
these institutions appeared on the Bank of England quarterly list of authorised institutions 
until 1.12.2001 when the Financial Services Authority (FSA) took over the responsibility for 
maintaining a register of authorised institutions.  This register can be accessed through 
their website on www.fsa.gov.uk).  
 
 
 

Page 52



 

THE EXECUTIVE 
 

17 February 2009 
 

REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES 
 
Title: Budget Monitoring Report December 2008/2009 For Decision 
 
Summary:  
 
The report updates the Executive on the Council’s revenue and capital position for the 
period April to December of the 2008/09 financial year. 
 
The current forecast across the Council in respect of its revenue budget has identified 
projected in-year pressures amounting to £2.5million. The areas of pressure are currently 
within the Children’s Services (£3million) and Regeneration Services (£58k) which are 
offset by projected underspends in Resources (£400k) and Customer Services (£131k). 
Overall the December position reflects a £400k improvement from the position reported in 
November.  
 
The largest pressure continues to remain within the Children’s Services department, where 
significant budget pressures exist from Looked after Children Placements and in meeting 
the Councils’ Leaving Care responsibilities. In order to deliver a balanced budget by the 
year end, an action plan was agreed at the Executive meeting on the 14th October 2008 
requiring in-year savings to be achieved across all service departments and a provision for 
a contribution from Corporate contingencies and balances. 
 
All departments are addressing both their own pressures and the approved action plan so 
that they produce the necessary balanced budget by the year end. The outcomes and 
progress of these action plans will be monitored and reported to both the Resource 
Monitoring panels and the Executive through the regular budget monitoring meetings and 
reports.  
 
For the Housing Revenue Account the forecast is that the year end working balance will be 
in line with the budget projection of £3.2million.  
 
In regard to the Capital programme, the current working budget is £91.8million with a 
projected spend of £89.6m. Directors have been and are continuing to review the delivery 
of individual capital schemes to ensure maximum spend is achieved by the year end. 
 
Wards Affected:  This is a regular budget monitoring report of the Council’s resource 
position and applies to all wards. 
 
 
Recommendations 
 
The Executive is asked to: 
 
1. note the current position of the Council’s revenue and capital budget as at 31st 

December 2008 (Appendix A and C and Sections 3 and 5 of the report); 
 

AGENDA ITEM 6

Page 53



 

 
2. note that where pressures and targets exist, Directors continue to identify and 

implement the necessary action plans to alleviate these budget pressures to ensure 
that the necessary balanced budget for the Council is achieved by year end (section 
3 of the report); 

 
3. agree the necessary budget adjustments from the contingency budget as set out in 

paragraph 3.6.9; 
 
4. note the position and projected out-turn for the Housing Revenue Account (Appendix 

B and Section 4 of the report); 
 
5. note the prudential indicators for April to December 2008 (section 6 of the report and 

Appendix D); and 
 
6. note the third quarter financial health indicators (section 7 of the report and Appendix 

E). 
 
 
Reason  
 
As a matter of good financial practise, the Executive should be regularly updated with the 
position on the Council’s budget. 
 
Implications: 
 
Financial:  
The overall revenue budget for December 2008 is indicating budget pressures totalling 
£2.5million. Where pressures and targets exist Directors are required to identify and 
implement the necessary action plans to alleviate these pressures. The working capital 
programme is now reported at £91.8million with a projected spend of £89.6m (98% of the 
budget). 
 
Legal: 
There are no legal implications regarding this report. 
 
Risk Management: 
The risk to the Council is that budgets are overspent and that this reduces the Council’s 
overall resource position. Where there is an indication that a budget may overspend by the 
year end the relevant Director will be required to review the Departmental budget position 
to achieve a balanced position by the year end. This may involve the need to produce a 
formal action plan to ensure delivery of this position for approval and monitoring by the 
Resource Monitoring Panel and the Executive. 
Similarly, if there are underspends this may mean a lower level of service or capital 
investment not being fully delivered. Specific procedures and sanctions are in place 
through the Resource Monitoring Panels, Capital Programme Management Office 
(CPMO), Corporate Management Team and the Executive. 
 
Social Inclusion and Diversity: 
As this report does not concern a new or revised policy there are no specific adverse 
impacts insofar as this report is concerned. 
 

Page 54



 

 
Crime and Disorder: 
There are no specific implications insofar as this report is concerned. 
 
Options Appraisal: 
There are no specific implications insofar as this report is concerned. 
 
 
Contact Officer 
Joe Chesterton 
 
 
Lee Russell 

 
Title: 
Divisional Director - 
Corporate Finance 
 
Group Manager -  
Resources & Budgeting 

 
Contact Details: 
Tel:020 8227 2932 
E-mail: joe.chesterton@lbbd.gov.uk 
 
Tel: 020 8227 2966 
E-mail: lee.russell@lbbd.gov.uk 

 
1.  Introduction and Background 
 
1.1 It is important that the Council regularly monitors its revenue and capital budgets to 

ensure good financial management. It is now practise within the Council for this 
monitoring to occur on a regular monthly basis, which helps members to be 
constantly updated on the Council’s overall financial position and to enable the 
Executive to make relevant decisions as necessary on the direction of both the 
revenue and capital budgets. 

 
1.2 The report is based upon the core information contained in the Oracle general 

ledger system supplemented by detailed examinations of budgets between the 
budget holders and the relevant Finance teams to take account of commitments 
and projected end of year positions. In addition, for capital monitoring there is the 
extensive work carried out by the Capital Programme Management Office (CPMO). 

 
1.3 The monthly Resource Monitoring Panels, chaired by the lead member for finance, 

and attended by Directors and Heads of Service, monitors the detail of individual 
departments’ revenue and capital budgets alongside relevant performance data and 
this also enhances and forms the basis of this report. 

 
2. Current Position 
 
2.1 Overview for Revenue Budget 
 
2.1.1 The current forecast across the Council in respect of its revenue budget has 

identified the following position: 
 
Department/Service 

December 
Position 

Targeted 
Outturn 

 £’000 £’000 
Adult & Community Services 0 (600) 
Children’s Services 3,021 3,021 
Customer Services (131) (600) 
Regeneration 58 (300) 
Resources (400) (400) 
Forecasted Outturn 2,548 1,121 
Use of Corporate Contingencies and Balances (1,121) (1,121) 
Action required 1,427 0 

 

Page 55



 

 
The largest pressure is within the Children’s Services department where significant 
budget pressures exist from Looked after Children Placements, and in meeting the 
Councils’ Leaving Care responsibilities.  On the basis of existing commitments and 
projections to the end of the financial year, the forecast overspend in this area is 
£3.6million. 

 
2.1.2 In order to deliver a Council balanced budget by the year end, an action plan was 

agreed at the Executive meeting on the 14th October requiring in-year savings to be 
achieved across all service departments as well as a provision for a contribution from 
Corporate contingencies and balances.  

 
2.1.3 Details of each department’s current financial position are provided in Section 3 of 

this report. In those areas where budget pressures have been highlighted, continual 
work is being undertaken by Corporate Directors and their management teams to 
ensure their targeted outturn is produced for the year end. To this end, Corporate 
Directors are delivering action plans to address and rectify these pressure areas 
and these plans will be actively monitored by the various Resource Monitoring 
Panels through the final phase of the financial year. 

 
3. Service Position 
 
3.1 General 
 
3.1.1 Details of each Department’s current financial position and the work being undertaken 

by Corporate Directors and their management teams, to ensure a balanced budget is 
produced for the year end, are provided in this section of the report.  

 
3.2 Adult and Community Services Department 
 
3.2.1 The Adult and Community Services budget position at the end of December 

remains challenging but continues to improve. The Department is currently 
projecting a break-even position for the year which represents a further 
improvement from last months’ position (£125k overspend) and from its peak of 
£900k earlier in the year. The reduction is as a result of the variety of Management 
actions that are being undertaken within the department.  
 
There continues to be issues and pressures facing the Department at this time 
particularly in relation to the Learning Disability Service and Transitions’ 
arrangements from Children’s Services (i.e. when clients turn age 18 they become 
the responsibility of the Adults Division).  However, the Executive is reminded that 
the Department and its Management Team have a track record of dealing with 
issues and pressures throughout the year to deliver the required budget. 

 
The department’s 2008/09 budget reflects a total of £3.35million of savings which 
includes the outstanding £900k of savings from last years Older Persons 
Modernisation Programme in the Home Support Service. 
 

3.2.2 Following the Executive decision in October requiring an in-year contribution to 
support the Looked after Children Placements pressure, the department is now 
targeted to underspend by £600k in 2008/09.   

Page 56



 

 
The Corporate Director and the management team have implemented several 
actions to ensure the targeted budget is achieved for the year end.  The Department 
proposes to meet this underspend by reductions in the use of agency staff, overtime 
and vacancy management, tighter demand management of care budgets, exploration 
of partnering opportunities, utilisation of grants for existing services and part year 
effect of home support savings. 

 
3.2.3 Adult Care Services 

This service area primarily relates to Older Persons Residential and Home support 
provided by the councils remaining in-house services. It also includes the 
Passenger Transport Service. Budget pressures are being experienced mainly due 
to the demands for Home care, delays in the opening of Lake-Rise/ Kallar Lodge 
and also some pressures within the Passenger Transport Service. A variety of 
Management actions are being undertaken within the division to ensure the targeted 
budget is achieved for the year end.  

 
3.2.4 Adult Commissioning Services 

This service area represents the Social Work and Care Management budgets in the 
department, together with services commissioned from the Independent and Private 
Sector. Service areas include Older Persons, Physical Disability, Learning Disability 
(LD) and Mental Health. The net budget for the area is £44million and is by far the 
largest area (70%) in cash terms in the department. The department has set itself 
some challenging targets in this area particularly around procurement and 
commissioning gains/savings. Interface issues with the local Hospitals and the PCT 
regarding Delayed Transfers of Care are acute in this area, and are carefully 
managed. The Executive will recall pressures in previous years’ regarding external 
care packages in this area that led to a review of the FACS eligibility criteria. It is 
envisaged that robust monitoring and gate-keeping will again be required in this 
area to contain demand within budgets in 2008/09.  
 
Pressures are being experienced in the Transitions from Children’s area due to the 
increasing number of Children with Care Packages/arrangements who are turning 
age 18.  Also, in common with other Boroughs and nationally, LD budgets are also 
experiencing demand for more services. 

 
3.2.5 Community Safety and Preventive Services 

This service area includes CCTV, Community Safety & Parks Police, Substance 
Misuse, Neighbourhood Management and the Youth Offending Team.  The total net 
budgets are in the region of £4million for this area. No significant pressures are 
being experienced in the Community Safety area at present. 

 
3.2.6 Community Services and Libraries 

This service area covers Heritage and Libraries, the Lifelong Learning Centre, 
Community Development and Halls, Community Cohesion and Equalities and 
Diversity. Net budgets are in the region of £7.7million and currently the budgets in 
this area are cost neutral. 

Page 57



 

 
3.2.7 Other Services, Central Budgets, Recharges, and Government Grants 

The Adult and Community Services Department receive government grants, and 
incur recharges for departmental and divisional support. All grants will be used in 
support of existing service areas.  Central budgets and recharges within the 
department are on target. 

 
3.3 Children’s Services Department 
 
3.3.1 There is no change in the forecasted outturn position for Children’s Services from the 

November position i.e. a projected overspend of £3million. 
 

The main departmental pressure arises from the ongoing budget pressure in relation 
to Looked after Children Placements and in meeting the Councils’ Leaving Care 
responsibilities, which have continued from 2007/08 into 2008/09.  On the basis of 
existing commitments, and assessing the future profile for each of the current 332 
looked after children, the forecast is for an overspend in this area of £3.6million. This 
position has reduced over the past few months, highlighting that strategies are working 
(more in-house foster care capacity, invest to save successes) and the quarterly 
model unravelling complexities and resolving process issues are improving the 
forecast. 

 
3.3.2 As previously reported to the Executive, the pressures from Looked after Children 

Placements cannot be fully mitigated in 2008/09, and as a result the Executive agreed 
at its meeting on the 14th October an action plan requiring in-year savings to be 
achieved across all service departments and a provision for a contribution from 
Corporate contingencies and balances. The Children’s department is targeted to 
contribute £600k to the Looked after Children Placements pressure in 2008/09. 
As a result of the in-year savings target, elsewhere within Children’s Services 
spending is now planned to underspend by £600k thereby totalling an overall 
departmental overspend of £3million.  In order to deliver this, the department would 
have to be able to secure additional income from the PCT. 
 
A number of other pressures do exist within the department including the costs of 
transport and variations arising from legal services costs.  Management actions to 
deliver both the targeted underspend and these pressures include maximising grant 
funding, vacancy management, reviewing internal spend targets and pursuing third 
party income e.g. PCT. 

 
3.3.3 Schools 

The carry-forward revenue balances for schools were £6million at 31st March 2008.  
All schools with balances are being asked to demonstrate why they are holding 
balances, with the Scheme for Financing Schools allowing for clawback where 
schools have no plans for balances in excess of DCSF thresholds, which are 8% for 
primary and special schools and 5% for secondary schools.  All schools with deficits 
are required to have a recovery plan and this is being actively managed by the 
Schools Support team in Corporate Finance. 

Page 58



 

 
3.3.4 Quality and School Improvement 

The Quality and School Improvement is reporting an underspend of £100k due to 
further flexible use of grants.  The division will maximise the use of Standards Funds 
and some elements of the Area Based Grants to assist with departmental financial 
position.  

 
3.3.5 Shared Services and Engagement 

Much of the work of the Shared Services and Engagement division is either funded 
from SureStart Grant or from the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG), with only around 
£1million funded from the General Fund. This division has some savings targets to 
deliver, as well as absorbing some of the Integrated Family Services work. There 
are not anticipated to be any major variances at this stage. 

 
3.3.6 Safeguarding and Rights 

The main budget issue for the Safeguarding & Rights service is that of the cost of 
Looked after Children placements and Leaving Care costs. On the basis of existing 
commitments the current forecast is for an overspend on these budgets of 
£3.6million. 
The contributing factors for this projected overspend include: 
• Reducing numbers of in-house foster carers; 
• Significant improvements in the education of looked after children; 
• Increasing statutory responsibilities for young people leaving care between the 

ages of 18 and 21; 
• Growing numbers of children continuing to attract payments for Special 

Guardianship and Adoption allowances; 
• Growth in the overall numbers of children in the borough; 
• Lower capacity in Children’s Social Care; 
• Increased complexity of cases referred to Safeguarding & Rights; 
• Respite Care packages for disabled children; 
• Policy change in moving to approved numbers for foster care placements. 

 
Extensive work has been done in analysing the activity that is producing these costs, 
with a view to identifying financial forecasts that are more sensitive to the care plans 
for individual children, taking account of future demand, but also to assess the likely 
effectiveness of any measures to prevent children having to go into care or to keep 
costs reasonable when this is not avoidable. The current overspend position has 
reduced over the past few months, highlighting that strategies are working (more in-
house foster care capacity, invest to save successes) and the quarterly model 
unravelling complexities and resolving process issues are improving the forecast. 

 
3.3.7 Children’s Policy Trust and Commissioning 

At present, there are concerns about cost pressures being experienced by the catering 
service, whose costs are predominantly charged to the Dedicated Schools Grant. The 
division includes the Youth Service, Policy & Performance and Services to Schools, 
which are reporting an overall balanced budget. 

 
3.3.8 Other 

Most of the costs here are for capital charges, on-going pension costs, central 
recharges and the costs of the Director of Children’s Services.  Any savings in this 
area will be used to contribute to the departmental financial position. 

Page 59



 

 
3.4 Customer Services Department 

 
3.4.1 The current forecast for the department is highlighting an underspend of £131k which 

represents a significant reduction from the £119k overspend reporting in November.  
As a result of the Executive decision in October requiring an in-year contribution to 
support the Looked after Children Placements pressure, the department is now 
targeted to underspend by £600k in 2008/09. The Corporate Director and the 
management team have implemented several actions to ensure the targeted budget is 
achieved for the year end. These include holding vacant posts, reducing agency  
spend, implementing changes in the Private Sector leasing service, examining 
alternative funding arrangements in fleet management and securing additional income.  

 
3.4.2 Environmental and Enforcement Services  

The Environmental and Enforcement Service is highlighting an overall overspend of 
£179k due to forecasted overspends for fuel and contract hire particularly within the 
Refuse Collection, Highway Maintenance and Grounds Maintenance services. Other 
pressures include increased employee costs and reduction in income e.g. refuse 
services. There are however general underspends within other areas of the service as 
well as increased parking income which will help mitigate some of these overspends. 
The division’s financial/operational resources are continually being stretched due to the 
need to employ temporary staff to cover vacant posts which is required to maintain high 
quality front line services. Whilst these pressures will continue throughout the year, 
management’s proactive approach and corrective actions have, and should assist in 
containing these pressures as much as possible. 

 
3.4.3 General Housing 

The current review of the General Housing budget is indicating an overspend of 
£468k, mainly in the Housing Advice and Temporary Accommodation service, due 
to greater use of temporary accommodations properties than originally estimated. 
 
Management is reviewing the current position and is taking action to contain the 
overspend including reviewing the administration charge to ensure that 
administration costs are fully recovered. A proposal to introduce a Working Families 
policy is currently being considered and this will be put forward for approval as soon 
as the details are completed. 

 
3.4.4 Customer Strategy 

This service is projecting a small underspend of £16k mainly in employee expenses. 
 

3.4.5 Barking & Dagenham Direct 
The Service is currently projecting an underspend of £762k which compares to the 
£614k underspend reported in November. This new forecast reflects the savings 
required to relieve current budget pressures from other areas of the Council, a 
recalculation of the projected expenditure on bad debt provision, renegotiation of 
agency contracts and necessary recharges to non-General fund services. 
 
Discretionary Housing Payment continues to be at risk due to the economic downturn 
where more people require financial assistance with housing costs and spend is 
currently estimated at £160,000 against a budget of £85,000. 

Page 60



 

 
3.5 Regeneration Department 
 
3.5.1 The December position is forecasting an overspend of £58k. As a result of the 

Executive decision in October requiring an in-year contribution to support the Looked 
after Children Placements pressure, the department is now targeted to underspend by 
£300K. The Corporate Director and the management team have implemented several 
actions to ensure the targeted budget is achieved for the year end. These include 
holding vacant posts and tighter controls on expenditure. 
 
The main cost pressures in the department relate to reductions in income (e.g. 
Commercial property, transaction fees, LSC, Land charges) and increased 
employee and premises costs. These pressures are however being partly offset by 
savings arising from staff vacancies and additional income from the Local Housing 
Company (LHC). 
 
The key issues for the Department include:  
• the creation of the Capital Programme Unit; 
• provision of free swims for under-18s – working in partnership with the PCT; 
• delivery of the land disposal programme to support the capital programme and 

generate budgeted revenue income from transaction fees; 
• the wind up of the Regeneration Department and the transfer of the constituent 

service areas to Other Departments. 
 
3.5.2 Directorate and PPP 

The current projection is for an underspend of £89k mainly from holding vacant posts in 
order to assist with the departmental financial position. 

 
3.5.3 Housing Strategy & Property 

The main pressure for this division relates to potential delays in the delivery of the land 
disposal programme which will result in a loss of budgeted income in respect of 
transaction fees. Other pressures include the loss of commercial rental income due to 
the economic slowdown and changes in Government regulations on payments for 
NNDR on empty properties. The current projection indicates an overspend of £604k. 
 

3.5.4 Spatial Regeneration 
The current projection is for an underspend of £556k, mainly due to savings arising 
from deferral of a number of planned recruitment.  The main pressure in this area is 
on income generation in the Local Land Charge service (£215k) as a result of the 
slow down in the housing market. The division has identified some additional 
income (including LHC income of £300k) which will generate compensating savings 
as well as additional income and underspend in its supplies and service budgets. 
The LHC income remains a medium risk as it relies on the preferred bidder being 
able to raise the necessary loans in the current economic climate by March 2009. 

 
3.5.5 Leisure, Arts and Olympics 

The current projection is for a small overspend of £10k.  Potential service issues in 
the near future include: 
• Introduction of free swimming for under 18’s in partnership with PCT in September;  
• Broadway Theatre – potential financial risk to the council in relation to 

finalisation of access and usage arrangements for Barking College which are 
not able to be quantified at this stage.   

Page 61



 

 
3.5.6 Skills, Learning & Enterprise 

The current projection is for an underspend of £135k. 
The main financial pressure in the division relates to a shortfall of income in relation 
to LSC funding and other unbudgeted operational costs. These costs are being off-
set by utilisation of grant income and benefits of partnering opportunities.  

 
3.5.7 Asset Strategy & Capital Delivery 

The current projection is for an overspend of £224k mainly due to reduced parking 
income and increased operating costs. Potential service issues for the near future 
are around the delivery of the Capital Programme Unit. This involves the drawing 
together of significant numbers of staff and budgets from across the council to 
create a re-shaped structure to delivery both a more effective service and significant 
savings.  Value for Money will form an integrated part of the process of creating the 
new function. 

 
3.6 Resources Department 
 
3.6.1 The department is currently forecasting an underspend of £400k, which reflects the 

departments revised underspend target which has arisen as a result of the 
Executive decision in October requiring all departments to support the Looked after 
Children Placements pressure.  
The Department have experienced some pressures including the continuing costs 
associated with the implementation of Single Status due to the Trade Union 
requests for reviewed job evaluations, costs associated with the preparation for the 
“Investors in People” assessment, additional energy and maintenance costs of the 
Civic buildings, continuation of the Council’s statutory functions, in-year corporate 
reviews and community engagement costs. 
 
The Corporate Director and the management team have implemented several 
actions to ensure the targeted budget is achieved for the year end. These include 
curtailing the use of agency staff, holding back posts for recruitment and tight 
control, realignment of existing budgets and prioritisation of spend such as supplies 
and services. 
 
Overall the Department is confident that it will achieve its targeted budget by the 
end of the financial year through disciplined and robust financial management 
combined with timely and effective management decisions. 

 
3.6.2 Policy, Performance, Partnerships & Communications 

The main pressures currently identified within the division relate to reduced levels of 
income in relation to the cessation of Standards Fund grant for the Corporate Web 
Team (£31k) and a reduction in the amount of income received for filming at 
locations within the Borough (£18K). The majority of this shortfall can be funded 
from existing budgets as there are currently a number of vacant posts.  

 
3.6.3 Legal & Democratic Services 

The current projection is for an overspend in this area due to additional energy and 
maintenance costs in public buildings. 

Page 62



 

 
3.6.4 Corporate & Strategic Finance 

There are currently a significant number of vacant posts within the division for which 
a number of agency staff have been approved to ensure that the service continues 
to deliver its statutory functions.  A major recruitment process took place during 
2008 to fill a number of these positions, however a number of these posts were 
unable to be filled owing to the lack of suitable candidates. The division is currently 
undergoing a review which will include how to attract suitable applicants into the 
organisation. In the meantime the division has to rely on the use of agency staff 
which may result in a pressure on its budgets. Managers have implemented tight 
controls on hours worked by agency staff and will continue to monitor the staff 
levels in order to ensure that costs are contained within existing budgets.  

 
3.6.5 ICT & e-Government 

The division currently has a number of vacant posts, several of which are at a 
senior level and are unlikely to be filled in the current financial year. In addition, 
supplies and services expenditure is under review and this is likely to produce a 
further curtailment in expenditure. As a result of these measures the division’s 
budget is now projected to under spend by the end of the financial year which will 
contribute to the department’s revised budget target. 

 
3.6.6 Human Resources 

The Division has needed to deal with a number of cost pressures in 2008/09 
including: 
• The completion of the implementation of the Council’s Single Status Strategy.  

Including the need for some additional work (estimated at £100k) resulting from 
the legal challenges from the Trade Unions in respect of the “Knowledge and 
Experience Allowance”; 

• One-off costs in respect of the Statutory Equal Pay Review and the 
Administrative, Technical, Professional and Clerical (ATP & C) Staff Review. 
The cost of this work is estimated to be in the region of £65K; 

• Cost pressures of around £30K in respect of the preparation for the Authority’s 
“Investors in People (IIP)” assessment planned for October 2008. 

The majority of these costs can be funded from existing departmental budgets.  
 
3.6.7 Interest on Balances 

A proportion of the Council’s investments continues to be managed by two external 
investment managers, and the Council’s Treasury Management Strategy has once 
again set stretching targets for these managers in 2008/09 which are being closely 
monitored by the Corporate Finance Division.  
An element of these investments may require the use of investment instruments 
such as gilts to be used which require tactical trades to be undertaken. Inevitably 
there are risks and rewards with the use of such investment instruments, and whilst 
the Council needs to continue to review the manager’s performance it also needs to 
be aware that these potential risks/rewards do exist. 
 
The position of interest on balances is also affected during the year by both 
performance and actual spend on the Capital Programme and the delivery of the 
Council’s disposals programme. Any positive position arising in these areas may 
allow Council balances to increase, however, at the same time any weakening of 
this position may lead to reductions in investment income.  

Page 63



 

 
During the first 8 months of the year, interest rates on lending increased 
dramatically, and this is likely to result in the achievement of higher than expected 
investment income for 2008/09 for both externally managed investments and in-
house funds. Any additional investment income arising in 2008/09 will be used to 
fund the balance of the Children’s placement financial pressure, which currently 
requires potential funding of £1.1million from Corporate contingencies and balances 
as approved by the Executive on the 14th October 2008.  

 
 3.6.8 Corporate Management 

There are currently no immediate issues identified within Corporate Management 
and it is projected that this budget will break even by the end of the financial year. 

 
3.6.9 The delivery of the department’s 2008/09 services reflects some necessary 

corporate expenditure that will be required to be funded from the Council’s 
contingency budget. These costs have throughout the year been projected to be 
funded from the contingency budget, which is set aside to fund unforeseen items of 
expenditure. In order that the department’s working budget formally reflects these 
additional costs, the Executive is asked to agree a budget adjustment of £530k from 
the contingency budget which will have no overall impact on the 2008/09 budget. 
These additional budgets are required to fund the increased costs in public 
buildings (£150k), the Council’s Investors in People (IiP) re-assessment (£25k), the 
continuation of the Council’s statutory functions (£115k), in-year corporate reviews 
(£110k) and community engagement costs (£130k). 

 
4. Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 
 
4.1 The Housing Revenue Account balance at the end of 2008/09 is now forecast to 

reduce to £3.2million compared to the estimated closing balance of £3.5million.  
The original projection included both a budgeted in-year reduction of £255k and an 
adjustment of £572k to reflect the final audited 2007/08 Housing Benefits limitation 
claim. The final audited claim has resulted in additional income of £572k to the HRA 
as a result of a technical review of this area early in 2008. 

 
Projected HRA Working Balance 
 

Description £000 

Opening Working Balance – 1st April 2008 3,235 

Audit adjustment to 2007/08 Housing Benefit Limitation 572 

Projected Deficit Budget set in year (255) 

Estimated Working Balance – 31st March 2009 3,552 

Projected In-Year Surplus / (Deficit) 2008/09 (384) 

Forecasted Working Balance – 31st March 2009 3,168 
 

Page 64



 

 
4.2 The income due from HRA tenants in respect of Housing Rents and service charges 

are currently forecast to overachieve by £392k. This additional income is due to 
higher rental income as a result of lower than budgeted Right to Buy (RTB) sales in 
2008/09 and the transfer from reserves from the proportion of the 53rd week’s rent 
relating to 2008/09 financial year. 

 
4.3 Supervision and management costs are projected to overspend by £781k due to 

increased energy costs of £241k, increased grounds maintenance and premises 
costs of £350k, increased agency costs of £140k and increased estate 
management costs of £50k. Proactive budget management has helped to identify 
potential budget pressures earlier and will enable budget holders/service managers 
to take corrective actions to contain these pressures within existing resources. 

 
4.4 RTB sales were estimated to be 200 in 2008/09 which would generate capital 

receipts of £17.6million. The current projection for RTB sales has reduced 
significantly in light of the economic downturn faced by consumers to 48 sales. This 
is estimated to generate capital receipts of £3.9million, equalling a projected 
shortfall in capital receipts of £13.7million. The revised projection will impact on the 
available capital receipts to the Council for investment in capital projects, reducing 
the retained capital receipts. 

 
Full details of the HRA position are shown in Appendix B. 

 
5. Capital Programme 
 
5.1 As at the end of December, the working budget on the capital programme had 

increased to £91.8million against an original budget of £65million. Since the original 
budget was set, the programme has been updated for approved roll-overs from 
2007/08 and a number of new schemes for 2008/09.  

 
5.2 These new schemes fall into two categories: 

(a) Provisional schemes from the 2008/09 budget report that have now been 
successfully appraised by the Capital Programme Monitoring Office (CPMO); 

(b) Schemes which have attracted additional external funding, and whose 
budgets have been increased accordingly.  

 
5.3 Actual spend as at the end of December was £49.8million, or 54% of the working 

budget. Projected spend for the year end is now estimated at £89.6m (98% of the 
budget). It is vitally important that projects and budgets are subject to robust 
scrutiny to ensure that timetables and milestones can be adhered to, and that 
budgets are realistic.  

 
5.4 The completion of capital projects on time and on budget not only supports the 

Council’s drive to excellence through its Use of Resources score, but will also 
ensure that the benefits arising from our capital projects are realised for the 
community as a whole.  

Page 65



 

 
6. Prudential Indicators 
 
6.1 The Assembly at its meeting on 27th February 2008 agreed the Council’s Prudential 

indicators for 2008/09. The indicators are required to be set and regularly monitored 
by the Council to ensure capital investment plans of the authority are prudent, 
affordable and sustainable. The monitoring of these indicators take place on a 
quarterly basis, and the position at the end of the third quarter of the financial year 
i.e. April to December 2008, is presented at Appendix D. 

  
6.2 The Prudential indicators as laid out in this report show the impact of capital 

investment decisions at the end of the third quarter of the financial year compared 
to those figures agreed at the beginning of 2008/09.  
These figures demonstrate that the capital programme has been put together taking 
into account the key principles of the CIPFA Prudential Code of prudence, 
affordability and sustainability. 

 
7. Financial Health Indicators 
 
7.1 The Audit Commission’s Comprehensive Performance Assessment (CPA) 

introduced the requirement for the Council to undergo an assessment into its Use of 
Resources (UoR). The Council has a clear ambition to deliver excellent value for 
money services and to constantly improve and hence aspires to achieving Level 4 
in its UoR assessment. 

 
7.2 One of key themes within the UoR assessment is the need to evaluate the Council’s 

position regarding its financial standing. A key line of Enquiry in achieving level 4 
requires Members to monitor key financial health indicators and set challenging 
targets, for example, for income collection, level of variance form budget, prudential 
framework indicators, capital programme management etc. Whilst the council has a 
good track record of achieving these targets, it is appropriate that performance 
against these targets is presented to Executive on a regular basis.  

 
Attached at Appendix E is a list of the Council’s significant financial health indicators 
for the period ending 31st December 2008. 

 
8. Consultees 
 
8.1 The members and officers consulted on this report are: 
 
 Councillor Bramley- Lead Member Resources 
 Corporate Management Team 

Group Managers – Corporate Finance 
Capital Programme Management Office (CPMO) 

 
Background Papers Used in the Preparation of the Report: 
• Oracle reports 
• CPMO reports 

Page 66



SERVICES Original 
Budget

Working 
Budget

Year to 
Date 

Budget 

 Actual to 
Date 

Year to Date 
Variance - 

over/(under)

 Forecast 
Outturn 

Variance - 
over/(under)

Projected 
Outturn 
2008/09

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Adult & Community Services
Adult Care Services 5,208 7,156 8,425 8,425 0 7,156 0 }
Adult Commissioning Services 45,293 43,810 35,660 35,660 0 43,810 0 }
Community Safety & Preventative Services 3,913 4,093 4,050 4,050 0 4,093 0 } 600 (600)
Community Services, Heritage & Libraries 7,499 7,740 5,514 5,514 0 7,740 0 }
Other Services 643 666 1,772 1,772 0 666 0 }

62,556 63,465 55,421 55,421 0 63,465 0 600 (600)

Children’s Services
Schools 123,673 132,507 99,380 105,144 5,764 132,507 0 }
Quality & School Improvement 14,026 13,907 10,430 12,422 1,992 13,807 (100) }
Shared Services & Engagement 3,018 3,197 2,398 5,800 3,402 3,197 0 } 0 3,021
Safeguarding & Rights Services 30,885 30,955 23,216 26,588 3,372 34,576 3,621 }
Children’s Policy & Trust Commissioning 3,525 3,428 2,575 1,591 (984) 3,428 0 }
Other Services 6,902 7,084 5,313 4,021 (1,292) 6,584 (500) }

182,029 191,078 143,312 155,566 12,254 194,099 3,021 0 3,021

Customer Services
Environment & Enforcement 21,714 22,011 13,017 15,097 2,080 22,190 179 }
Barking & Dagenham Direct 4,139 4,483 10,874 9,292 (1,582) 3,721 (762) } 469 (600)
Customer Services Strategy (75) 71 67 129 62 55 (16) }
Housing Services 673 681 412 542 130 1,149 468 }

26,450 27,246 24,370 25,060 690 27,115 (131) 469 (600)

Regeneration Department
Asset Strategy & Capital Delivery 263 529 (196) 1,886 2,082 753 224 }
Spatial Regeneration 4,297 4,371 3,130 3,603 473 3,815 (556) }
Skills, Learning & Enterprise 1,700 2,106 1,580 3,259 1,679 1,971 (135) } 358 (300)
Leisure, Arts & Olympics 6,704 6,996 4,670 5,377 707 7,006 10 }
Housing Strategy Services (1,051) (1,167) (876) (337) 539 (563) 604 }
Directorate, Policy & Strategic Services (31) (27) (143) (184) (41) (116) (89) }

11,882 12,808 8,165 13,604 5,439 12,866 58 358 (300)

Resources
Chief Executive 35 37 28 20 (8) 37 0 }
Director of Resources & Business Support 130 453 353 418 65 53 (400) }
Corporate Finance (296) (381) (321) 33 354 (381) 0 }
Human Resources 51 74 56 569 513 74 0 }
ICT & eGovernment 304 259 194 758 564 59 (200) } 0 (400)
Partnerships, Policy, Performance & 
Communications 639 389 353 570 217 389 0 }
Legal & Democratic Services 848 955 721 1,686 965 1,155 200 }
Corporate Management 4,986 4,559 3,419 3,743 324 4,559 0 }
General Finance (15,668) (26,966) (17,079) (18,903) (1,824) (26,966) 0 }

(8,971) (20,621) (12,276) (11,106) 1,170 (21,021) (400) 0 (400)

Contingency 1,200 1,170 0 0 0 1,170 0 0 0

Levies 7,182 7,182 5,397 5,362 (35) 7,182 0 0 0

TOTAL 282,328 282,328 224,389 243,907 19,518 284,876 2,548 1,427 1,121

2008/09

APPENDIX A

BUDGET MONITORING REPORT - DECEMBER 2008

Action in 
place/to be 

taken

Page 67



Page 68

This page is intentionally left blank



M
on

th
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
8

O
rig

in
al

R
ev

is
ed

 B
ud

ge
t 

 A
ct

ua
l 

 F
or

ec
as

t 
 V

ar
ia

nc
e 

 
B

ud
ge

t
B

ud
ge

t
D

ec
-0

8
D

ec
-0

8
H

ou
si

ng
 R

ev
en

ue
 A

cc
ou

nt
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0

N
E

T 
R

E
N

T 
O

F 
D

W
E

LL
IN

G
S

(7
3,

31
7)

(7
3,

31
7)

(5
4,

70
9)

(5
4,

79
6)

(7
3,

52
6)

(2
09

)
O

TH
E

R
 R

E
N

TS
(2

,5
93

)
(2

,5
93

)
(1

,9
45

)
(7

57
)

(2
,5

39
)

54
O

TH
E

R
 C

H
A

R
G

E
S

(5
,5

42
)

(5
,5

42
)

(4
,1

56
)

(6
,1

20
)

(5
,7

79
)

(2
37

)

TO
TA

L 
IN

C
O

M
E

(8
1,

45
2)

(8
1,

45
2)

(6
0,

81
0)

(6
1,

67
3)

(8
1,

84
4)

(3
92

)

R
E

P
A

IR
S

 A
N

D
 M

A
IN

TE
N

A
N

C
E

21
,7

54
21

,7
54

16
,0

99
17

,3
94

21
,8

54
10

0
S

U
P

E
R

V
IS

IO
N

 &
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
25

,5
49

25
,5

49
19

,0
98

19
,5

93
26

,3
30

78
1

R
E

N
T,

 R
A

TE
S

 A
N

D
 O

TH
E

R
 C

H
A

R
G

E
S

37
9

37
9

28
4

43
4

45
9

80
N

E
G

A
TI

V
E

 H
R

A
 S

U
B

S
ID

Y
 P

A
Y

A
B

LE
17

,0
46

17
,0

46
13

,7
83

13
,7

83
16

,8
61

(1
85

)
H

O
U

S
IN

G
 B

E
N

E
FI

T 
LI

M
IT

A
TI

O
N

4,
61

1
4,

61
1

0
0

4,
61

1
0

D
E

P
R

E
C

IA
TI

O
N

 &
 IM

P
A

IR
M

E
N

T 
O

F 
FI

X
E

D
 A

S
S

E
TS

19
,9

63
19

,9
63

14
,9

72
14

,9
72

19
,9

63
0

C
A

P
IT

A
L 

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

 F
U

N
D

E
D

 F
R

O
M

 R
E

V
E

N
U

E
25

5
25

5
0

0
25

5
0

H
R

A
 S

H
A

R
E

 O
F 

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
TE

 &
 D

E
M

O
C

R
A

TI
C

 C
O

R
E

 (C
D

C
) 

C
O

S
TS

79
2

79
2

59
4

59
4

79
2

0

TO
TA

L 
EX

PE
N

D
IT

U
R

E
90

,3
49

90
,3

49
64

,8
30

66
,7

70
91

,1
25

77
6

IN
TE

R
E

S
T 

E
A

R
N

E
D

(1
,6

60
)

(1
,6

60
)

(1
,2

45
)

(1
,2

45
)

(1
,6

60
)

0

N
ET

 C
O

ST
 O

F 
SE

R
VI

C
E

7,
23

7
7,

23
7

2,
77

5
3,

85
2

7,
62

1
38

4

N
E

T 
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L 
A

M
O

U
N

T 
R

E
Q

U
IR

E
D

 B
Y

 S
TA

TU
TE

 T
O

 B
E

 
D

E
B

IT
E

D
 (O

R
 C

R
E

D
IT

E
D

) T
O

 T
H

E
 H

R
A

(6
,9

82
)

(6
,9

82
)

(5
,2

37
)

(5
,2

37
)

(6
,9

82
)

0

M
O

VE
M

EN
T 

IN
 W

O
R

K
IN

G
 B

A
LA

N
C

E
25

5
25

5
(2

,4
61

)
(1

,3
84

)
63

9
38

4

20
07

/0
8 

A
U

D
IT

 A
D

JU
S

TM
E

N
T 

- H
O

U
S

IN
G

 B
E

N
E

FI
T 

LI
M

IT
A

TI
O

N
0

(5
72

)
(5

72
)

(5
72

)
(5

72
)

0

W
O

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

LA
N

C
E

 B
/F

(2
,8

19
)

(3
,2

35
)

(3
,2

35
)

0

W
O

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

LA
N

C
E

 C
/F

(2
,5

64
)

(3
,5

52
)

(3
,1

68
)

38
4

 

A
PP

EN
D

IX
 B

H
O

U
SI

N
G

 R
EV

EN
U

E 
A

C
C

O
U

N
T 

- B
U

D
G

ET
 M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
 S

U
M

M
A

R
Y

Page 69



Page 70

This page is intentionally left blank



O
rig

in
al

R
ev

is
ed

A
ct

ua
l

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
Pr

oj
ec

te
d

Pr
oj

ec
te

d
Pr

oj
ec

te
d

B
ud

ge
t (

1)
B

ud
ge

t
to

 d
at

e
Sp

en
d 

to
 

O
ut

tu
rn

O
ut

tu
rn

O
ut

tu
rn

D
at

e
Va

ria
tio

n
Va

ria
tio

n
ag

ai
ns

t
ag

ai
ns

t
R

ev
is

ed
O

rig
in

al
 

B
ud

ge
t

B
ud

ge
t

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
%

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0

A
du

lt 
&

 C
om

m
un

ity
 S

er
vi

ce
s

3,
66

1
   

   
   

   
3,

79
9

   
   

   
  

1,
09

5
   

   
   

  
29

%
2,

96
7

   
   

   
   

   
(8

32
)

(6
94

)

C
hi

ld
re

n'
s 

S
er

vi
ce

s
4,

98
2

   
   

   
   

12
,6

89
   

   
   

9,
37

3
   

   
   

  
74

%
13

,0
65

   
   

   
   

 
37

6
8,

08
3

C
us

to
m

er
 S

er
vi

ce
s

5,
68

3
   

   
   

   
13

,4
68

   
   

   
9,

15
1

   
   

   
  

68
%

13
,1

99
   

   
   

   
 

(2
69

)
7,

51
6

R
eg

en
er

at
io

n
47

,0
07

   
   

   
 

59
,2

29
   

   
   

28
,5

41
   

   
   

48
%

57
,6

22
   

   
   

   
 

(1
,6

07
)

10
,6

15

R
es

ou
rc

es
3,

67
5

   
   

   
   

2,
66

2
   

   
   

  
1,

71
2

   
   

   
  

64
%

2,
77

4
   

   
   

   
   

11
2

(9
01

)

To
ta

l f
or

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ch
em

es
 

65
,0

08
   

   
   

 
91

,8
47

   
   

   
49

,8
72

   
   

   
54

%
89

,6
27

   
   

   
   

 
(2

,2
20

)
24

,6
19

A
cc

ou
nt

ab
le

 B
od

y 
Sc

he
m

es

R
eg

en
er

at
io

n
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

-
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  

To
ta

l f
or

 A
cc

ou
nt

ab
le

 B
od

y 
Sc

he
m

es
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
-

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

To
ta

l f
or

 a
ll 

Sc
he

m
es

  
65

,0
08

   
   

   
 

91
,8

47
   

   
   

49
,8

72
   

   
   

54
%

89
,6

27
   

   
   

   
 

(2
,2

20
)

24
,6

19

N
ot

e
(1

) E
xc

lu
de

s 
pr

ov
is

io
na

l s
ch

em
es

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
at

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
19

th
 F

eb
ru

ar
y 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
ac

hi
ev

in
g 

'fo
ur

 g
re

en
 li

gh
ts

' f
ro

m
 C

P
M

O
 a

pp
ra

is
al

A
PP

EN
D

IX
 C

C
A

PI
TA

L 
PR

O
G

R
A

M
M

E 
20

08
/2

00
9

SU
M

M
A

R
Y 

O
F 

EX
PE

N
D

IT
U

R
E 

- D
EC

EM
B

ER
 2

00
8

Page 71



Page 72

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX D 
 
 

The Prudential Code for Capital Investment in Local Authorities 
Prudential Indicators Third Quarter 2008/09 

 

1. Introduction 
1.1. The Prudential Code for Capital Investment commenced on the 1st April 2004. 

This system replaced the previously complex system of central Government 
control over council borrowing, although the Government has retained reserve 
powers of control which it may use in exceptional circumstances. The Code 
offers significantly greater freedom to authorities to make their own capital 
investment plans, whereas the previous system restricted authorities to credit 
approvals controlled by central government. 

 
1.2. Within the regime, authorities must have regard to the Chartered Institute of 

Public Finance and Accountancy’s (CIPFA) Prudential Code for Capital Finance 
in Local Authorities. The principles behind this code are that capital 
investment plans made by the Council are prudent, affordable and 
sustainable. The code identifies a range of indicators which must be 
considered by the Council when it makes its decisions about future capital 
programme and sets its budget.  

  

2. The Prudential Indicators  
2.1. The Prudential Code sets out the information that each Council must consider 

when making its decisions about future borrowing and investment. This takes 
the form of a series of “Prudential Indicators”. 

 
2.2. The Code is a formal statement of good practice that has been developed to 

apply to all authorities regardless of their local circumstances. For example, 
Barking and Dagenham was, until recently, a debt free authority - and as such 
the indicators in respect of borrowing would not have been relevant. However, 
spending on the capital programme did reduce interest on investments, which 
created a gap in the revenue budget, and this represented a sum that could 
otherwise have been spent reducing Council Tax levels, or being spent on 
other priorities. In 2008/09, the Council has borrowed to fund capital investment 
so this report also considers the implications of this.  

 
2.4 From the 1st April 2005 onwards, the Council’s “prudential indicators” have 

been reported as an appendix to the budget monitoring report to the Executive 
on a quarterly basis. The purpose of which is that members and senior officers 
are kept up to date with the financial implications of capital investment 
decisions.  

Page 73



  

 

3. Capital Expenditure 
 

3.1 The first prudential indicator sets out capital expenditure both for the General 
Fund, and Housing Revenue Account Expenditure. These figures are shown in 
table 1: 

 

Table 1: Capital Expenditure (Prudential Indicator) 
  2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 
  £’000 £’000 £’000 

HRA 58,962 15,090 17,862
General Fund 32,885 55,110 59,928

Total 91,847 70,200 77,790
 

3.2 Table 1 shows the current 3 year programme (2008/09 to 2010/11), and 
incorporates the changes that have been made since the original budget was 
agreed in February 2008. 

 
3.3     The original budget for 2008/09 was £65m. Since this was set in February last 

year, additional external funding has been obtained, and new schemes have 
been appraised and added to the programme. As such, the revised capital 
budget for 2008/09 stands at £91.8m. 

4. Financing Costs 
4.1 The prudential code also requires Councils to have regard to the financing 

costs associated with its capital programme.  
 
4.2 For an authority that has debt, the prudential indicator for its financing costs is 

calculated based on the interest and repayment of principle on borrowing.  In 
the past this authority was without debt and indicator was based on the interest 
and investment income from its investments. This income contributes to the 
financing of the Council’s revenue budget. 

 
4.3 Now, although this authority still funds capital expenditure from capital receipts, 

the Council also funds capital expenditure from borrowing. As such, financing 
costs are both in respect of reduction in interest receipts and interest payable 
on loans.     
 

4.4 The Minimum Revenue Provision (“repayment of principle”) will also need to be 
included financing costs. The HRA does not have to calculate MRP.  

 
4.5 Table 2 shows the following: 

• Estimated figures as at 31st December 2008 for the Council’s net revenue 
streams for both the General Fund and the Housing Revenue Account 

• Financing costs for these two funds.  
• The ratio of net revenue streams to financing costs, based on capital 

expenditure shown in Table 1.  

Page 74



  

 
 
Table 2: Financing Costs (Prudential Indicator)  

 2008/09  2009/10 2010/11 
 £’000 £’000 £’000 
Net Revenue Stream  
HRA( Rent Income) 81,082 81,082 81,082 
General Fund (net 
budget requirement) 

147,249 147,249 147,249 

Financing Costs    

HRA  12,900 12,900 12,900 
General Fund  461 2,637 7,353 
Ratio    
HRA 15.9% 15.9% 15.9% 
General Fund 0.31% 1.79% 4.99% 
    

 
 
4.6 The net revenue streams for the HRA and the General Fund have not changed  

since the original budgets were set. Financing costs are in accordance with the 
current capital programme.  

 
4.7 Financing costs in the General Fund relate to the fall in interest receipts that the 

Council has to suffer as a result of spending capital receipts on capital 
expenditure, and interest payable on loans.  

 
4.8 Financing costs in the HRA relate principally to the Major Repairs Allowance, 

which is a government subsidy from the Department of Communities and Local 
Government (DCLG). This figure is fixed throughout the year.  

 
4.9 Financing costs can also be shown with reference to their impact on Council 

Tax and Housing Rents. This shows the additional Council Tax burden for Band 
D from financing new capital schemes added to the programme. This is set out 
in Table 3. 

 
Table 3: The Impact of financing costs for the capital programme on the Council 
Tax and Housing Rents (Prudential Indicator)  
 2008/09  2009/10 2010/11 

 £ £ £ 
For Band D Council Tax 9.03 51.71 144.18 
For average Housing Rents 0 0 0 

 
 

4.10 The table shows the impact of changes in the budgeted capital expenditure up 
to December 2008 on Council Tax at Band for the years 2008/09 to 2010/11. 

Page 75



  

 
 
4.11 As a consequence of the Government’s policy on rent restructuring the capital 

programme has a minimal impact on future rents. There are now borrowing 
costs but the revenue contribution to capital expenditure is set according to the 
rent levels that are established by the rent restructuring regulations. 

 
5. Capital Financing Requirement 
 
5.1 The Prudential Code requires the Council to measure its underlying need to 

borrow for capital investment by calculating its Capital Financing 
Requirement.  

 
5.2 The capital financing requirement identifies the level of capital assets on an 

authority’s balance sheet, and compares this to the capital reserves to see how 
much of these assets have been “funded”. The difference is the level of debt 
that the authority has to repay in the future, or the “capital financing 
requirement”.  

 
Table 4: Capital Financing Requirement (Prudential Indicator) 

 2008/09  2009/10 2010/11 
    
Housing Revenue Account (HRA) (21,355) (21,355) (21,355)
General Fund 44,395 107,132 131,662
Capital Financing Requirement 23,040 85,777 110,307

 
5.3 The authority now needs to borrow to maintain the agreed capital programme. 

As such, the Council’s CFR, or underlying need to borrow, is now positive. The 
CFR for 2009/10 and 2010/11 has increased compared to the budgeted level 
(by approximately £30m) as the current land disposals programme is under 
review, meaning there is a potential increase in the level of borrowing needed 
to fund the capital programme.  

6. External Debt 
 
6.1 Table 5 sets out the prudential indicators in borrowing limits. The Council is 

required to set two limits, an operational limit which should be kept to on a day 
to day basis (but could be exceeded for short term, “cashflow” purposes), and 
an authorised limit, which is the outer limit for borrowing in exceptional 
purposes. In the medium term local authorities only have the power to borrow 
for capital purposes.  

 
6.2 The operational limit has been set at £50m to match the financing requirement 

for the capital programme. The authorised limit has been set at £150m to allow 
for these exceptional situations. 

 
6.3 The Council has not exceeded the authorised limit up to 31st December 2008. 

No investment decisions have been made that suggest that this limit will be 
breached in future.  

Page 76



  

 
 

Table 5: Authorised Borrowing Limits (Prudential Indicator) 
 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 
Operational Limit on Borrowing 50.0 50.0 50.0 
Margin for extraordinary financing 
issues 

150.0 150.0 150.0 

Authorised Limit 150.0 150.0 150.0 
 

7. Treasury Management Indicators of Prudence   
 
7.1 The authority has an integrated treasury management strategy and has 

adopted the CIPFA Code of Practice for Treasury Management in the Public 
Sector.  The Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities 
supplements this by requiring council’s to set and monitor specific indicators to 
demonstrate the prudence of its treasury management policies. The position 
against these indicators for 2008/09 is set out below: 
 
a) Interest Rate Exposure 
 
Indicator set: 
The Council will not be exposed to any interest rate risk since all its borrowing 
will be at known overdraft rates and fixed rates. 
 
31st December 2008: 
In 2008/09 the Council set its upper limit on PWLB fixed interest loans as 4.5% 
while the upper limit on money market fixed interest loans was set at 4.25%. 
The Council does not currently have any exposure to variable interest rate 
investments or loans.  

 
b) Maturity Structure of Borrowing 
 
Indicator set: 
The purpose of considering the maturity structure of borrowing is to ensure that 
all borrowing does not mature at one point in time and that the risk is spread. 
As the Council builds up a debt portfolio, the maturities will be phased to ensure 
that this is the case.  
 
31st December 2008: 
  

< 12 
months  

 
12 < 24 
months 

 
2 < 5 
years 

 
Over 10 
years 

Total Debt Maturing (£’m) 0 10 10 0 
% of Total Fixed Debt 0% 50% 50% 0 
% of Total Variable Debt 0% 0% 0% 0% 

 

Page 77



  

 
(c) Total Principle Sums Invested 
 
The overriding objective of the investment strategy is to ensure that funds are 
available on a daily basis to meet the Council’s liabilities. The risk inherent in 
the maturity structure of the Council’s investments is that it may be forced to 
realise an investment before it reaches final maturity and thus at a time when 
its value may be dependent on market conditions that cannot be known in 
advance.  
 
31st December 2008: 
The maturity structure of the Council’s investments to the 31st December 2008 
was such that it did not have to release any of its investments before they 
reached their maturity date. 

8. Summary Assessment 
 
8.1 The Prudential Indicators as laid out in this report show the impact of capital 

investment decisions in the third quarter of 2008/09.  
 
8.2 These figures demonstrate that, while changes to the capital programme have 

had financial implications on the Council, they have been made having taken 
into account the key principles of the CIPFA Prudential Code of prudence, 
affordability and sustainability. 

Page 78



R
ev

en
ue

Fi
na

nc
ia

l M
on

ito
rin

g
 2

00
8/

09
 

V
ar

ia
nc

e 
P

ro
je

ct
io

n

C
ur

re
nt

 
B

ud
ge

t
P

ro
je

ct
ed

 
O

ut
tu

rn
 Q

ua
rte

r 3
 

V
ar

ia
nc

e 
P

ro
je

ct
io

n

V
ar

ia
nc

e 
to

 
20

08
/0

9 
P

ro
je

ct
io

n

N
ex

t 
Q

ua
rte

r 
V

ar
ia

nc
e 

Ta
rg

et

Y
ea

r e
nd

 
V

ar
ia

nc
e 

Ta
rg

et

£m
£m

£m
£m

£m
£m

£m
S

er
vi

ce
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

ts
1.

1
30

0.
9

30
3.

4
2.

5
1.

4
1.

1
0.

0
O

th
er

 S
er

vi
ce

s
0.

0
(1

8.
6)

(1
8.

6)
0

0.
0

0.
0

0.
0

To
ta

l
1.

1
28

2.
3

28
4.

8
2.

5
1.

4
1.

1
0.

0
N

ar
ra

tiv
e:

In
co

m
e 

C
ol

le
ct

io
n

Ta
rg

et
 

C
ol

le
ct

io
n 

R
at

e

C
as

h 
E

qu
iv

al
en

t

A
ct

ua
l 

C
ol

le
ct

io
n 

R
at

e

C
as

h 
E

qu
iv

al
en

t

V
ar

ia
nc

e 
to

  
Ta

rg
et

   
R

at
e

C
as

h 
E

qu
iv

al
en

t

N
ex

t Q
ua

rte
r 

Ta
rg

et

C
ou

nc
il 

Ta
x

81
.3

0%
£4

1.
84

2m
81

.2
0%

£4
1.

78
9m

(0
.1

0%
)

(£
53

k)
94

.0
0%

N
N

D
R

81
.9

0%
£4

1.
02

8m
78

.8
4%

£3
9.

49
4m

(3
.0

6%
)

(£
1.

53
4m

)
99

.5
%

 *
 

C
ta

x 
A

rr
ea

rs
• p

rio
r y

ea
rs

18
.0

0%
£1

.6
56

m
17

.2
9%

£1
.5

91
m

(0
.7

1%
)

(£
65

k)
21

.0
0%

R
en

t C
ol

le
ct

io
n

97
.4

%
 *

* 
£7

5.
17

4m
96

.1
3%

£7
4.

19
8m

(1
.2

7%
)

(£
97

6k
)

97
.4

0%
N

ar
ra

tiv
e:

* 
in

di
ca

te
s 

ta
rg

et
s 

un
de

r r
ev

ie
w

 re
: E

P
R

 a
nd

 re
ce

ss
io

n 
 *

* 
In

di
ca

te
s 

fu
ll 

ye
ar

 c
ol

le
ct

io
n 

ra
te

.

A
PP

EN
D

IX
 E

K
ey

 F
in

an
ci

al
 H

ea
lth

 In
di

ca
to

rs
 to

 3
1s

t D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

8

A
 n

um
be

r o
f d

ep
ar

tm
en

ts
 o

f t
he

 c
ou

nc
il 

co
nt

in
ue

 to
 re

po
rt 

bu
dg

et
ar

y 
pr

es
su

re
s.

 T
he

 la
rg

es
t p

re
ss

ur
e 

is
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
de

pa
rtm

en
t w

he
re

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t b

ud
ge

t p
re

ss
ur

es
 to

ta
lin

g 
£3

.6
m

ill
io

n 
co

nt
in

ue
 to

 a
ris

e 
fro

m
 L

oo
ke

d 
af

te
r C

hi
ld

re
n 

P
la

ce
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 in
 m

ee
tin

g 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

ils
’ L

ea
vi

ng
 C

ar
e 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s.

  I
n 

or
de

r t
o 

de
liv

er
 a

n 
ov

er
al

l C
ou

nc
il 

ba
la

nc
ed

 b
ud

ge
t b

y 
th

e 
ye

ar
 e

nd
, a

n 
ac

tio
n 

pl
an

 w
as

 a
gr

ee
d 

at
 th

e 
E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

m
ee

tin
g 

on
 th

e 
14

th
 O

ct
ob

er
 re

qu
iri

ng
 in

-y
ea

r s
av

in
gs

 to
 b

e 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 a

cr
os

s 
al

l s
er

vi
ce

 d
ep

ar
tm

en
ts

 a
nd

 a
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 fo
r a

 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n 
fro

m
 C

or
po

ra
te

 c
on

tin
ge

nc
ie

s 
an

d 
ba

la
nc

es
. A

 n
um

be
r o

f a
ct

io
n 

pl
an

s 
ha

ve
 a

lre
ad

y 
be

en
 im

pl
em

en
te

d 
by

 d
ep

ar
tm

en
ts

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 in

-y
ea

r s
av

in
g 

ta
rg

et
s 

ar
e 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 a
nd

 th
at

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ac
hi

ev
es

 it
s 

fo
re

ca
st

ed
 b

ud
ge

t b
y 

th
e 

ye
ar

 e
nd

. F
ul

l d
et

ai
ls

 o
f t

he
 D

ec
em

be
r 

po
si

tio
n 

is
 in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 S
ec

tio
n 

3 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

m
ai

n 
te

xt
 o

f t
hi

s 
re

po
rt.

 

C
ou

nc
il 

Ta
x 

co
lle

ct
io

n 
is

 b
eh

in
d 

ta
rg

et
 b

y 
0.

1%
, b

ut
 is

 u
p 

on
 la

st
 y

ea
r's

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 a
t t

hi
s 

st
ag

e 
by

 0
.7

7%
. A

 p
ee

r r
ev

ie
w

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
un

de
rta

ke
n 

an
d 

th
e 

va
st

 m
aj

or
ity

 o
f q

ui
ck

 w
in

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

im
pl

em
en

te
d,

 s
om

e 
of

 th
e 

lo
ng

er
 te

rm
 a

ct
io

ns
 a

re
 p

la
nn

ed
 fo

r t
he

 re
m

ai
nd

er
 o

f t
hi

s 
ye

ar
 a

nd
 th

e 
be

gi
nn

in
g 

of
 2

00
9/

10
.

N
N

D
R

 c
ol

le
ct

io
n 

is
 b

el
ow

 ta
rg

et
 b

y 
3.

06
%

.  
H

ow
ev

er
, t

hi
s 

ne
ed

s 
to

 b
e 

se
en

 in
 li

gh
t o

f c
ha

ng
ed

 le
gi

sl
at

io
n 

br
in

gi
ng

 in
to

 c
ol

le
ct

io
n,

 ra
tin

g 
fo

r 
em

pt
y 

pr
op

er
ty

. T
hi

s 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

th
e 

de
bi

t b
y 

10
%

 a
nd

 is
 p

ro
vi

ng
 to

 b
e 

di
ffi

cu
lt 

to
 c

ol
le

ct
. I

f a
 c

om
pa

ris
on

 w
as

 m
ad

e 
on

 th
e 

sa
m

e 
ba

si
s 

as
 la

st
 

ye
ar

, t
he

 c
ol

le
ct

io
n 

ra
te

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
0.

3%
 lo

w
er

. T
he

 n
at

io
na

l e
co

no
m

ic
 d

ow
nt

ur
n 

ha
s 

al
so

 im
pa

ct
ed

 o
n 

co
lle

ct
io

n 
an

d 
a 

nu
m

be
r o

f w
el

l k
no

w
n 

H
ig

h 
S

tre
et

 c
om

pa
ni

es
 h

av
e 

fa
ile

d 
to

 m
ak

e 
pa

ym
en

ts
 w

he
n 

du
e,

 w
hi

ch
 w

ith
 th

e 
ne

ed
 to

 c
ha

rg
e 

fo
r e

m
pt

y 
pr

op
er

tie
s 

ha
s 

ha
d 

a 
dr

am
at

ic
 e

ffe
ct

 
on

 c
ol

le
ct

io
n.

  O
f t

he
 3

2 
Lo

nd
on

 B
or

ou
gh

s,
 2

9 
ha

ve
 re

po
rte

d 
co

lle
ct

io
n 

do
w

nt
ur

ns
. R

ec
ov

er
y 

ac
tiv

ity
 c

on
tin

ue
s 

an
d 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
vi

si
tin

g 
is

 
pl

an
ne

d 
to

 m
ax

im
is

e 
co

lle
ct

io
n.

Th
e 

ca
lc

ul
at

io
n 

fo
r r

en
t c

ol
le

ct
io

n 
is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
ca

lc
ul

at
io

n 
fo

r B
V

P
I6

6a
, w

hi
ch

 is
 th

e 
in

di
ca

to
r w

hi
ch

 w
as

 in
 u

se
 fo

r a
ll 

LA
's

, u
nt

il 
20

07
/0

8.
 

Th
is

 in
di

ca
to

r i
s 

no
 lo

ng
er

 a
 n

at
io

na
l i

nd
ic

at
or

 b
ut

 w
e 

ar
e 

us
in

g 
th

e 
sa

m
e 

m
et

ho
do

lo
gy

 fo
r t

he
 L

oc
al

 In
di

ca
to

r. 
Th

is
 s

ho
w

s 
th

at
 th

e 
cu

rr
en

t 
fig

ur
e 

is
 b

el
ow

 th
e 

sa
m

e 
po

in
t a

s 
in

 th
e 

la
st

 fi
na

nc
ia

l y
ea

r, 
ho

w
ev

er
 th

e 
en

d 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r, 
D

ire
ct

 D
eb

its
 w

er
e 

no
t a

pp
lie

d 
to

 th
e 

ac
co

un
ts

 in
 

D
ec

em
be

r b
ec

au
se

 o
f t

he
 C

hr
is

tm
as

 h
ol

id
ay

s 
w

hi
ch

 w
ou

ld
 b

rin
g 

th
e 

co
lle

ct
io

n 
ra

te
 to

 a
 s

im
ila

r l
ea

ve
 a

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 0

7.
 

Page 79



In
ve

st
m

en
ts

B
al

an
ce

 a
t 

31
st

 
D

ec
em

be
r 

20
08

V
ar

ia
nc

e 
at

 
Q

3

P
ro

je
ct

ed
 

Y
ea

r E
nd

 
V

ar
ia

tio
n

£m
£'

00
0

C
ou

nc
il 

in
 H

ou
se

 te
am

66
.7

0.
37

%
10

0
   

   
   

  
E

xt
er

na
l F

un
d 

M
an

ag
er

 (1
)

22
.9

-0
.9

1%
50

   
   

   
   

 
E

xt
er

na
l F

un
d 

M
an

ag
er

 (2
)

37
.1

7.
09

%
20

0
   

   
   

  
E

xt
er

na
l F

un
d 

M
an

ag
er

 (3
)

15
2.

50
%

15
0

   
   

   
  

N
ar

ra
tiv

e:

C
ap

ita
l

C
ap

ita
l P

ro
gr

am
m

e
O

rig
in

al
 

B
ud

ge
t

W
or

ki
ng

 
B

ud
ge

t

A
ct

ua
l 

S
pe

nd
 @

 
Q

3

P
ro

je
ct

ed
 

S
pe

nd

£m
£m

£m
£m

%
C

ap
ita

l S
pe

nd
65

.0
   

   
   

   
91

.8
   

   
   

  
49

.9
   

   
   

  
89

.6
   

   
   

  
(2

.4
0%

)

N
ar

ra
tiv

e:

£m (2
.2

)

Th
e 

ca
pi

ta
l p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
bu

dg
et

 is
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 £
91

.8
m

ill
io

n.
 D

ire
ct

or
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
an

d 
ar

e 
co

nt
in

ui
ng

 to
 re

vi
ew

 th
e 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 s

ch
em

es
 a

nd
 th

is
 

re
po

rt 
is

 p
ro

je
ct

in
g 

an
 o

ve
ra

ll 
sp

en
d 

of
 £

89
.6

m
ill

io
n.

5.
50

%
12

.5
9%

In
ve

st
m

en
t p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e 

ye
ar

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
st

ro
ng

. T
hi

s 
ha

s 
be

en
 a

s 
a 

re
su

lt 
of

 a
 ra

ng
e 

of
 fa

ct
or

s.
 In

te
re

st
 ra

te
s 

ha
ve

 re
m

ai
ne

d 
hi

gh
 fo

r t
he

 fi
rs

t h
al

f o
f t

he
 y

ea
r, 

le
ad

in
g 

to
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

re
tu

rn
s.

 T
he

 s
ho

rta
ge

 in
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

cr
ed

it 
as

 a
 re

su
lt 

of
 th

e 
"c

re
di

t c
ru

nc
h"

 h
as

 e
na

bl
ed

 
le

nd
er

s 
of

 fu
nd

s 
(s

uc
h 

as
 lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s)
 to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 ra
te

s 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

ly
 h

ig
he

r t
ha

n 
th

e 
ba

nk
 ra

te
, f

ur
th

er
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

 re
tu

rn
s.

 T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

in
ve

st
s 

al
l o

f i
ts

 in
-h

ou
se

 fu
nd

s 
in

 U
K

 in
st

itu
tio

ns
, a

nd
 h

as
 n

ot
 b

ee
n 

af
fe

ct
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

w
or

ld
w

id
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 c
ris

is
 (f

or
 e

xa
m

pl
e 

le
nd

in
g 

in
 Ic

el
an

d)
. 

E
xt

er
na

l f
un

ds
 a

re
 s

ub
je

ct
 to

 ri
gi

d 
co

nt
ro

ls
 b

y 
fu

nd
 m

an
ag

er
s 

an
d 

ha
ve

 n
ot

 b
ee

n 
af

fe
ct

ed
 in

 a
ny

 w
ay

 b
y 

th
e 

cr
is

is
. F

un
d 

m
an

ag
er

 2
 re

tu
rn

s 
lo

ok
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 h

ig
h 

as
 a

 re
su

lt 
of

 u
nr

ea
lis

ed
 p

ro
fit

s 
fro

m
 b

as
e 

ra
te

 m
ov

em
en

ts
, t

hi
s 

po
si

tio
n 

is
 li

ke
ly

 to
 b

e 
ar

ou
nd

 6
%

 b
y 

ye
ar

 e
nd

. A
cr

os
s 

th
e 

ba
la

nc
es

, t
he

 y
ea

r e
nd

 p
os

iti
on

 is
 li

ke
ly

 to
 b

e 
hi

gh
er

 th
an

 th
e 

bu
dg

et
ed

 in
co

m
e 

fig
ur

e.
 

V
ar

ia
nc

e 
to

 W
or

ki
ng

 B
ud

ge
t

5.
50

%
8%

5.
50

%
5.

87
%

5.
50

%
4.

59
%

B
en

ch
m

ar
k 

R
et

ur
n

A
ct

ua
l R

et
ur

n 
@

 Q
3

K
ey

 F
in

an
ci

al
 H

ea
lth

 In
di

ca
to

rs
 to

 3
1s

t D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

8

Page 80



C
ap

ita
l

P
ru

de
nt

ia
l I

nd
ic

at
or

s
20

08
/0

9
20

09
/1

0
20

10
/1

1
20

08
/0

9
20

09
/1

0
20

10
/1

1
In

di
ca

to
rs

C
ap

ita
l

C
ap

ita
l E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 (£

'0
00

)
£7

9,
96

3
£5

8,
93

5
£5

1,
12

0
£9

1,
84

6
£7

0,
20

0
£7

7,
79

0
Fi

na
nc

in
g 

C
os

ts
- R

at
io

 o
f H

R
A

 F
in

an
ci

ng
 c

os
ts

  t
o 

N
et

 R
ev

en
ue

 S
tre

am
- R

at
io

 o
f G

en
er

al
 F

un
d 

Fi
na

nc
in

g
  c

os
ts

 to
 N

et
 R

ev
en

ue
 S

tre
am

Im
pa

ct
 o

n 
B

an
d 

'D
' C

ou
nc

il 
Ta

x
£5

8.
33

£1
02

.0
8

£1
39

.0
2

£9
.0

3
£5

1.
71

£1
44

.1
8

Im
pa

ct
 o

n 
A

ve
ra

ge
 H

ou
si

ng
 R

en
t

£0
£0

£0
£0

£0
£0

C
ap

ita
l F

in
an

ci
ng

 R
eq

ui
re

m
en

t (
£'

00
0)

£2
6,

49
9

£6
5,

82
1

£8
9,

37
0

£2
3,

04
0

£8
5,

77
7

£1
10

,3
07

Tr
ea

su
ry

 M
an

ag
em

en
t

O
pe

ra
tio

na
l L

im
it 

on
 B

or
ro

w
in

g
£5

0m
£7

0m
£8

5m
£5

0m
£7

0m
£8

5m
A

ut
ho

ris
ed

 L
im

it
£1

50
m

£1
50

m
£1

50
m

£1
50

m
£1

50
m

£1
50

m

N
ar

ra
tiv

e:

1.
79

%
4.

99
%

Th
e 

ca
pi

ta
l e

xp
en

di
tu

re
 in

di
ca

to
r i

s 
sh

ow
in

g 
an

 d
ec

re
as

e 
in

 th
e 

ca
pi

ta
l p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
bu

dg
et

 a
s 

a 
re

su
lt 

of
 s

ch
em

es
 b

ei
ng

 re
-p

ro
fil

ed
 fr

om
 

20
08

/0
9 

in
to

 2
00

9/
10

. T
he

 re
m

ai
ni

ng
 c

ap
ita

l i
nd

ic
at

or
s 

lo
ok

 a
t t

he
 a

ffo
rd

ab
ili

ty
 o

f t
he

 c
ap

ita
l p

ro
gr

am
m

e.
 T

he
 T

re
as

ur
y 

in
di

ca
to

rs
 lo

ok
 a

t t
he

 
le

ve
l o

f b
or

ro
w

in
g 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 fi

na
nc

e 
ca

pi
ta

l e
xp

en
di

tu
re

. A
s 

at
 th

e 
en

d 
of

 q
ua

rte
r 3

, t
he

 p
ro

je
ct

io
n 

is
 in

 li
ne

 w
ith

 b
ud

ge
t.

(0
.6

6%
)

1.
60

%
3.

12
%

0.
31

%

K
ey

 F
in

an
ci

al
 H

ea
lth

 In
di

ca
to

rs
 to

 3
1s

t D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

8

O
rig

in
al

 In
di

ca
to

rs
 @

 1
/4

/0
8

R
ev

is
ed

 In
di

ca
to

rs
 @

 3
1/

12
/0

8

16
.1

9%
16

.1
9%

15
.3

8%
15

.9
0%

15
.9

0%
15

.9
0%

Page 81



Page 82

This page is intentionally left blank



THE EXECUTIVE 
 

17 February 2009 
 

REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES 
 

Title: Fees and Charges 2009/2010 For Decision 
 

Summary:  
 
Local Authorities are involved in a wide range of services and the ability to charge for 
some of these services has always been a key funding source to Councils. 
 
This report concerns itself with recommending the appropriate level of fees and charges 
for 2009/10 for those traditional services where the Council has an obligation to set fee 
levels. 
 
In addition to those traditional income services, the Council also has the power under the 
Local Government Act 2003 to charge for other discretionary services that it may already 
or may wish to provide for in the future. In keeping with most other Local Authorities, the 
Council has not taken any significant advantage of these new powers. 
 
In preparing the proposed fees and charges for 2009/10, Departments have worked within 
the framework of the agreed Charging Policy. 
 
The Council’s budget strategy for 2009/10 assessed the implication of inflationary 
pressures on the Council’s budget by having regard to a basket of inflation indices. As a 
result it recommended that the overall inflation uplift for 2009/10 for fees and charges 
should be at least 3%, and these increases have been applied to all the 2009/10 income 
base budgets which were approved at the Executive meeting on the 20th January 2009. 
In addition to this general 3% uplift, a number of the savings proposals for 2009/10 require 
increases in fees and charges to go beyond 3%. As a result, the recommended increases 
in fees and charges for 2009/10 contained within this report reflect the 2009/10 budget 
strategy, the 2009/10 base budget position and the 2009/10 savings proposals. 
 
The proposed charges for 2009/10 are detailed in Appendix A to this report. 
 
Wards Affected:  This is an annual fees and charges report which applies to all services 
and to all wards. 
 
 

Recommendation(s) 
 
The Executive is asked to agree to the proposed fees and charges for 2009/10 as set out 
in Appendix A and Section 4 of the report to be effective from the 1st April 2009. 
 
 

Reason(s) 
As a matter of good financial practise, the Executive should agree those fees and charges 
to be applied to services provided by the Council. 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 7

Page 83



 
Implications: 
Financial: 
The ability to charge for some services is a key funding source to the Council. The 
proposed fees and charges within this report reflect the 2009/10 budget strategy, the 
2009/10 base budget position and the 2009/10 savings proposals, and are necessary in 
order for the Council to set a robust 2009/10 budget. 
 
Legal: 
There are no legal implications regarding this report. 
 
Risk Management: 
The potential risk in setting the proposed fees and charges is that these may have an 
adverse implication in demand and usage of services which may in turn impact on the 
achievement of the both community priorities and the Council’s budget. The risk of these 
proposals will be monitored through the Council’s various performance indicators, its 
service scorecards and the Budget Monitoring processes. 
 
Social Inclusion and Diversity: 
As this report does not concern a new or revised policy there are no specific adverse 
impacts insofar as this report is concerned. 
 
Crime and Disorder: 
There are no specific implications insofar as this report is concerned. 
 
Options Appraisal: 
There are no specific implications insofar as this report is concerned. 
 
 

Contact Officer 
Joe Chesterton 
 
Lee Russell 

 

Title: 
Divisional Director - 
Corporate Finance 
Group Manager, 
Resources & Budgeting 

 

Contact Details: 
Tel:020 8227 2932 
E-mail: joe.chesterton@lbbd.gov.uk 
Tel: 020 8227 2966 
E-mail: lee.russell@lbbd.gov.uk 

 
1.  Introduction and Background 
 
1.1 Local Authorities are involved in a wide range of services and the ability to charge 

for some of these services has always been a key funding source. The types of 
services provided by the Council where fees and charges are currently levied often 
fall into a broad category of traditional income services. 

 
1.2 These traditional income services contain both statutory and discretionary services. 

Where fees and charges apply to mandatory services, these are often set 
nationally, for example, planning fees. The majority of mandatory services are not 
funded directly from fees and charges but instead from the Council’s main income 
sources being its Government grant and its Council Tax revenue. Examples of 
services funded in this way are Highway Maintenance, Children’s Services, 
Cleansing and Refuse services, 

Page 84



 
1.3 The remaining traditional income services where the Council levy fees and charges 

are those of a discretionary nature. These cover a whole range of services such as 
Care services, Libraries, Licensing, Pest Control, Commercial Waste, Drainage, 
Markets, Leisure and Recreation facilities, Parking and the Registrar service. This 
report concerns itself with recommending the appropriate level of fees and charges 
for 2009/10 for these types of services. 

 
1.4 In addition to those traditional income services, the Council also has the power 

under the Local Government Act 2003 to charge for other discretionary services that 
it may already provide or may wish to provide in the future.  

 
1.5 There is no definitive list as to which discretionary services are covered by the 

powers provided in the Act although the Government have provided limited 
examples of what could be included such as maintenance of older/disabled peoples’ 
gardens, arboricultural work in private gardens, operating consumer protection 
approved lists, pre-application planning and development advice, highway services 
to private industrial estates, home energy advice, home security services and use of 
excess capacity in local authority services.  

 
1.6 To date, in keeping with most other local authorities, the Council has not taken any 

significant advantage of these new powers but will be reviewing their potential in 
due course.  

 
2. Budget Strategy 2009/10. 
 
2.1 The Council’s budget strategy for 2009/10 assessed the implication of inflationary 

pressures on the Council’s budget by having regard to a basket of inflation indices. 
As a result it recommended that the overall inflation uplift for 2009/10 for fees and 
charges should be at least 3% and this increase has been applied to all the 2009/10 
income base budgets which were approved at the Executive meeting on the 20th 
January 2009. However, there is an acceptance that the application of the standard 
increase to all fees may not always be practical and in the interests of services. 
Therefore, when arriving at the proposed fees and charges for 2009/10, Corporate 
Directors needed to assess those services which warrant higher or lower increases 
whilst having regard to the achievement of the overall base budget. 

 
2.2 The 3% increase was based upon the June 2008 Consumer Price Index (CPI) 

which is calculated by measuring the increasing costs of a sample of goods and 
services. The CPI excludes a number of mainly housing related costs e.g. council 
tax, mortgage Interest payments, house depreciation costs, building insurance etc. 
as these were not considered relevant to the operating costs of services, and 
therefore would not impact on the level of fees and charges required to be set. 

 
2.3 In addition to the general 3% uplift of the fees and charges budgets as mentioned in 

paragraph 2.1, a number of the savings proposals for 2009/10 require further 
increases in fees and charges beyond the standard 3%. A full list of all these 
savings proposals are reported elsewhere on this agenda. 

Page 85



 
2.4 The recommended increases in fees and charges for 2009/10, which are detailed in 

section 4 of this report, therefore reflect the 2009/10 budget strategy, the 2009/10 
base budget position and the 2009/10 savings proposals. 

 
3. Charging Policy 
 
3.1 The Council has an agreed Charging Policy which requires that all charges are 

reviewed annually as part of the budget setting process. 
 
3.2 The Charging policy has three fundamental principles: 

• Services should raise income wherever there is a power or duty to do so; 
• The income raised should cover the full costs of providing the service 

including all overheads; 
• Any departures from this policy must be justified in a transparent manner 

with reference to the Council’s priorities and policies. 
 
3.3 In preparing the proposed fees and charges for 2008/09 departments have worked 

within the framework of the Charging Policy. 
 

3.4 As mentioned in paragraph 1.6, the Council has not taken any significant advantage 
of the new powers for discretionary charging under the Local Government Act 2003.  

 
4. Proposed Fees and Charges for 2009/10 
 
4.1 Attached to this report at Appendix A are the proposed fees and charges for 

2009/10 which will be effective from the 1st April 2009. This Appendix details the 
following information: 
- Description of Service provided; 
- Current 2008/09 Charge; 
- Proposed 2009/10 Charge; 
- Proposed Increase. 

 
4.2 A summary of the services that Appendix A relate to are listed below along with 

relevant supporting information: 
 
4.2.1 Adult & Community Services 
 

The majority of fees within the department and its services have been increased 
in aggregate by 3%, in accordance with policy guidance. It should be noted that 
for rounding purposes, de-minimis levels, and market conditions it has 
sometimes been necessary to increase fees slightly above/below this level. 
Further explanations as necessary are provided below: 

 
Adult Social Care 

 
The vast majority of charges in the Adult Social Care area are means tested, so 
regardless of the level of charge, if a client is assessed as not having sufficient 
disposable income they will not pay at all (or will pay a lesser amount) towards 
their care. 

 

Page 86



Some charges contained within Appendix A reflect decisions made earlier in 
this agenda as part of the budget setting process such as increased income  
of £125K through additional fees and charges within Adult & Community 
Services. 

 
Specifically Members agreed as part of the Council Tax process for 2009/10 
to look at increasing the level of charge for Meals on Wheels from April 1st 
2009, as there still exists a subsidy of around £1.50 per meal for this service. 
The proposed increase for Welfare Meals is included in this report and is 
recommending an increase from £3.10 per meal to £3.40 (30 pence) for 
clients. This increase will raise an additional £30k if approved and will still 
leave a subsidy on the 100,000 meals produced in the region of £1.20 per 
meal for 2009/10. 
 
Members have also agreed to consider a modest increase in the hourly charge 
from £10.00 to £11.00 (10%) to those service users who are financially 
assessed to pay for the full cost of their home care by virtue of having personal 
savings in excess of £23,000. This is expected to only affect a relatively small 
number of service users (9%) but will raise additional income of approx £50k. 

 
Included within Appendix A is confirmation of the councils Residential Care 
benchmark prices, which confirms the level at which the Council will normally 
pay for Residential and Nursing Care from independent providers. An increase 
of 1.75% is proposed. This increase is felt competitive within the current 
marketplace for Residential Care. 
 
In accordance with current agreed policy there are some services the council 
currently does not charge for, including Passenger Transport, Adult Day 
Centre and Club services for LBBD residents and Mental Health Services.  
 
Culture and Community Services 

 
The Culture and Community Services within the department cover a wide 
range of services, ranging from Libraries and Museums, the Barking Learning 
Centre and Community Halls. 

 
• Heritage (Museums etc) 

 
Valence House Museum  
The museum is closed to the Public until at least February/March 2010 
as it undergoes major refurbishment and expansion. It is therefore 
proposed not to alter prices at this time and to review prices for 2010/11 
upon re-opening of the Museum. 

 
Eastbury House 
An increase of broadly 3% overall is proposed for services at Eastbury, 
although some fees are proposed to rise by slightly more to cover areas 
where currently we are not recovering costs such as a proposed increase 
of 5-6% for school visits, where the current charge doesn’t always meet 
the cost of educational facilitators brought in. It is not envisaged that 
these increases will affect demand or use. 

Page 87



 
We have also taken into account potential adverse demand for our 
services and frozen some prices (i.e. Adults admission rates to the 
House) on the rationale that increasing charges may put off some of our 
valued service users.  

 
To counter some of the nil increases detailed above we have increased 
hire charges related to wedding and civil ceremonies by approximately 
5% because this is very popular service and we do not believe that an 
increased cost would act as a deterrent since we are one of the few 
historic properties who offer such a venue in the area. Charges are 
benchmarked against similar National Trust houses and historic 
properties run by local authorities. We do understand our visitors and the 
current market and have not raised some charges, such as refreshments, 
since we do not wish to exclude some of our most loyal local visitors. 

 
• Libraries  

 

Overall increases in charges are in line with the recommended 3% 
inflation level. However, this level of increase is not possible for all 
charges due to the unique circumstances in Libraries. Some fees are 
proposed to rise by more than 3% to compensate for areas where we are 
not proposing to increase the fees. All the proposed increases are in line 
with neighbouring boroughs and continue to provide good value for 
money. 

 
The notable increase in % terms is the 1p (from 16p to 17p per day) 
increase on adult fines per day on books and CDs which represents a 
6% increase and affects a substantial number of users and brings in the 
most income for the service.   

 
Another significant increase is on subscription charges which allow users 
to pay a set fee in advance for taking unlimited CD items for a set period. 
The increase is viable as users can get better value by choosing to 
borrow more CDs to make up for the rise in charges. As with the normal 
hire charge, a concession will mean that visually impaired library users 
will not pay the charge.   

 
We are proposing not to increase charges for photocopying as it is not 
practical to increase charges and change the coin denominators that 
operate the machine.  Comparatively people can make photocopies in 
nearby shops at a more reduced price.  

 
We are also proposing not to increase charges for books on tape, DVD 
and music hire.  The current market is deflating with users having the 
opportunity to download music and films.  Long term music and films are 
not financially viable.  We are exploring different methods of service 
delivery for DVDs and music.  

 
We are also proposing a new charge for books on tape subscriptions 
similar to Audio Visual (AV) Subscription.  This is to bring in new income 
and maximise greater use of books on tape.  

Page 88



 
• Barking Learning Centre (BLC)   

 

The charges proposed have been drafted in light of comparable rates in 
the area and have been judged to be at levels that clients will bear 
without pricing the BLC out of the market. The increases are broadly 
within a 3% average increase.  

 
• Community Halls 

 

The charges proposed are substantively within the 3% guidance level 
except for some premium hour hire charges that are proposed to 
increase by modestly more (8%) to reflect costs. 

 
4.2.2 Children’s Services 
 

Currently the Children’s Department only charge for services in relation to the 
Nurseries and Children’s Centres. Whilst the Council has the power under 
Schedule 3 of the Children’s Act 1989 to charge for Children’s Care Services, 
at present, and in line with the vast majority of Boroughs, the Council does 
not charge for these services but retains the option to charge in appropriate 
cases. 
 
It is proposed that the charges for Nurseries and Children’s Centres increase 
to £185. The fee rates are linked to the family credit values for weekly 
childcare support which explains the above inflation increase. 

 
4.2.3 Customer Services 

 
Environmental and Enforcement Services 
 

• Environmental Management 
The fees for Environmental Management have been assessed in line 
with the requirements of the council’s Charging Policy, and as a result all 
proposed fees are set on the basis that charges will recover the full cost 
of the service, including all overheads. 

 

• Waste Disposal 
There have been increases in Landfill Tax and charges from the East 
London Waste Authority (ELWA) to the council in order to sustain the 
new waste disposal infrastructure developments. The proposed 
increased charges reflect the increase in cost of disposal of waste. 

 

• Class 5, Class 7 and Motor Cycle MOT tests 
These tests are charged at a rate determined by the Ministry of Transport 
and are in line with charges made by local garages.  

 

• Licensing 
Some of the charges levied for licences are set by central government 
and outside the control of the council. Fees are set in accordance with 
the Gambling Act 2005. Where a maximum charge has already been set 
no increases have been levied. Those services that have charges set 
below the government guideline have incurred a 3% increase in line with 
the inflation policy. 

Page 89



 
There are also a wide range of licences with discretionary fee 
structures. The proposed increases reflect the administrative burden 
placed by the licensing structure on the council and includes the costs 
of compliance inspection. 

 
• Pest Control 

The proposed increased charges reflect both the current market 
conditions and make an allowance for increases in the cost of specialist 
materials. 

 
• Graffiti Removal 

There are several levels of charges depending on the circumstances of 
the removal and whether the recipient of the service has signed up to the 
Graffiti Charter.  

 
Careline Service 
 

The Careline alarm service is currently being reviewed as the council 
undertakes discussions with Redbridge regarding delivering the service in 
partnership. The new partnership service will operate upon a different cost 
model which is currently being determined. Therefore, it was felt that it would 
be inappropriate to raise costs only to amend them again one the costs of 
the new partnership have been confirmed. 
 
Registrars 
 

The Registration Service provides functions including the statutory 
requirements of Births, Deaths, Marriages and Civil Partnerships, the issue 
of copy certificates and the non-statutory services of Renewal of Vows, Baby 
Naming ceremonies, the Nationality Checking Service (NCS) and Citizenship 
ceremonies. 
 
Following a benchmarking exercise the proposed fees and charges are 
designed to bring the level of fees up to the average level of charge imposed 
by other authorities. In addition, there are some new fees proposed for 
2009/10 which represent services for which we have received previous 
enquiries from customers and for which charges already exist in other 
authorities.   

 
It is proposed that a slight increase is made to the charge for the Nationality 
Checking Service (NCS) to bring the Registrars service in line with the fees 
being charged by other authorities. The flat rate charge of £40 per document 
is proposed to take into account the additional time and administration it 
takes to offer this service. 
 
The charges for marriages/civil partnerships and non statutory ceremonies 
(renewals of vows and baby naming) that take place on Saturday after 
1.45pm and on Sundays/Bank Holidays are proposed to increase by an 
average of 11% to bring them into line with other authorities, This is a higher 
cost service as it is generally accepted that these times fall outside the 
normal core hours when this service is expected to be offered and as such a 
premium will be levied to cover staff and administration costs. 

Page 90



 
The proposed new charges to be introduced in 2009-10 include 

• Web Casting for Civil Marriages 
• Non-Statutory services commemorative certificate 
• Citizenship framed certificate 
• Marriage rehearsals 
• Birth/death/marriage general searches (historical search by public in 

indexes) 
• Registrar attendance at place of worship 

 
Cemeteries 
 

The proposed fees and charges are intended to maintain fee levels at the 
average level charge imposed by other providers. 
 

4.2.4 Regeneration 
 
Off Street Parking 
 

For Barking Town Centre, the shortest stay increases by 10p (11%) and the 
‘up to 4 hr’ stay increases by £1.10 (38%) in order to reduce the anomaly 
between the short stay and long stay periods. The ‘up to 6 hr’ charge 
increases by 50p (8%). Overall these charges still compare favourably with 
parking within Vicarage Fields.  

 
For the Heathway (The Mall), a new short stay charge of ‘up to 1 hr’ is 
introduced at 50p, two charges stay the same, whilst the ‘up to 6 hrs’ and 
‘over 6 hours’ increase by 50p each (20% & 14% respectively), in order to 
reflect those using the car park for commuter parking.     

 
Barking Market 
 

Due to the very large disruption that will follow the arrival of the East London 
Transit Scheme the Council will be in the business of retaining traders and 
attracting new ones in what is now certain to be a very difficult trading 
environment next year. It is our view that an increase would be entirely 
counter productive.  We are also taking account of the competitive position. 
We have imposed above inflation increases over the last three years - 5% for 
2008-9. Comparison with other East London markets shows Barking market 
charges to be at the top end of the scale.   

 
Events 
 

In general charges have been increased by inflation.  Experience last year of 
the staff time needed to manage major events has led to a review of these 
charges and an increase above inflation to improve cost recovery. 

 
Dagenham Town Show - Car Park Fees  
 

The current charge for parking at the Dagenham Town Show is £4.  It is 
proposed that this fee should not change, as increasing the sum by 10p 
would cause delays at the gate when giving change. The alternative would 
be to increase the fee by 50p but this would represent an increase of 12.5% 
and would dissuade people from using the car park (and potentially attending 
the show) as well as increasing traffic congestion in the surrounding roads 
creating a nuisance for local residents.  

Page 91



 
Leisure Activities 
 

In general the proposed charges for leisure activities have been increased by 
the minimum inflation index, subject to roundings.  However, where 
benchmarking and knowledge of the market indicates it to be appropriate, 
prices have been adjusted to reflect market conditions.  In respect of Images 
it should be noted that there is built-in flexibility within the charging 
mechanism to take into consideration if the product from the supplier used in 
the beauty process increases in price and that this will need to be passed 
onto the customer. 

 
To try and encourage more children to become more active more often, 
some junior activity prices have not been increased.  

 
Parks Sports 
 

Some charges have increased in excess of inflation to improve the recovery 
of costs and to reflect the market level of charges. 
 
The current charges for ‘Pitch and Putt’ have been increased by inflation and 
need confirmation from the contractor. 

 
Barking Park- Cricket Net Charges 
 

This service is not yet provided as the recent external bid to the London 
Marathon Trust to fund the installation of cricket practice nets and pitch at 
Barking Park was not successful.  A further bid is planned and if and when 
the pitch and nets are available the charge will be implemented. After 
discussions with local cricket clubs, a charge of £6.50 per hour has been 
agreed for those who are keen to use this proposed new facility. 

 
Land Charges 
 

New legislation obliges all local authorities to set the level of fees for which 
they have authority to charge, on a cost recovery basis and to enact the 
regulations within seven days of being passed into law. The market for 
searches has declined with the reduction in the housing market and in 
addition there has been a change in the pattern of activity from full searches 
towards personal searches, As a result of analysis of both the changing 
volumes of activity and staff time spent on the different activities the rates for 
the different fees have been amended with some increasing above inflation 
and a number being reduced. 

 
Right to Buy 

 
• Notices of assignment, mortgage, sub-let and postponements  

 

Local authorities should recover the costs of providing the service.  
Having reviewed the work involved, the charges being made by 
neighbouring authorities (we were already charging more than other 
authorities) and beginning to receive challenges from external solicitors 
about the level of these fees the charges have been not been increased. 

Page 92



 
• Deeds of Covenant/Rectification/Variation/Enforcement, Licences, 

Licences for Garden Land,  Sale of Garden Land and Duplicate 
DS1/Replacement form 53 

 

The work involved in the provision of this service has been reviewed. It is 
considered that the amount of work involved justifies the proposed 
increase in fee. This view is supported by a review of the fee charged by 
neighbouring authorities for the same work. 

 
• Other Right To Buy Charges  

 

Fees have not been increased for 3 years and it is considered that it is 
now appropriate to increase the fees. 

 
 
5. Consultees 
 
5.1 The members and officers consulted on this report are: 
 
 Councillor Bramley Lead Member Resources 
 Corporate Management Team 

Relevant Service Departments 
Relevant Portfolio Holders 
Group Managers - Finance 
 

 
Background Papers Used in the Preparation of the Report: 
• 2008/09 Budget Strategy 
• Oracle reports 
• Working Papers 
• Local Government Act 2003 
• Benchmarking Information 

Page 93



Page 94

This page is intentionally left blank



FE
ES

 A
N

D
 C

H
A

R
G

ES
 2

00
9/

10
A

PP
EN

D
IX

 A

*
N

ot
 V

at
ab

le

**
in

cl
ud

es
 V

A
T

**
*

ex
cl

ud
es

 V
A

T

 C
ur

re
nt

 2
00

8/
09

 
C

ha
rg

e 
 P

ro
po

se
d 

20
09

/1
0 

C
ha

rg
e 

£
£

£
%

A
du

lts
 &

 C
om

m
un

ity
 S

er
vi

ce
s

A
du

lt 
C

ar
e,

 R
es

id
en

tia
l A

nd
 D

ay
 C

ar
e 

Se
rv

ic
es

1
H

om
e 

C
ar

e 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

- U
p 

to
 2

 h
ou

rs
 p

er
 w

ee
k 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
*

18
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
18

.5
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
50

2.
78

%

2
H

om
e 

C
ar

e 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

- B
et

w
ee

n 
2 

an
d 

10
 h

ou
rs

 o
f s

er
vi

ce
 p

er
 w

ee
k 

*
20

.5
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

21
.2

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

75
3.

66
%

3
H

om
e 

C
ar

e 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

- O
ve

r  
10

 h
ou

rs
 o

f s
er

vi
ce

 p
er

 w
ee

k 
*

23
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
23

.7
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
75

3.
26

%

4
H

om
e 

C
ar

e 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

- F
ul

l c
os

t p
ay

er
s 

( i
e 

, c
lie

nt
s 

w
ith

 in
 e

xc
es

s 
of

 £
22

,0
00

 s
av

in
gs

 ) 
- C

ha
rg

e 
pe

r h
ou

r
*

10
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
11

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

10
.0

0%

5
R

es
id

en
tia

l -
E

ld
er

ly
 R

es
id

en
tia

l H
om

es
  (

 C
ha

rg
e 

to
 O

th
er

 L
oc

al
 A

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 
an

d 
fu

ll 
co

st
 p

ay
er

s 
) p

er
 w

ee
k

*
57

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

59
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

20
.0

0
3.

51
%

6
R

es
id

en
tia

l -
R

es
pi

te
 R

at
e 

pe
r w

ee
k

*
69

.5
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

73
.3

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
3.

80
5.

46
%

7
R

es
id

en
tia

l -
Le

ar
ni

ng
 D

is
ab

ili
ty

 R
es

id
en

tia
l H

om
e 

( C
ha

rg
e 

to
 O

th
er

 L
oc

al
 A

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 
&

 fu
ll 

co
st

 p
ay

er
s 

) p
er

 w
ee

k
*

81
5.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
84

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
25

.0
0

3.
07

%

8
D

ay
 C

en
tre

s 
-M

en
ta

l H
ea

lth
 D

ay
 C

en
tre

 ( 
C

ha
rg

e 
to

 O
th

er
 L

oc
al

 A
ut

ho
rit

ie
s 

)  
P

er
 D

ay
*

33
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
34

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

3.
03

%

9
D

ay
 C

en
tre

s 
- L

ea
rn

in
g 

D
is

ab
ili

ty
 D

ay
 C

en
tre

s 
( C

ha
rg

e 
to

 O
th

er
 L

oc
al

 A
ut

ho
rit

ie
s 

 ) 
P

er
 D

ay
*

57
.5

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
59

.2
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
75

3.
04

%

10
D

ay
 c

en
tre

s 
- H

ea
th

la
nd

s 
D

ay
 C

en
tre

s 
( C

ha
rg

e 
to

 O
th

er
 L

oc
al

 A
ut

ho
rit

ie
s 

) *
 U

p 
to

 3
 s

es
si

on
s 

P
er

 D
ay

 
*

13
5.

60
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
13

9.
70

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
4.

10
3.

02
%

11
S

up
po

rti
ng

 P
eo

pl
e 

-H
ou

si
ng

 re
la

te
d 

S
up

po
rt 

S
ch

em
es

 fo
r V

ul
ne

ra
bl

e 
P

eo
pl

e 
 - 

(M
in

im
al

 n
um

be
r)

*
£2

 to
 £

48
£2

 to
 £

48
0.

00
0.

00
%

12
M

ea
ls

 o
n 

W
he

el
s 

- W
el

fa
re

 M
ea

l C
ha

rg
e 

  (
 C

ur
re

nt
 m

ea
l c

os
t =

 £
4.

30
 to

 C
ou

nc
il 

)  
  

*
3.

10
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

3.
40

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
0.

30
9.

68
%

13
R

es
id

en
tia

l  
- E

xt
er

na
lly

 p
ur

ch
as

ed
 (B

en
ch

m
ar

k 
pr

ic
e 

i.e
. m

ax
im

um
 n

or
m

al
ly

 p
ay

ab
le

)
*

45
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
45

8.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
8.

00
1.

78
%

14
N

ur
si

ng
 C

ar
e 

- E
xt

er
na

lly
 p

ur
ch

as
ed

 (B
en

ch
m

ar
k 

pr
ic

e 
i.e

. m
ax

im
um

 n
or

m
al

ly
 p

ay
ab

le
)

*
57

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

58
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

10
.0

0
1.

75
%

H
er

ita
ge

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
- E

as
tb

ur
y 

M
an

or
 H

ou
se

   

15
E

as
tb

ur
y 

M
an

or
 H

ou
se

 - 
C

om
m

er
ci

al
 - 

S
ta

nd
ar

d 
R

oo
m

 h
ire

 
**

*
17

.4
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

18
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

60
3.

45
%

16
E

as
tb

ur
y 

M
an

or
 H

ou
se

 - 
C

om
m

er
ci

al
 - 

H
ire

 o
f l

on
g 

ga
lle

ry
   

 
**

*
34

.8
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

36
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

20
3.

45
%

17
E

as
tb

ur
y 

M
an

or
 H

ou
se

 - 
C

om
m

er
ci

al
 - 

H
ire

 o
f w

ho
le

 h
ou

se
   

**
*

52
.2

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
54

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
80

3.
45

%

18
E

as
tb

ur
y 

M
an

or
 H

ou
se

 - 
C

om
m

er
ci

al
 - 

H
ire

 o
f e

qu
ip

m
en

t  
   

 
**

*
10

.8
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

11
.2

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

35
3.

23
%

19
E

as
tb

ur
y 

M
an

or
 H

ou
se

 - 
C

om
m

er
ci

al
 - 

H
ire

 o
f P

ow
er

P
oi

nt
   

  
**

*
16

.3
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

16
.8

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

45
2.

75
%

20
E

as
tb

ur
y 

M
an

or
 H

ou
se

 - 
C

om
m

er
ci

al
 - 

C
at

er
in

g 
te

a/
co

ffe
e

**
*

0.
80

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

80
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
00

0.
00

%

21
E

as
tb

ur
y 

M
an

or
 H

ou
se

 - 
C

om
m

er
ci

al
 - 

C
at

er
in

g 
te

a/
co

ffe
e/

bi
sc

ui
ts

**
*

1.
10

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

10
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
00

0.
00

%

22
E

as
tb

ur
y 

M
an

or
 H

ou
se

 - 
C

om
m

er
ci

al
 - 

C
at

er
in

g 
m

en
u 

A
**

*
4.

80
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

5.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
0.

20
4.

17
%

23
E

as
tb

ur
y 

M
an

or
 H

ou
se

 - 
C

om
m

er
ci

al
 - 

C
at

er
in

g 
m

en
u 

B
**

*
6.

70
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

6.
90

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
0.

20
2.

99
%

24
E

as
tb

ur
y 

M
an

or
 H

ou
se

 - 
C

om
m

er
ci

al
 - 

C
at

er
in

g 
m

en
u 

C
,D

,E
**

*
7.

70
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

7.
90

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
0.

20
2.

60
%

25
E

as
tb

ur
y 

M
an

or
 H

ou
se

 - 
C

om
m

er
ci

al
 - 

C
at

er
in

g 
m

en
u 

F
**

*
13

.3
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

13
.7

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

40
3.

01
%

26
E

as
tb

ur
y 

M
an

or
 H

ou
se

 - 
N

on
 C

om
m

er
ci

al
 - 

R
oo

m
 h

ire
*

13
.0

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
13

.5
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
45

3.
45

%

27
E

as
tb

ur
y 

M
an

or
 H

ou
se

 - 
E

du
ca

tio
n 

LB
B

D
 s

ch
oo

l h
ire

 u
p 

to
 3

5 
ch

ild
re

n
*

17
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
18

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
10

.0
0

5.
88

%

28
E

as
tb

ur
y 

M
an

or
 H

ou
se

 - 
E

du
ca

tio
n 

LB
B

D
 s

ch
oo

l h
ire

 u
p 

to
 7

5 
ch

ild
re

n
*

22
5.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
24

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
15

.0
0

6.
67

%

29
E

as
tb

ur
y 

M
an

or
 H

ou
se

 - 
E

du
ca

tio
n 

 N
on

 L
B

B
D

 s
ch

oo
l h

ire
 u

p 
to

 3
5 

ch
ild

re
n

*
22

5.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

24
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

15
.0

0
6.

67
%

30
E

as
tb

ur
y 

M
an

or
 H

ou
se

 - 
E

du
ca

tio
n 

N
on

 L
B

B
D

 s
ch

oo
l h

ire
 u

p 
to

 7
5 

ch
ild

re
n

*
28

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

30
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

20
.0

0
7.

14
%

31
E

as
tb

ur
y 

M
an

or
 H

ou
se

 - 
C

iv
il 

m
ar

ria
ge

 a
nd

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 c
er

em
on

y 
Fr

id
ay

s
*

17
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
18

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
10

.0
0

5.
88

%

32
E

as
tb

ur
y 

M
an

or
 H

ou
se

 - 
C

iv
il 

m
ar

ria
ge

 a
nd

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 c
er

em
on

y 
S

at
ur

da
ys

 O
ct

- A
pr

il
*

20
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
21

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
10

.0
0

5.
00

%

33
E

as
tb

ur
y 

M
an

or
 H

ou
se

 - 
C

iv
il 

m
ar

ria
ge

 a
nd

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 c
er

em
on

y 
S

at
ur

da
ys

 M
ay

- S
ep

t
*

25
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
26

5.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
15

.0
0

6.
00

%

34
E

as
tb

ur
y 

M
an

or
 H

ou
se

 - 
C

iv
il 

m
ar

ria
ge

 a
nd

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 c
er

em
on

y 
Fr

id
ay

s 
w

ith
 d

rin
ks

 re
ce

pt
io

n
*

34
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
36

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
20

.0
0

5.
88

%

Pr
op

os
ed

 In
cr

ea
se

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

of
 S

er
vi

ce

Page 95



FE
ES

 A
N

D
 C

H
A

R
G

ES
 2

00
9/

10
A

PP
EN

D
IX

 A

*
N

ot
 V

at
ab

le

**
in

cl
ud

es
 V

A
T

**
*

ex
cl

ud
es

 V
A

T

 C
ur

re
nt

 2
00

8/
09

 
C

ha
rg

e 
 P

ro
po

se
d 

20
09

/1
0 

C
ha

rg
e 

£
£

£
%

Pr
op

os
ed

 In
cr

ea
se

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

of
 S

er
vi

ce

35
E

as
tb

ur
y 

M
an

or
 H

ou
se

 - 
C

iv
il 

m
ar

ria
ge

 a
nd

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 c
er

em
on

y 
S

at
ur

da
ys

 O
ct

- w
ith

 d
rin

ks
 re

ce
pt

io
n

*
40

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

42
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

20
.0

0
5.

00
%

36
E

as
tb

ur
y 

M
an

or
 H

ou
se

 - 
C

iv
il 

m
ar

ria
ge

 a
nd

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 c
er

em
on

y 
S

at
ur

da
ys

 M
ay

- S
ep

t w
ith

 d
rin

ks
 re

ce
pt

io
n

*
45

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

47
5.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

25
.0

0
5.

56
%

37
E

as
tb

ur
y 

M
an

or
 H

ou
se

 - 
A

dm
is

si
on

 c
ha

rg
es

 A
du

lt 
- S

at
ur

da
y

**
2.

50
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2.
50

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
0.

00
0.

00
%

38
E

as
tb

ur
y 

M
an

or
 H

ou
se

 - 
A

dm
is

si
on

 c
ha

rg
es

 A
du

lt 
- M

on
da

y/
Tu

es
da

y
**

1.
25

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

25
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
00

0.
00

%

39
E

as
tb

ur
y 

M
an

or
 H

ou
se

 - 
A

dm
is

si
on

 c
ha

rg
es

 c
on

ce
ss

io
ns

**
1.

25
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
25

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
0.

00
0.

00
%

40
E

as
tb

ur
y 

M
an

or
 H

ou
se

 - 
A

dm
is

si
on

 c
ha

rg
es

 C
hi

ld
 a

ge
d 

5-
15

**
0.

65
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
65

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
0.

00
0.

00
%

41
E

as
tb

ur
y 

M
an

or
 H

ou
se

 - 
A

dm
is

si
on

 c
ha

rg
es

 fa
m

ily
 ( 

2 
ad

ul
ts

 w
ith

 u
p 

to
 3

 c
hi

ld
re

n)
**

5.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
5.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
00

0.
00

%

42
E

as
tb

ur
y 

M
an

or
 H

ou
se

 - 
A

dm
is

si
on

 c
ha

rg
es

 s
pe

ci
al

 e
ve

nt
s 

- m
in

im
um

**
3.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

3.
25

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
0.

25
8.

33
%

43
E

as
tb

ur
y 

M
an

or
 H

ou
se

 - 
A

dm
is

si
on

 c
ha

rg
es

 s
pe

ci
al

 e
ve

nt
s 

- m
ax

im
um

**
15

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

20
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
5.

00
33

.3
3%

H
er

ita
ge

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
- V

al
en

ce
 H

ou
se

- 0
8/

09
 p

ric
es

 fi
xe

d 
as

 c
lo

se
d 

to
 p

ub
lic

 u
nt

il 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 2

01
0

44
V

al
en

ce
 H

ou
se

 - 
C

om
m

er
ci

al
 - 

A
ct

iv
iti

es
 ro

om
 h

ire
*

16
.7

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
16

.7
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
00

0.
00

%

45
V

al
en

ce
 H

ou
se

 - 
C

om
m

er
ci

al
 - 

R
iv

er
 ro

om
 h

ire
*

16
.7

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
16

.7
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
00

0.
00

%

46
V

al
en

ce
 H

ou
se

 - 
C

om
m

er
ci

al
 - 

In
du

st
ry

 ro
om

 h
ire

*
16

.7
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

16
.7

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

00
0.

00
%

47
V

al
en

ce
 H

ou
se

 - 
C

om
m

er
ci

al
 - 

E
qu

ip
m

en
t h

ire
*

14
.2

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
14

.2
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
00

0.
00

%

48
V

al
en

ce
 H

ou
se

 - 
C

om
m

er
ci

al
 - 

C
at

er
in

g 
te

a/
co

ffe
e/

bo
ttl

ed
 w

at
er

*
1.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
0.

00
0.

00
%

49
V

al
en

ce
 H

ou
se

 - 
C

om
m

er
ci

al
 - 

C
at

er
in

g 
pl

at
e 

of
 b

is
cu

its
*

1.
55

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

55
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
00

0.
00

%

50
V

al
en

ce
 H

ou
se

 - 
E

du
ca

tio
n 

LB
B

D
 S

ch
oo

l h
ire

 h
al

f d
ay

 w
ith

 fa
ci

lit
at

or
s 

up
 to

 3
5 

ch
ild

re
n

*
80

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

80
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

00
0.

00
%

51
V

al
en

ce
 H

ou
se

 - 
E

du
ca

tio
n 

LB
B

D
 S

ch
oo

l h
ire

 h
al

f d
ay

 w
ith

 fa
ci

lit
at

or
s 

up
 to

 7
0 

ch
ild

re
n

*
10

5.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

10
5.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

0.
00

%

52
V

al
en

ce
 H

ou
se

 - 
E

du
ca

tio
n 

LB
B

D
 S

ch
oo

l h
ire

 fu
ll 

da
y 

w
ith

 fa
ci

lit
at

or
s 

*
21

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

21
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

0.
00

%

53
V

al
en

ce
 H

ou
se

 - 
E

du
ca

tio
n 

N
on

  L
B

B
D

 S
ch

oo
l h

ire
 h

al
f d

ay
 w

ith
 fa

ci
lit

at
or

s 
up

 to
 3

5 
ch

ild
re

n
*

12
8.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
12

8.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
0.

00
%

54
V

al
en

ce
 H

ou
se

 - 
E

du
ca

tio
n 

N
on

 L
B

B
D

 S
ch

oo
l h

ire
 h

al
f d

ay
 w

ith
 fa

ci
lit

at
or

s 
up

 to
 7

0 
ch

ild
re

n
*

15
3.

75
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
15

3.
75

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
0.

00
%

55
V

al
en

ce
 H

ou
se

 - 
E

du
ca

tio
n 

N
on

 L
B

B
D

 S
ch

oo
l h

ire
 fu

ll 
da

y 
w

ith
 fa

ci
lit

at
or

s 
*

26
5.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
26

5.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
0.

00
%

56
V

al
en

ce
 H

ou
se

 - 
E

du
ca

tio
n 

H
er

ita
ge

 O
ffi

ce
r s

es
si

on
 /t

al
k

*
27

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

27
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

00
0.

00
%

57
V

al
en

ce
 H

ou
se

 - 
E

du
ca

tio
n 

lo
an

 b
ox

 p
er

 w
ee

k
*

10
.5

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
10

.5
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
00

0.
00

%

58
V

al
en

ce
 H

ou
se

 - 
W

or
ks

ho
ps

 C
hi

ld
re

n'
s 

ha
lf 

-d
ay

*
2.

50
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2.
50

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
0.

00
0.

00
%

59
V

al
en

ce
 H

ou
se

 - 
W

or
ks

ho
ps

 A
du

lts
 fu

ll 
-d

ay
*

5.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
5.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
00

0.
00

%

60
V

al
en

ce
 H

ou
se

 - 
W

or
ks

ho
ps

 T
al

ks
*

2.
50

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2.

50
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
00

0.
00

%

61
V

al
en

ce
 H

ou
se

 R
ep

ro
gr

ap
hi

cs
 - 

A
4 

b/
w

**
4.

29
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

4.
29

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
0.

00
0.

00
%

62
V

al
en

ce
 H

ou
se

 R
ep

ro
gr

ap
hi

cs
- A

3 
b/

w
**

11
.9

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
11

.9
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
00

0.
00

%

63
V

al
en

ce
 H

ou
se

 R
ep

ro
gr

ap
hi

cs
 - 

A
4 

co
lo

ur
**

9.
25

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
9.

25
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
00

0.
00

%

64
V

al
en

ce
 H

ou
se

 R
ep

ro
gr

ap
hi

cs
 - 

A
3 

co
lo

ur
**

21
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
21

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
00

0.
00

%

65
V

al
en

ce
 H

ou
se

 R
ep

ro
gr

ap
hi

cs
- D

ig
ita

l s
ca

n 
fo

r e
-m

ai
l

**
3.

70
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

3.
70

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
0.

00
0.

00
%

66
V

al
en

ce
 H

ou
se

 R
ep

ro
gr

ap
hi

cs
- C

ut
tin

g 
to

 C
D

**
1.

50
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
50

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
0.

00
0.

00
%

67
V

al
en

ce
 H

ou
se

 R
ep

ro
gr

ap
hi

cs
- R

ec
or

de
d 

po
st

 a
nd

 p
ac

ki
ng

**
*

2.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
00

0.
00

%

68
V

al
en

ce
 H

ou
se

 R
ep

ro
gr

ap
hi

cs
 - 

P
ho

to
co

pi
es

 A
4

**
0.

09
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
09

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
0.

00
0.

00
%

69
V

al
en

ce
 H

ou
se

 R
ep

ro
gr

ap
hi

cs
 - 

P
ho

to
co

pi
es

 A
3

**
0.

20
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
20

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
0.

00
0.

00
%

70
V

al
en

ce
 H

ou
se

 R
ep

ro
gr

ap
hi

cs
 - 

M
ic

ro
fil

m
 p

rin
to

ut
 A

4
**

0.
35

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

35
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
00

0.
00

%

Page 96



FE
ES

 A
N

D
 C

H
A

R
G

ES
 2

00
9/

10
A

PP
EN

D
IX

 A

*
N

ot
 V

at
ab

le

**
in

cl
ud

es
 V

A
T

**
*

ex
cl

ud
es

 V
A

T

 C
ur

re
nt

 2
00

8/
09

 
C

ha
rg

e 
 P

ro
po

se
d 

20
09

/1
0 

C
ha

rg
e 

£
£

£
%

Pr
op

os
ed

 In
cr

ea
se

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

of
 S

er
vi

ce

71
V

al
en

ce
 H

ou
se

 R
ep

ro
gr

ap
hi

cs
 - 

M
in

im
um

 c
os

t f
or

 n
on

-v
is

ito
r

**
1.

50
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
50

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
0.

00
0.

00
%

72
V

al
en

ce
 H

ou
se

 R
ep

ro
du

ct
io

n 
fe

es
 fo

r p
ub

lic
at

io
ns

- b
oo

ks
/ p

er
io

di
ca

ls
 o

ne
 c

ou
nt

ry
 o

ne
 la

ng
ua

ge
 b

/w
*

50
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
50

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
00

0.
00

%

73
V

al
en

ce
 H

ou
se

 R
ep

ro
du

ct
io

n 
fe

es
 fo

r p
ub

lic
at

io
ns

- b
oo

ks
/ p

er
io

di
ca

ls
 o

ne
 c

ou
nt

ry
 o

ne
 la

ng
ua

ge
 in

 c
ol

ou
r

*
75

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

75
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

00
0.

00
%

74
V

al
en

ce
 H

ou
se

 R
ep

ro
du

ct
io

n 
fe

es
 fo

r p
ub

lic
at

io
ns

- b
oo

ks
/ p

er
io

di
ca

ls
 w

or
ld

 o
ne

 la
ng

ua
ge

  b
/w

*
80

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

80
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

00
0.

00
%

75
V

al
en

ce
 H

ou
se

 R
ep

ro
du

ct
io

n 
fe

es
 fo

r p
ub

lic
at

io
ns

- b
oo

ks
/ p

er
io

di
ca

ls
 w

or
ld

 o
ne

 la
ng

ua
ge

  i
n 

co
lo

ur
*

95
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
95

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
00

0.
00

%

76
V

al
en

ce
 H

ou
se

 R
ep

ro
du

ct
io

n 
fe

es
 fo

r p
ub

lic
at

io
ns

- b
oo

ks
/ p

er
io

di
ca

ls
 w

or
ld

 m
ul

ti 
la

ng
ua

ge
  b

/w
*

10
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
10

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
0.

00
%

77
V

al
en

ce
 H

ou
se

 R
ep

ro
du

ct
io

n 
fe

es
 fo

r p
ub

lic
at

io
ns

- b
oo

ks
/ p

er
io

di
ca

ls
 w

or
ld

 m
ul

ti 
la

ng
ua

ge
  i

n 
co

lo
ur

*
12

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

12
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

0.
00

%

78
V

al
en

ce
 H

ou
se

 R
ep

ro
du

ct
io

n 
fe

es
 fo

r p
ub

lic
at

io
ns

- b
oo

k 
ja

ck
et

s,
 C

D
 v

id
eo

 c
as

es
 o

ne
 c

ou
nt

ry
 o

ne
 la

ng
ua

ge
 b

/w
*

85
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
85

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
00

0.
00

%

79
V

al
en

ce
 H

ou
se

 R
ep

ro
du

ct
io

n 
fe

es
 fo

r p
ub

lic
at

io
ns

- b
oo

k 
ja

ck
et

s,
 C

D
 v

id
eo

 c
as

es
 w

or
ld

 o
ne

 la
ng

ua
ge

 b
/w

*
12

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

12
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

0.
00

%

80
V

al
en

ce
 H

ou
se

 R
ep

ro
du

ct
io

n 
fe

es
 fo

r p
ub

lic
at

io
ns

- b
oo

k 
ja

ck
et

s,
 C

D
 v

id
eo

 c
as

es
 w

or
ld

 m
ul

ti 
la

ng
ua

ge
 c

ol
ou

r
*

15
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
15

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
0.

00
%

81
V

al
en

ce
 H

ou
se

 R
ep

ro
du

ct
io

n 
fe

es
 fo

r s
til

ls
 fo

r T
V

/fi
lm

s 
an

d 
ex

hi
bi

tio
ns

 - 
 O

ne
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e,
 o

ne
 tr

an
sm

is
si

on
 o

ne
 c

ou
nt

ry
*

75
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
75

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
00

0.
00

%

82
V

al
en

ce
 H

ou
se

 R
ep

ro
du

ct
io

n 
fe

es
 fo

r s
til

ls
 fo

r T
V

/fi
lm

s 
an

d 
ex

hi
bi

tio
ns

 - 
O

ne
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e,
 o

ne
 tr

an
sm

is
si

on
 o

ne
 c

ou
nt

ry
 w

ith
 o

ne
 re

pe
at

*
10

5.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

10
5.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

0.
00

%

83
V

al
en

ce
 H

ou
se

 R
ep

ro
du

ct
io

n 
fe

es
 fo

r s
til

ls
 fo

r T
V

/fi
lm

s 
an

d 
ex

hi
bi

tio
ns

 - 
O

ne
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e,
 o

ne
 tr

an
sm

is
si

on
 w

or
ld

*
10

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

10
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

0.
00

%

84
V

al
en

ce
 H

ou
se

 R
ep

ro
du

ct
io

n 
fe

es
 fo

r s
til

ls
 fo

r T
V

/fi
lm

s 
an

d 
ex

hi
bi

tio
ns

 - 
O

ne
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e,
 o

ne
 tr

an
sm

is
si

on
 w

or
ld

 w
ith

 o
ne

 re
pe

at
*

14
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
14

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
0.

00
%

85
V

al
en

ce
 H

ou
se

 R
ep

ro
du

ct
io

n 
fe

es
 fo

r s
til

ls
 fo

r T
V

/fi
lm

s 
an

d 
ex

hi
bi

tio
ns

 - 
O

ne
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e,
 5

 y
ea

r u
nl

im
ite

d 
lic

en
ce

*
30

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

30
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

0.
00

%

86
V

al
en

ce
 H

ou
se

 R
ep

ro
du

ct
io

n 
fe

es
 fo

r s
til

ls
 fo

r T
V

/fi
lm

s 
an

d 
ex

hi
bi

tio
ns

 - 
P

os
tc

ar
ds

, g
re

et
in

g 
ca

rd
s,

 p
os

te
rs

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 a

dv
er

tis
in

g 
m

at
er

ia
l

*
15

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

15
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

0.
00

%

87
V

al
en

ce
 H

ou
se

 R
ep

ro
du

ct
io

n 
fe

es
 fo

r s
til

ls
 fo

r T
V

/fi
lm

s 
an

d 
ex

hi
bi

tio
ns

 - 
C

D
 ro

om
s,

 P
ho

to
 C

D
 a

nd
 c

om
m

er
ci

al
 w

eb
 p

ag
es

 
*

75
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
75

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
00

0.
00

%

88
V

al
en

ce
 H

ou
se

 R
ep

ro
du

ct
io

n 
fe

es
 fo

r s
til

ls
 fo

r T
V

/fi
lm

s 
an

d 
ex

hi
bi

tio
ns

 - 
P

er
so

na
l w

eb
 p

ag
es

*
35

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

35
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

00
0.

00
%

89
Li

br
ar

ie
s 

- A
du

lt 
Fi

ne
s 

pe
r d

ay
*

0.
16

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

17
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
01

6.
25

%

90
Li

br
ar

ie
s 

- M
ax

im
um

 fi
ne

 p
er

 it
em

*
5.

50
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

6.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
0.

50
9.

09
%

91
Li

br
ar

ie
s-

 H
ire

 o
f v

id
eo

/D
V

D
 c

hi
ld

re
n'

s/
N

F-
 p

er
 w

ee
k

*
1.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
0.

00
0.

00
%

92
Li

br
ar

ie
s-

 H
ire

 o
f v

id
eo

/D
V

D
 a

du
lts

- p
er

 w
ee

k
*

2.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
00

0.
00

%

93
Li

br
ar

ie
s-

 H
ire

 o
f v

id
eo

/D
V

D
 fi

ne
s 

pe
r d

ay
*

0.
55

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

60
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
05

9.
09

%

94
Li

br
ar

ie
s 

-  
La

ng
ua

ge
 c

ou
rs

es
 - 

3 
w

ee
ks

*
1.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
10

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
0.

10
10

.0
0%

95
Li

br
ar

ie
s 

-  
La

ng
ua

ge
 c

ou
rs

es
 - 

fin
es

 p
er

 d
ay

*
0.

16
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
17

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
0.

01
6.

25
%

96
Li

br
ar

ie
s 

- H
ire

 o
f C

D
 s

in
gl

es
*

1.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
00

0.
00

%

97
Li

br
ar

ie
s 

- H
ire

 o
f C

D
 b

ox
 s

et
s

*
1.

50
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
50

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
0.

00
0.

00
%

98
Li

br
ar

ie
s 

- H
ire

 o
f C

D
 fi

ne
s 

pe
r d

ay
*

0.
16

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

17
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
01

6.
25

%

99
Li

br
ar

ie
s 

- A
V

 a
nn

ua
l s

ub
sc

rip
tio

n
*

30
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
32

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2.
00

6.
67

%

10
0

Li
br

ar
ie

s 
- A

V
 6

 m
on

th
 s

ub
sc

rip
tio

n
*

15
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
17

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2.
00

13
.3

3%

10
1

Li
br

ar
ie

s 
- A

V
 3

 m
on

th
 s

ub
sc

rip
tio

n
*

10
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
12

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2.
00

20
.0

0%

10
2

Li
br

ar
ie

s 
- R

es
er

va
tio

ns
-n

on
 s

to
ck

 it
em

s
*

1.
20

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

25
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
05

4.
17

%

10
3

Li
br

ar
ie

s 
- P

ho
to

co
py

in
g 

 A
4

**
0.

10
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
10

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
0.

00
0.

00
%

10
4

Li
br

ar
ie

s 
- P

ho
to

co
py

in
g 

 A
3

**
0.

20
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
20

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
0.

00
0.

00
%

10
5

Li
br

ar
ie

s-
 M

an
ag

ed
 ro

om
 h

ire
 p

er
 h

ou
r-

 m
in

im
um

 c
ha

rg
e

*
4.

80
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

5.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
0.

20
4.

17
%

10
6

Li
br

ar
ie

s-
 M

an
ag

ed
 ro

om
 h

ire
 p

er
 h

ou
r-

 m
ax

im
um

 c
ha

rg
e

*
21

.5
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

22
.5

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
4.

65
%

Li
br

ar
y 

Se
rv

ic
e

Page 97



FE
ES

 A
N

D
 C

H
A

R
G

ES
 2

00
9/

10
A

PP
EN

D
IX

 A

*
N

ot
 V

at
ab

le

**
in

cl
ud

es
 V

A
T

**
*

ex
cl

ud
es

 V
A

T

 C
ur

re
nt

 2
00

8/
09

 
C

ha
rg

e 
 P

ro
po

se
d 

20
09

/1
0 

C
ha

rg
e 

£
£

£
%

Pr
op

os
ed

 In
cr

ea
se

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

of
 S

er
vi

ce

10
7

Li
br

ar
ie

s-
 A

nn
ua

l s
ub

sc
rip

tio
n,

 b
oo

ks
 o

n 
ta

pe
*

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
32

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

n/
a

n/
a

10
8

Li
br

ar
ie

s-
 6

 m
on

th
 s

ub
sc

rip
tio

n,
 b

oo
ks

 o
n 

ta
pe

*
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

17
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
n/

a
n/

a

10
9

Li
br

ar
ie

s-
 3

 m
on

th
 s

ub
sc

rip
tio

n,
 b

oo
ks

 o
n 

ta
pe

*
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

12
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
n/

a
n/

a

11
0

Li
br

ar
ie

s-
 H

ire
 o

f b
oo

ks
 o

n 
ta

pe
/C

D
's

/B
ox

 s
et

s*
*

1.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
00

0.
00

%

11
1

Li
br

ar
ie

s-
 H

ire
 o

f b
oo

ks
 o

n 
ta

pe
 fi

ne
s 

pe
r d

ay
*

0.
16

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

17
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
01

6.
25

%

*c
on

ce
ss

io
ns

 F
R

E
E

 fo
r d

is
ab

le
d 

pe
op

le
 a

nd
 v

is
ua

lly
 im

pa
ire

d 
us

er
s

B
ar

ki
ng

 L
ea

rn
in

g 
C

en
tr

e
11

2
S

m
al

l m
ee

tin
g 

ro
om

 (2
-1

5 
pe

op
le

)-
 h

ou
rly

 h
ire

 ra
te

- C
ou

nc
il/

 p
ub

lic
/ v

ol
un

ta
ry

 a
nd

 c
om

m
un

ity
 s

ec
to

r
*

25
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
26

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

4.
00

%

11
3

S
m

al
l m

ee
tin

g 
ro

om
 (2

-1
5 

pe
op

le
)-

 h
ou

rly
 h

ire
 ra

te
- C

om
m

er
ci

al
**

*
50

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

52
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2.

00
4.

00
%

11
4

La
rg

e 
m

ee
tin

g 
ro

om
 (1

6-
28

 p
eo

pl
e)

- h
ou

rly
 h

ire
 ra

te
- C

ou
nc

il/
 p

ub
lic

/ v
ol

un
ta

ry
 a

nd
 c

om
m

un
ity

 s
ec

to
r

*
35

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

36
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
2.

86
%

11
5

La
rg

e 
m

ee
tin

g 
ro

om
 (1

6-
28

 p
eo

pl
e)

- h
ou

rly
 h

ire
 ra

te
- C

om
m

er
ci

al
**

*
70

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

72
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2.

00
2.

86
%

11
6

C
on

fe
re

nc
e 

ce
nt

re
 (2

8-
12

0 
pe

op
le

)-
ho

ur
ly

 h
ire

 ra
te

- C
ou

nc
il/

 p
ub

lic
/ v

ol
un

ta
ry

 a
nd

 c
om

m
un

ity
 s

ec
to

r
*

45
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
46

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

2.
22

%

11
7

C
on

fe
re

nc
e 

ce
nt

re
 (2

8-
12

0 
pe

op
le

)-
ho

ur
ly

 h
ire

 ra
te

- C
om

m
er

ci
al

**
*

90
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
92

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2.
00

2.
22

%

11
8

S
m

al
l m

ee
tin

g 
ro

om
 p

ro
je

ct
or

 p
er

 d
ay

- C
ou

nc
il/

 p
ub

lic
/ v

ol
un

ta
ry

 a
nd

 c
om

m
un

ity
 s

ec
to

r
*

15
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
15

.5
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
50

3.
33

%

11
9

S
m

al
l m

ee
tin

g 
ro

om
 p

ro
je

ct
or

 p
er

 d
ay

- C
om

m
er

ci
al

**
*

30
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
31

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

3.
33

%

12
0

S
m

al
l m

ee
tin

g 
ro

om
 P

C
/la

pt
op

 p
er

 d
ay

- C
ou

nc
il/

 p
ub

lic
/ v

ol
un

ta
ry

 a
nd

 c
om

m
un

ity
 s

ec
to

r
*

20
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
21

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

5.
00

%

12
1

S
m

al
l m

ee
tin

g 
ro

om
 P

C
/la

pt
op

 p
er

 d
ay

- C
om

m
er

ci
al

**
*

40
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
42

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2.
00

5.
00

%

12
2

U
se

 o
f c

hi
na

/ g
la

ss
 fo

r r
ef

re
sh

m
en

ts
 p

er
 p

er
so

n 
pe

r s
es

si
on

- C
ou

nc
il/

 p
ub

lic
/ v

ol
un

ta
ry

 a
nd

 c
om

m
un

ity
 s

ec
to

r
*

1.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
00

0.
00

%

C
om

m
un

ity
 H

al
ls

12
3

C
at

eg
or

y 
A

 H
al

l -
 S

at
ur

da
y 

Le
t -

 F
irs

t f
ou

r h
ou

rs
*

20
5.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
21

1.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
6.

00
2.

93
%

12
4

C
at

eg
or

y 
A

 H
al

l -
 S

at
ur

da
y 

Le
t -

 E
ac

h 
ad

di
tio

na
l h

ou
r

*
41

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

42
.2

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

20
2.

93
%

12
5

C
at

eg
or

y 
A

 H
al

l -
 S

at
ur

da
y 

Le
t -

 P
re

m
iu

m
 c

ha
rg

e 
23

00
hr

s 
to

 m
id

ni
gh

t
*

58
.5

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
63

.3
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

4.
80

8.
21

%

12
6

C
at

eg
or

y 
A

 H
al

l -
 S

un
da

y 
Le

t -
 F

irs
t f

ou
r h

ou
rs

*
26

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

26
7.

50
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

7.
50

2.
88

%

12
7

C
at

eg
or

y 
A

 H
al

l -
 S

un
da

y 
Le

t -
 E

ac
h 

ad
di

tio
na

l h
ou

r
*

52
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
53

.5
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
50

2.
88

%

12
8

C
at

eg
or

y 
B

 H
al

l -
 F

irs
t f

ou
r h

ou
rs

*
15

2.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

15
6.

50
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

4.
50

2.
96

%

12
9

C
at

eg
or

y 
B

 H
al

l -
 E

ac
h 

ad
di

tio
na

l h
ou

r
*

30
.5

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
31

.3
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
80

2.
62

%

13
0

C
at

eg
or

y 
B

 H
al

l -
 P

re
m

iu
m

 c
ha

rg
e 

23
00

hr
s 

to
 m

id
ni

gh
t

*
43

.5
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

46
.9

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
3.

45
7.

93
%

C
hi

ld
re

n'
s 

Se
rv

ic
es

C
hi

ld
ca

re
 S

er
vi

ce
s

13
1

E
ar

ly
 Y

ea
rs

 -D
ay

 N
ur

se
rie

s 
an

d 
C

hi
ld

re
n'

s 
C

en
tre

s 
*

17
5.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
18

5.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
10

.0
0

5.
71

%

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l S
er

vi
ce

s
13

2
Tr

ad
e 

R
ef

us
e 

C
ol

le
ct

io
n 

- R
ef

us
e 

S
ac

ks
**

*
3.

22
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

3.
54

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
0.

32
9.

94
%

13
3

Tr
ad

e 
R

ef
us

e 
C

ol
le

ct
io

n 
- E

ur
o 

or
 P

al
ad

in
 B

in
 P

er
 C

ol
le

ct
io

n
**

*
16

.0
9

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

17
.7

9
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

70
10

.5
7%

C
U

ST
O

M
ER

 S
ER

VI
C

ES

Page 98



FE
ES

 A
N

D
 C

H
A

R
G

ES
 2

00
9/

10
A

PP
EN

D
IX

 A

*
N

ot
 V

at
ab

le

**
in

cl
ud

es
 V

A
T

**
*

ex
cl

ud
es

 V
A

T

 C
ur

re
nt

 2
00

8/
09

 
C

ha
rg

e 
 P

ro
po

se
d 

20
09

/1
0 

C
ha

rg
e 

£
£

£
%

Pr
op

os
ed

 In
cr

ea
se

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

of
 S

er
vi

ce

13
4

Tr
ad

e 
R

ef
us

e 
C

ol
le

ct
io

n 
- E

ur
o 

or
 P

al
ad

in
 B

in
 P

er
 C

ol
le

ct
io

n 
w

he
re

 th
er

e 
ar

e 
m

or
e 

th
an

 s
ix

 u
ni

ts
 o

n 
si

te
**

*
11

.3
2

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

12
.4

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

13
9.

98
%

13
5

Tr
ad

e 
R

ef
us

e 
C

ol
le

ct
io

n 
- E

ur
o 

or
 P

al
ad

in
 B

in
 A

nn
ua

l r
en

ta
l

**
*

87
.2

4
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
95

.9
6

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

8.
72

10
.0

0%

13
6

9 
C

ub
ic

 y
ar

d 
D

em
ou

nt
ab

le
 c

on
ta

in
er

 -C
ha

rg
e 

pe
r C

ol
le

ct
io

n
**

*
15

3.
46

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

16
8.

81
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

15
.3

5
10

.0
0%

13
7

9 
C

ub
ic

 y
ar

d 
D

em
ou

nt
ab

le
 c

on
ta

in
er

 - 
A

nn
ua

l r
en

ta
l

**
*

53
1.

91
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
58

5.
10

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
53

.1
9

10
.0

0%

13
8

C
lin

ic
al

 W
as

te
 C

ol
le

ct
io

ns
 - 

A
nn

ua
l c

ha
rg

e 
fo

r w
ee

kl
y 

co
lle

ct
io

ns
**

*
29

2.
09

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

32
1.

30
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

29
.2

1
10

.0
0%

13
9

C
lin

ic
al

 W
as

te
 C

ol
le

ct
io

ns
 - 

C
ha

rg
e 

pe
r s

ac
k

**
*

5.
84

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
6.

42
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
58

9.
93

%

14
0

C
lin

ic
al

 W
as

te
 C

ol
le

ct
io

ns
 - 

bo
x

**
*

5.
84

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
6.

42
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
58

9.
93

%

14
1

M
is

ce
lla

ne
ou

s 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

- C
es

sp
oo

l E
m

pt
yi

ng
**

*
15

6.
56

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

17
2.

22
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

15
.6

6
10

.0
0%

14
2

M
is

ce
lla

ne
ou

s 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

- M
ot

or
 c

yc
le

 M
O

T
**

25
.6

2
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
30

.3
1

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

4.
69

18
.3

1%

14
3

M
is

ce
lla

ne
ou

s 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

- M
ot

or
 C

yc
le

 w
ith

 s
id

ec
ar

 M
O

T
**

33
.8

3
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
38

.6
8

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

4.
85

14
.3

4%

14
4

M
is

ce
lla

ne
ou

s 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

- C
la

ss
 IV

 M
O

T 
Te

st
**

45
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
56

.2
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

11
.2

0
24

.8
9%

14
5

M
is

ce
lla

ne
ou

s 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

- C
la

ss
 V

 M
O

T 
Te

st
 (1

3 
to

 1
6 

se
at

s)
**

49
.2

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
61

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

11
.8

0
23

.9
8%

14
6

M
is

ce
lla

ne
ou

s 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

- C
la

ss
 V

 M
O

T 
Te

st
 (O

ve
r 1

6 
se

at
s)

**
69

.7
4

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

82
.7

1
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
12

.9
7

18
.6

0%

14
7

M
is

ce
lla

ne
ou

s 
se

rv
ic

es
 - 

C
la

ss
 V

II 
M

O
T 

Te
st

**
48

.4
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

60
.0

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
11

.6
5

24
.0

7%

Li
ce

nc
es

14
8

Li
ce

nc
es

 - 
A

ut
ho

ris
at

io
ns

 fo
r H

yp
no

tis
m

 u
nd

er
 s

ec
tio

n 
2 

of
 T

he
 H

yp
no

tis
m

 A
ct

- P
re

m
is

es
 c

ap
ac

ity
 u

p 
to

 1
50

 
*

20
9.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
21

5.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
6.

00
2.

87
%

14
9

Li
ce

nc
es

 - 
A

ut
ho

ris
at

io
ns

 fo
r H

yp
no

tis
m

 u
nd

er
 s

ec
tio

n 
2 

of
 T

he
 H

yp
no

tis
m

 A
ct

- P
re

m
is

es
 c

ap
ac

ity
 1

51
-3

00
*

36
3.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
37

4.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
11

.0
0

3.
03

%

15
0

Li
ce

nc
es

 - 
A

ut
ho

ris
at

io
ns

 fo
r H

yp
no

tis
m

 u
nd

er
 s

ec
tio

n 
2 

of
 T

he
 H

yp
no

tis
m

 A
ct

- P
re

m
is

es
 c

ap
ac

ity
 3

01
-6

00
*

67
1.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
69

1.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
20

.0
0

2.
98

%

15
1

Li
ce

nc
es

 - 
A

ut
ho

ris
at

io
ns

 fo
r H

yp
no

tis
m

 u
nd

er
 s

ec
tio

n 
2 

of
 T

he
 H

yp
no

tis
m

 A
ct

- P
re

m
is

es
 c

ap
ac

ity
 6

01
-1

,0
00

*
1,

22
1.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

25
8.

00
   

   
   

   
   

  
37

.0
0

3.
03

%

15
2

Li
ce

nc
es

 - 
A

ut
ho

ris
at

io
ns

 fo
r H

yp
no

tis
m

 u
nd

er
 s

ec
tio

n 
2 

of
 T

he
 H

yp
no

tis
m

 A
ct

- P
re

m
is

es
 c

ap
ac

ity
 1

,0
01

-2
,5

00
*

2,
32

1.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
39

1.
00

   
   

   
   

   
  

70
.0

0
3.

02
%

15
3

Li
ce

nc
es

 - 
A

ut
ho

ris
at

io
ns

 fo
r H

yp
no

tis
m

 u
nd

er
 s

ec
tio

n 
2 

of
 T

he
 H

yp
no

tis
m

 A
ct

- P
re

m
is

es
 c

ap
ac

ity
 2

,5
01

-4
00

0
*

3,
68

5.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

3,
79

6.
00

   
   

   
   

   
  

11
1.

00
3.

01
%

15
4

Li
ce

nc
es

 - 
S

pe
ci

al
 tr

ea
tm

en
t p

re
m

is
es

- h
ea

lth
 a

nd
 s

af
et

y 
at

 w
or

k 
(a

1)
 Is

su
e 

 
*

33
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
34

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
10

.0
0

3.
03

%

15
5

Li
ce

nc
es

 - 
S

pe
ci

al
 tr

ea
tm

en
t p

re
m

is
es

- h
ea

lth
 a

nd
 s

af
et

y 
at

 w
or

k 
(b

1)
 R

en
ew

al
  

*
33

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

34
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

10
.0

0
3.

03
%

15
6

Li
ce

nc
es

 - 
S

pe
ci

al
 tr

ea
tm

en
t p

re
m

is
es

- h
ea

lth
 a

nd
 s

af
et

y 
at

 w
or

k 
(c

1)
 V

ar
ia

tio
n

*
33

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

34
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

10
.0

0
3.

03
%

15
7

Li
ce

nc
es

 - 
S

pe
ci

al
 tr

ea
tm

en
t p

re
m

is
es

- h
ea

lth
 a

nd
 s

af
et

y 
at

 w
or

k 
(d

1)
 T

ra
ns

fe
r  

*
33

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

34
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

10
.0

0
3.

03
%

15
8

Li
ce

nc
es

 - 
 A

ni
m

al
s 

(a
) D

og
 B

re
ed

er
s

*
17

6.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

18
1.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

5.
00

2.
84

%

15
9

Li
ce

nc
es

 - 
 A

ni
m

al
s 

(b
) R

id
in

g 
E

st
ab

lis
hm

en
ts

*
47

3.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

48
7.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

14
.0

0
2.

96
%

16
0

Li
ce

nc
es

 - 
 A

ni
m

al
s 

(c
) A

ni
m

al
 B

oa
rd

in
g

*
33

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

34
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

10
.0

0
3.

03
%

16
1

Li
ce

nc
es

 - 
 A

ni
m

al
s 

(d
) P

et
 S

ho
ps

*
26

4.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

27
2.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

8.
00

3.
03

%

16
2

Li
ce

nc
es

 - 
 A

ni
m

al
s 

(e
) D

an
ge

ro
us

 W
ild

 A
ni

m
al

s
*

33
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
34

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
10

.0
0

3.
03

%

16
3

Li
ce

nc
es

 - 
 S

ex
 s

ho
p 

Li
ce

nc
e

*
19

,5
00

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

20
,0

85
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

58
5.

00
3.

00
%

16
4

Li
ce

nc
es

 - 
 S

af
et

y 
at

 s
po

rts
 g

ro
un

d 
A

ct
- f

ee
s 

ch
ar

ge
d 

on
 o

ffi
ce

r t
im

e 
sp

en
t p

ro
ce

ss
in

g 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n
*

15
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
15

5.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
5.

00
3.

33
%

16
5

Li
ce

nc
es

 - 
 P

oi
so

ns
 A

ct
 -e

nt
ry

*
99

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

10
2.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

3.
00

3.
03

%

16
6

Li
ce

nc
es

 - 
 P

oi
so

ns
 A

ct
 -R

et
en

tio
n 

or
 a

lte
ra

tio
n

*
55

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

57
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2.

00
3.

64
%

16
7

Li
ce

nc
es

 - 
A

uc
tio

n 
R

oo
m

s 
R

eg
is

tra
tio

n
*

42
9.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
44

2.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
13

.0
0

3.
03

%

16
8

Li
ce

nc
es

 - 
O

cc
as

io
na

l S
al

es
- u

p 
to

 5
0 

st
al

ls
/v

eh
ic

le
s/

pi
tc

he
s

*
88

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

91
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
3.

00
3.

41
%

16
9

Li
ce

nc
es

 - 
O

cc
as

io
na

l S
al

es
- 5

1-
15

0 
st

al
ls

/v
eh

ic
le

s/
pi

tc
he

s
*

14
3.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
14

7.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
4.

00
2.

80
%

Page 99



FE
ES

 A
N

D
 C

H
A

R
G

ES
 2

00
9/

10
A

PP
EN

D
IX

 A

*
N

ot
 V

at
ab

le

**
in

cl
ud

es
 V

A
T

**
*

ex
cl

ud
es

 V
A

T

 C
ur

re
nt

 2
00

8/
09

 
C

ha
rg

e 
 P

ro
po

se
d 

20
09

/1
0 

C
ha

rg
e 

£
£

£
%

Pr
op

os
ed

 In
cr

ea
se

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

of
 S

er
vi

ce

17
0

Li
ce

nc
es

 - 
O

cc
as

io
na

l S
al

es
- o

ve
r 1

50
 s

ta
lls

/v
eh

ic
le

s/
pi

tc
he

s
*

24
2.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
24

9.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
7.

00
2.

89
%

17
1

Li
ce

nc
es

 - 
 M

ot
or

 S
al

va
ge

 O
pe

ra
to

rs
*

15
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
15

5.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
5.

00
3.

33
%

17
2

Li
ce

nc
es

 - 
  M

ot
or

 S
al

va
ge

 O
pe

ra
to

rs
 c

er
tif

ie
d 

co
py

 o
f s

in
gl

e 
re

gi
st

er
 e

nt
ry

*
33

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

34
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
3.

03
%

17
3

Li
ce

nc
es

 - 
 G

am
e 

D
ea

le
rs

*
33

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

34
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
3.

03
%

17
4

O
th

er
 in

co
m

e 
-  

P
ol

lu
tio

n 
- S

ei
zu

re
 o

f E
qu

ip
m

en
t b

y 
N

oi
se

 P
at

ro
l -

Fe
e 

fo
r r

ec
la

m
at

io
n 

of
 p

ro
pe

rty
 (N

O
N

-B
U

S
IN

E
S

S
)

*
17

6.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

18
1.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

5.
00

2.
84

%

17
5

Tr
es

pa
ss

in
g 

A
ni

m
al

s 
- R

ec
la

m
at

io
n 

of
 A

ni
m

al
 (N

O
N

- B
U

S
IN

E
S

S
)

*
66

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

68
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2.

00
3.

03
%

17
6

Tr
es

pa
ss

in
g 

A
ni

m
al

s 
- K

en
ne

lli
ng

 F
ee

s 
(N

O
N

-B
U

S
IN

E
S

S
)

*
22

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

23
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
4.

55
%

17
7

M
ic

ro
 c

hi
p 

im
pl

an
ts

 - 
Im

pl
an

t a
nd

 re
gi

st
ra

tio
n 

w
ith

 n
at

io
na

l p
et

 re
gi

st
er

 p
er

 a
ni

m
al

 (V
A

TA
B

LE
)

**
44

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

45
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
2.

27
%

N
ew

 R
eg

io
na

l C
as

in
o 

pr
em

is
es

 li
ce

nc
e

17
8

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

fo
r a

 p
ro

vi
si

on
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
t

*
15

,0
00

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

15
,0

00
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

0.
00

0.
00

%

17
9

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

fo
r a

 n
ew

 p
re

m
is

es
 li

ce
nc

e
*

15
,0

00
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
15

,0
00

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
0.

00
0.

00
%

18
0

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

to
 v

ar
y 

a 
ne

w
 p

re
m

is
es

 li
ce

nc
e

*
7,

50
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
7,

50
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
0.

00
%

18
1

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

to
 tr

an
sf

er
 a

 p
re

m
is

es
 li

ce
nc

e
*

6,
50

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

6,
50

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

0.
00

%

18
2

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

fo
r a

 n
ew

 p
re

m
is

es
 li

ce
nc

e 
w

ith
 P

ro
vi

si
on

al
 S

ta
te

m
en

t
*

8,
00

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

8,
00

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

0.
00

%

18
3

A
nn

ua
l f

ee
*

15
,0

00
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
15

,0
00

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
0.

00
0.

00
%

18
4

R
ei

ns
ta

te
m

en
t o

f a
 li

ce
nc

e
*

6,
50

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

6,
50

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

0.
00

%

18
5

C
op

y 
of

 li
ce

nc
e

*
15

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

15
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

00
0.

00
%

18
6

N
ot

ifi
ca

tio
n 

of
 c

ha
ng

e 
of

 d
et

ai
ls

*
35

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

35
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

00
0.

00
%

N
ew

 L
ar

ge
 C

as
in

o 
pr

em
is

es
 li

ce
nc

e
18

7
A

pp
lic

at
io

n 
fo

r a
 p

ro
vi

si
on

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

t
*

10
,0

00
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
10

,0
00

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
0.

00
0.

00
%

18
8

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

fo
r a

 n
ew

 p
re

m
is

es
 li

ce
nc

e
*

10
,0

00
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
10

,0
00

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
0.

00
0.

00
%

18
9

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

to
 v

ar
y 

a 
ne

w
 p

re
m

is
es

 li
ce

nc
e

*
5,

00
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
5,

00
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
0.

00
%

19
0

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

to
 tr

an
sf

er
 a

 p
re

m
is

es
 li

ce
nc

e
*

2,
15

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
15

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

0.
00

%

19
1

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

fo
r a

 n
ew

 p
re

m
is

es
 li

ce
nc

e 
w

ith
 P

ro
vi

si
on

al
 S

ta
te

m
en

t
*

5,
00

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

5,
00

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

0.
00

%

19
2

A
nn

ua
l f

ee
*

10
,0

00
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
10

,0
00

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
0.

00
0.

00
%

19
3

R
ei

ns
ta

te
m

en
t o

f a
 li

ce
nc

e
*

2,
15

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
15

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

0.
00

%

19
4

C
op

y 
of

 li
ce

nc
e

*
15

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

15
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

00
0.

00
%

19
5

N
ot

ifi
ca

tio
n 

of
 c

ha
ng

e 
of

 d
et

ai
ls

*
35

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

35
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

00
0.

00
%

N
ew

 S
m

al
l C

as
in

o 
pr

em
is

es
 li

ce
nc

e
19

6
A

pp
lic

at
io

n 
fo

r a
 p

ro
vi

si
on

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

t
*

8,
00

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

8,
00

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

0.
00

%

19
7

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

fo
r a

 n
ew

 p
re

m
is

es
 li

ce
nc

e
*

8,
00

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

8,
00

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

0.
00

%

19
8

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

to
 v

ar
y 

a 
ne

w
 p

re
m

is
es

 li
ce

nc
e

*
4,

00
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
4,

00
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
0.

00
%

19
9

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

to
 tr

an
sf

er
 a

 p
re

m
is

es
 li

ce
nc

e
*

1,
80

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
80

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

0.
00

%

20
0

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

fo
r a

 n
ew

 p
re

m
is

es
 li

ce
nc

e 
w

ith
 P

ro
vi

si
on

al
 S

ta
te

m
en

t
*

3,
00

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

3,
00

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

0.
00

%

20
1

A
nn

ua
l f

ee
*

5,
00

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

5,
00

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

0.
00

%

20
2

R
ei

ns
ta

te
m

en
t o

f a
 li

ce
nc

e
*

1,
80

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
80

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

0.
00

%

20
3

C
op

y 
of

 li
ce

nc
e

*
15

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

15
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

00
0.

00
%

20
4

N
ot

ifi
ca

tio
n 

of
 c

ha
ng

e 
of

 d
et

ai
ls

*
35

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

35
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

00
0.

00
%

Page 100



FE
ES

 A
N

D
 C

H
A

R
G

ES
 2

00
9/

10
A

PP
EN

D
IX

 A

*
N

ot
 V

at
ab

le

**
in

cl
ud

es
 V

A
T

**
*

ex
cl

ud
es

 V
A

T

 C
ur

re
nt

 2
00

8/
09

 
C

ha
rg

e 
 P

ro
po

se
d 

20
09

/1
0 

C
ha

rg
e 

£
£

£
%

Pr
op

os
ed

 In
cr

ea
se

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

of
 S

er
vi

ce

C
on

ve
rt

ed
 C

as
in

o 
pr

em
is

es
 li

ce
nc

e
20

5
Fa

st
 tr

ac
k 

co
nv

er
si

on
 a

pp
lic

at
io

n
*

28
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
28

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
0.

00
%

20
6

N
on

 -F
as

t t
ra

ck
 c

on
ve

rs
io

n 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n
*

2,
00

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
00

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

0.
00

%

20
7

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

to
 v

ar
y 

a 
ne

w
 p

re
m

is
es

 li
ce

nc
e

*
2,

00
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
2,

00
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
0.

00
%

20
8

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

to
 tr

an
sf

er
 a

 p
re

m
is

es
 li

ce
nc

e
*

1,
35

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
35

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

0.
00

%

20
9

A
nn

ua
l f

ee
*

3,
00

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

3,
00

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

0.
00

%

21
0

R
ei

ns
ta

te
m

en
t o

f a
 li

ce
nc

e
*

1,
50

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
50

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

0.
00

%

21
1

C
op

y 
of

 li
ce

nc
e

*
15

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

15
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

00
0.

00
%

21
2

N
ot

ifi
ca

tio
n 

of
 c

ha
ng

e 
of

 d
et

ai
ls

*
35

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

35
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

00
0.

00
%

B
in

go
 p

re
m

is
es

 li
ce

nc
e

21
3

Fa
st

 tr
ac

k 
co

nv
er

si
on

 a
pp

lic
at

io
n

*
28

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

28
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

0.
00

%

21
4

N
on

 -F
as

t t
ra

ck
 c

on
ve

rs
io

n 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n
*

1,
25

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
25

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

0.
00

%

21
5

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

fo
r a

 p
ro

vi
si

on
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
t

*
3,

00
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
3,

09
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

  
90

.0
0

3.
00

%

21
6

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

fo
r a

 n
ew

 p
re

m
is

es
 li

ce
nc

e
*

3,
00

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

3,
09

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
  

90
.0

0
3.

00
%

21
7

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

to
 v

ar
y 

a 
ne

w
 p

re
m

is
es

 li
ce

nc
e

*
1,

60
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

64
8.

00
   

   
   

   
   

  
48

.0
0

3.
00

%

21
8

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

to
 tr

an
sf

er
 a

 p
re

m
is

es
 li

ce
nc

e
*

1,
08

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
11

2.
00

   
   

   
   

   
  

32
.0

0
2.

96
%

21
9

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

fo
r a

 n
ew

 p
re

m
is

es
 li

ce
nc

e 
w

ith
 P

ro
vi

si
on

al
 S

ta
te

m
en

t
*

1,
08

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
11

2.
00

   
   

   
   

   
  

32
.0

0
2.

96
%

22
0

A
nn

ua
l f

ee
*

90
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
92

7.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
27

.0
0

3.
00

%

22
1

R
ei

ns
ta

te
m

en
t o

f a
 li

ce
nc

e
*

1,
08

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
11

2.
00

   
   

   
   

   
  

32
.0

0
2.

96
%

22
2

C
op

y 
of

 li
ce

nc
e

*
15

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

15
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

00
0.

00
%

22
3

N
ot

ifi
ca

tio
n 

of
 c

ha
ng

e 
of

 d
et

ai
ls

*
35

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

35
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

00
0.

00
%

B
in

go
 p

re
m

is
es

 (o
th

er
) l

ic
en

ce
22

4
Fa

st
 tr

ac
k 

co
nv

er
si

on
 a

pp
lic

at
io

n
*

28
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
28

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
0.

00
%

22
5

N
on

 -F
as

t t
ra

ck
 c

on
ve

rs
io

n 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n
*

1,
35

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
35

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

0.
00

%

22
6

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

fo
r a

 p
ro

vi
si

on
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
t

*
2,

70
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
2,

78
1.

00
   

   
   

   
   

  
81

.0
0

3.
00

%

22
7

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

fo
r a

 n
ew

 p
re

m
is

es
 li

ce
nc

e
*

2,
70

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
78

1.
00

   
   

   
   

   
  

81
.0

0
3.

00
%

22
8

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

to
 v

ar
y 

a 
ne

w
 p

re
m

is
es

 li
ce

nc
e

*
1,

35
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

39
1.

00
   

   
   

   
   

  
41

.0
0

3.
04

%

22
9

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

to
 tr

an
sf

er
 a

 p
re

m
is

es
 li

ce
nc

e
*

1,
08

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
11

2.
00

   
   

   
   

   
  

32
.0

0
2.

96
%

23
0

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

fo
r a

 n
ew

 p
re

m
is

es
 li

ce
nc

e 
w

ith
 P

ro
vi

si
on

al
 S

ta
te

m
en

t
*

1,
08

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
11

2.
00

   
   

   
   

   
  

32
.0

0
2.

96
%

23
1

A
nn

ua
l f

ee
*

55
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
56

7.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
17

.0
0

3.
09

%

23
2

R
ei

ns
ta

te
m

en
t o

f a
 li

ce
nc

e
*

1,
08

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
11

2.
00

   
   

   
   

   
  

32
.0

0
2.

96
%

23
3

C
op

y 
of

 li
ce

nc
e

*
15

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

15
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

00
0.

00
%

23
4

N
ot

ifi
ca

tio
n 

of
 c

ha
ng

e 
of

 d
et

ai
ls

*
35

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

35
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

00
0.

00
%

B
et

tin
g 

pr
em

is
es

 (t
ra

ck
) l

ic
en

ce
23

5
Fa

st
 tr

ac
k 

co
nv

er
si

on
 a

pp
lic

at
io

n
*

28
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
28

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
0.

00
%

23
6

N
on

 -F
as

t t
ra

ck
 c

on
ve

rs
io

n 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n
*

1,
25

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
25

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

0.
00

%

23
7

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

fo
r a

 p
ro

vi
si

on
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
t

*
2,

50
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
2,

50
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
0.

00
%

23
8

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

fo
r a

 n
ew

 p
re

m
is

es
 li

ce
nc

e
*

2,
50

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
50

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

0.
00

%

Page 101



FE
ES

 A
N

D
 C

H
A

R
G

ES
 2

00
9/

10
A

PP
EN

D
IX

 A

*
N

ot
 V

at
ab

le

**
in

cl
ud

es
 V

A
T

**
*

ex
cl

ud
es

 V
A

T

 C
ur

re
nt

 2
00

8/
09

 
C

ha
rg

e 
 P

ro
po

se
d 

20
09

/1
0 

C
ha

rg
e 

£
£

£
%

Pr
op

os
ed

 In
cr

ea
se

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

of
 S

er
vi

ce

23
9

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

to
 v

ar
y 

a 
ne

w
 p

re
m

is
es

 li
ce

nc
e

*
1,

25
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

25
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
0.

00
%

24
0

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

to
 tr

an
sf

er
 a

 p
re

m
is

es
 li

ce
nc

e
*

95
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
95

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
0.

00
%

24
1

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

fo
r a

 n
ew

 p
re

m
is

es
 li

ce
nc

e 
w

ith
 P

ro
vi

si
on

al
 S

ta
te

m
en

t
*

95
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
95

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
0.

00
%

24
2

A
nn

ua
l f

ee
*

1,
00

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
00

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

0.
00

%

24
3

R
ei

ns
ta

te
m

en
t o

f a
 li

ce
nc

e
*

95
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
95

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
0.

00
%

24
4

C
op

y 
of

 li
ce

nc
e

*
15

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

15
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

00
0.

00
%

24
5

N
ot

ifi
ca

tio
n 

of
 c

ha
ng

e 
of

 d
et

ai
ls

*
35

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

35
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

00
0.

00
%

A
du

lt 
G

am
in

g 
C

en
tr

e 
pr

em
is

es
 li

ce
nc

e
24

6
Fa

st
 tr

ac
k 

co
nv

er
si

on
 a

pp
lic

at
io

n
*

28
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
28

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
0.

00
%

24
7

N
on

 -F
as

t t
ra

ck
 c

on
ve

rs
io

n 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n
*

95
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
95

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
0.

00
%

24
8

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

fo
r a

 p
ro

vi
si

on
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
t

*
1,

80
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

85
4.

00
   

   
   

   
   

  
54

.0
0

3.
00

%

24
9

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

fo
r a

 n
ew

 p
re

m
is

es
 li

ce
nc

e
*

1,
80

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
85

4.
00

   
   

   
   

   
  

54
.0

0
3.

00
%

25
0

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

to
 v

ar
y 

a 
ne

w
 p

re
m

is
es

 li
ce

nc
e

*
90

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

92
7.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

27
.0

0
3.

00
%

25
1

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

to
 tr

an
sf

er
 a

 p
re

m
is

es
 li

ce
nc

e
*

90
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
92

7.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
27

.0
0

3.
00

%

25
2

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

fo
r a

 n
ew

 p
re

m
is

es
 li

ce
nc

e 
w

ith
 P

ro
vi

si
on

al
 S

ta
te

m
en

t
*

1,
08

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
11

2.
00

   
   

   
   

   
  

32
.0

0
2.

96
%

25
3

A
nn

ua
l f

ee
*

90
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
92

7.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
27

.0
0

3.
00

%

25
4

R
ei

ns
ta

te
m

en
t o

f a
 li

ce
nc

e
*

1,
08

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
11

2.
00

   
   

   
   

   
  

32
.0

0
2.

96
%

25
5

C
op

y 
of

 li
ce

nc
e

*
15

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

15
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

00
0.

00
%

25
6

N
ot

ifi
ca

tio
n 

of
 c

ha
ng

e 
of

 d
et

ai
ls

*
35

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

35
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

00
0.

00
%

Fa
m

ily
 e

nt
er

ta
in

m
en

t c
en

tr
e 

pr
em

is
es

 li
ce

nc
e

25
7

Fa
st

 tr
ac

k 
co

nv
er

si
on

 a
pp

lic
at

io
n

*
28

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

28
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

0.
00

%

25
8

N
on

 -F
as

t t
ra

ck
 c

on
ve

rs
io

n 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n
*

95
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
95

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
0.

00
%

25
9

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

fo
r a

 p
ro

vi
si

on
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
t

*
1,

80
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

85
4.

00
   

   
   

   
   

  
54

.0
0

3.
00

%

26
0

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

fo
r a

 n
ew

 p
re

m
is

es
 li

ce
nc

e
*

1,
80

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
85

4.
00

   
   

   
   

   
  

54
.0

0
3.

00
%

26
1

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

to
 v

ar
y 

a 
ne

w
 p

re
m

is
es

 li
ce

nc
e

*
90

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

92
7.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

27
.0

0
3.

00
%

26
2

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

to
 tr

an
sf

er
 a

 p
re

m
is

es
 li

ce
nc

e
*

90
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
92

7.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
27

.0
0

3.
00

%

26
3

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

fo
r a

 n
ew

 p
re

m
is

es
 li

ce
nc

e 
w

ith
 P

ro
vi

si
on

al
 S

ta
te

m
en

t
*

87
5.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
90

1.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
26

.0
0

2.
97

%

26
4

A
nn

ua
l f

ee
*

68
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
70

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
20

.0
0

2.
94

%

26
5

R
ei

ns
ta

te
m

en
t o

f a
 li

ce
nc

e
*

87
5.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
90

1.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
26

.0
0

2.
97

%

26
6

C
op

y 
of

 li
ce

nc
e

*
15

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

15
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

00
0.

00
%

26
7

N
ot

ifi
ca

tio
n 

of
 c

ha
ng

e 
of

 d
et

ai
ls

*
35

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

35
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

00
0.

00
%

G
ra

ffi
ti 

&
 D

ee
p 

C
le

an
in

g
26

8
G

ra
ffi

ti 
&

 D
ee

p 
C

le
an

in
g 

- F
irs

t r
em

ov
al

 o
f g

ra
ffi

ti 
- I

n 
D

ef
au

lt 
(p

er
 s

qm
)

**
*

30
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
31

.3
4

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
34

4.
47

%

26
9

G
ra

ffi
ti 

&
 D

ee
p 

C
le

an
in

g 
- S

ub
se

qu
en

t r
em

ov
al

 o
f g

ra
ffi

ti 
-  

In
 D

ef
au

lt 
(p

er
 s

qm
)

**
*

30
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
31

.3
4

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
34

4.
47

%

27
0

G
ra

ffi
ti 

&
 D

ee
p 

C
le

an
in

g 
- F

irs
t r

em
ov

al
 o

f g
ra

ffi
ti 

- S
ub

si
di

es
 (p

er
 s

qm
)

**
*

15
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
15

.4
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
45

2.
97

%

27
1

G
ra

ffi
ti 

&
 D

ee
p 

C
le

an
in

g 
- S

ub
se

qu
en

t r
em

ov
al

 o
f g

ra
ffi

ti 
-  

S
ub

si
di

es
 (p

er
 s

qm
)

**
*

15
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
15

.4
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
45

2.
97

%

27
2

G
ra

ffi
ti 

&
 D

ee
p 

C
le

an
in

g 
- F

irs
t r

em
ov

al
 o

f g
ra

ffi
ti 

- P
ar

ks
 (p

er
 s

qm
)

**
*

5.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
5.

15
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
15

2.
91

%

Page 102



FE
ES

 A
N

D
 C

H
A

R
G

ES
 2

00
9/

10
A

PP
EN

D
IX

 A

*
N

ot
 V

at
ab

le

**
in

cl
ud

es
 V

A
T

**
*

ex
cl

ud
es

 V
A

T

 C
ur

re
nt

 2
00

8/
09

 
C

ha
rg

e 
 P

ro
po

se
d 

20
09

/1
0 

C
ha

rg
e 

£
£

£
%

Pr
op

os
ed

 In
cr

ea
se

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

of
 S

er
vi

ce

27
3

G
ra

ffi
ti 

&
 D

ee
p 

C
le

an
in

g 
- S

ub
se

qu
en

t r
em

ov
al

 o
f g

ra
ffi

ti 
- P

ar
ks

 (p
er

 s
qm

)
**

*
5.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

5.
15

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
0.

15
2.

91
%

27
4

G
ra

ffi
ti 

&
 D

ee
p 

C
le

an
in

g 
- A

nt
i-G

ra
ffi

ti 
C

oa
tin

g 
- P

ar
ks

 (p
er

 s
qm

) 
**

*
5.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

5.
15

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
0.

15
2.

91
%

27
5

G
ra

ffi
ti 

&
 D

ee
p 

C
le

an
in

g 
- F

irs
t r

em
ov

al
 o

f g
ra

ffi
ti 

is
 fr

ee
 w

he
n 

si
gn

ed
 u

p 
to

 th
e 

C
ha

rte
r

*
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

0.
00

%

27
6

G
ra

ffi
ti 

&
 D

ee
p 

C
le

an
in

g 
- S

ub
se

qu
en

t r
em

ov
al

 o
f g

ra
ffi

ti 
- W

ith
 C

ha
rte

r (
pe

r s
qm

) 
**

*
10

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

10
.3

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

30
3.

00
%

27
7

G
ra

ffi
ti 

&
 D

ee
p 

C
le

an
in

g 
- G

ra
ffi

ti 
re

m
ov

al
 k

it 
- W

ith
 C

ha
rte

r 
**

*
10

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

10
.3

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

30
3.

00
%

27
8

G
ra

ffi
ti 

&
 D

ee
p 

C
le

an
in

g 
- G

ra
ffi

ti 
re

m
ov

al
 k

it 
re

fil
l -

 W
ith

 C
ha

rte
r 

**
*

5.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
5.

15
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
15

3.
00

%

27
9

G
ra

ffi
ti 

&
 D

ee
p 

C
le

an
in

g 
- A

nt
i-G

ra
ffi

ti 
C

oa
tin

g 
- W

ith
 C

ha
rte

r (
pe

r s
qm

) 
**

*
5.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

5.
15

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
0.

15
3.

00
%

28
0

G
ra

ffi
ti 

&
 D

ee
p 

C
le

an
in

g 
- F

irs
t r

em
ov

al
 o

f g
ra

ffi
ti 

- W
ith

ou
t C

ha
rte

r (
pe

r s
qm

) 
**

*
15

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

15
.4

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

45
3.

00
%

28
1

G
ra

ffi
ti 

&
 D

ee
p 

C
le

an
in

g 
- S

ub
se

qu
en

t r
em

ov
al

 o
f g

ra
ffi

ti 
- W

ith
ou

t C
ha

rte
r (

pe
r s

qm
) 

**
*

15
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
15

.4
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
45

3.
00

%

28
2

G
ra

ffi
ti 

&
 D

ee
p 

C
le

an
in

g 
- G

ra
ffi

ti 
re

m
ov

al
 k

it 
- W

ith
ou

t C
ha

rte
r 

**
*

15
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
15

.4
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
45

3.
00

%

28
3

G
ra

ffi
ti 

&
 D

ee
p 

C
le

an
in

g 
- G

ra
ffi

ti 
re

m
ov

al
 k

it 
re

fil
l -

 W
ith

ou
t C

ha
rte

r  
**

*
8.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

8.
24

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
0.

24
3.

00
%

28
4

G
ra

ffi
ti 

&
 D

ee
p 

C
le

an
in

g 
- A

nt
i-G

ra
ffi

ti 
C

oa
tin

g 
- W

ith
ou

t C
ha

rte
r (

pe
r s

qm
) 

**
*

10
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
10

.3
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
30

3.
00

%

Pe
st

 C
on

tr
ol

28
5

P
es

t C
on

tro
l -

 C
ou

nc
il 

Te
na

nt
s 

Lo
w

 ri
sk

 in
se

ct
s

**
96

.8
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

10
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

3.
20

3.
31

%

28
6

P
es

t C
on

tro
l -

 C
ou

nc
il 

Te
na

nt
s 

S
qu

irr
el

s 
pe

r t
ra

p 
pe

r w
ee

k
**

12
4.

30
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
12

8.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
3.

70
2.

98
%

28
7

P
es

t C
on

tro
l -

 C
ou

nc
il 

Te
na

nt
s 

P
ig

eo
ns

 p
er

 h
ou

r o
r p

ar
t p

lu
s 

m
at

er
ia

ls
**

69
.3

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
72

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2.
70

3.
90

%

28
8

P
es

t C
on

tro
l -

 O
w

ne
r o

cc
up

ie
rs

 m
ic

e
**

69
.3

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
72

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2.
70

3.
90

%

28
9

P
es

t C
on

tro
l -

 O
w

ne
r o

cc
up

ie
rs

 w
as

ps
**

69
.3

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
72

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2.
70

3.
90

%

29
0

P
es

t C
on

tro
l -

 O
w

ne
r o

cc
up

ie
rs

 fl
ea

s
**

89
.1

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
93

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

3.
90

4.
38

%

29
1

P
es

t C
on

tro
l -

 O
w

ne
r o

cc
up

ie
rs

 ra
ts

 fr
ee

 in
 2

00
6/

07
**

34
.1

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
35

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
90

2.
64

%

29
2

P
es

t C
on

tro
l -

 O
w

ne
r o

cc
up

ie
rs

 b
ed

bu
gs

**
89

.1
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

93
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
3.

90
4.

38
%

29
3

P
es

t C
on

tro
l -

 O
w

ne
r o

cc
up

ie
rs

 c
oc

kr
oa

ch
es

**
96

.8
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

10
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

3.
20

3.
31

%

29
4

P
es

t C
on

tro
l -

 O
w

ne
r o

cc
up

ie
rs

 p
ha

ra
oh

 a
nt

s
**

96
.8

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
10

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
3.

20
3.

31
%

29
5

P
es

t C
on

tro
l -

 O
w

ne
r o

cc
up

ie
rs

 lo
w

 ri
sk

 in
se

ct
s

**
96

.8
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

10
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

3.
20

3.
31

%

29
6

P
es

t C
on

tro
l -

 O
w

ne
r o

cc
up

ie
rs

 s
qu

irr
el

s 
pe

r t
ra

p 
pe

r w
ee

k
**

12
4.

30
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
12

8.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
3.

70
2.

98
%

29
7

P
es

t C
on

tro
l -

 O
w

ne
r o

cc
up

ie
rs

 p
ig

eo
ns

 p
er

 h
ou

r o
r p

ar
t h

ou
r p

lu
s 

m
at

er
ia

ls
**

69
.3

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
72

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2.
70

3.
90

%

29
8

P
es

t C
on

tro
l -

 O
w

ne
r o

cc
up

ie
rs

 o
n 

be
ne

fit
s 

m
ic

e
**

41
.8

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
43

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
20

2.
87

%

29
9

P
es

t C
on

tro
l -

 O
w

ne
r o

cc
up

ie
rs

 o
n 

be
ne

fit
 w

as
ps

**
41

.8
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

43
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

20
2.

87
%

30
0

P
es

t C
on

tro
l -

 O
w

ne
r o

cc
up

ie
rs

 o
n 

be
ne

fit
 fl

ea
s

**
55

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

57
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2.

00
3.

64
%

30
1

P
es

t C
on

tro
l -

 O
w

ne
r o

cc
up

ie
rs

 o
n 

be
ne

fit
s 

ra
ts

 fr
ee

 in
 2

00
6/

07
**

20
.9

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
22

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
10

5.
26

%

30
2

P
es

t C
on

tro
l -

 O
w

ne
r o

cc
up

ie
rs

 o
n 

be
ne

fit
s 

be
db

ug
s

**
55

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

57
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2.

00
3.

64
%

30
3

P
es

t C
on

tro
l -

 O
w

ne
r o

cc
up

ie
rs

 o
n 

be
ne

fit
s 

co
ck

ro
ac

he
s 

**
55

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

57
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2.

00
3.

64
%

30
4

P
es

t C
on

tro
l -

 O
w

ne
r o

cc
up

ie
rs

 o
n 

be
ne

fit
s 

ph
ar

ao
h 

an
ts

**
61

.6
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

64
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2.

40
3.

90
%

30
5

P
es

t C
on

tro
l -

 O
w

ne
r o

cc
up

ie
rs

 o
n 

be
ne

fit
s 

lo
w

 ri
sk

 in
se

ct
s 

fli
es

 a
nt

s 
et

c
**

55
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
57

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2.
00

3.
64

%

30
6

P
es

t C
on

tro
l -

 O
w

ne
r o

cc
up

ie
rs

 o
n 

be
ne

fit
s 

sq
ui

rr
el

s 
pe

r t
ra

p 
pe

r w
ee

k
**

75
.9

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
79

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

3.
10

4.
08

%

30
7

P
es

t C
on

tro
l -

 O
w

ne
r o

cc
up

ie
rs

 o
n 

be
ne

fit
s 

pi
ge

on
s 

pe
r h

ou
r o

r p
ar

t p
lu

s 
m

at
er

ia
ls

**
41

.8
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

43
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

20
2.

87
%

30
8

P
es

t C
on

tro
l -

 C
om

m
er

ci
al

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
LB

B
D

 a
nd

 p
riv

at
e 

la
nd

lo
rd

s 
m

ic
e

**
10

3.
40

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

10
7.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

3.
60

3.
48

%

Page 103



FE
ES

 A
N

D
 C

H
A

R
G

ES
 2

00
9/

10
A

PP
EN

D
IX

 A

*
N

ot
 V

at
ab

le

**
in

cl
ud

es
 V

A
T

**
*

ex
cl

ud
es

 V
A

T

 C
ur

re
nt

 2
00

8/
09

 
C

ha
rg

e 
 P

ro
po

se
d 

20
09

/1
0 

C
ha

rg
e 

£
£

£
%

Pr
op

os
ed

 In
cr

ea
se

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

of
 S

er
vi

ce

30
9

P
es

t C
on

tro
l -

 C
om

m
er

ci
al

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
LB

B
D

 a
nd

 p
riv

at
e 

la
nd

lo
rd

s 
w

as
ps

**
10

3.
40

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

10
7.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

3.
60

3.
48

%

31
0

P
es

t C
on

tro
l -

 C
om

m
er

ci
al

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
LB

B
D

 a
nd

 p
riv

at
e 

la
nd

lo
rd

s 
fle

as
**

13
4.

20
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
13

9.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
4.

80
3.

58
%

31
1

P
es

t C
on

tro
l -

 C
om

m
er

ci
al

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
LB

B
D

 a
nd

 p
riv

at
e 

la
nd

lo
rd

s 
ra

ts
**

10
3.

40
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
10

7.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
3.

60
3.

48
%

31
2

P
es

t C
on

tro
l -

 C
om

m
er

ci
al

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
LB

B
D

 a
nd

 p
riv

at
e 

la
nd

lo
rd

s 
be

db
ug

s
**

13
4.

20
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
13

9.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
4.

80
3.

58
%

31
3

P
es

t C
on

tro
l -

 C
om

m
er

ci
al

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
LB

B
D

 a
nd

 p
riv

at
e 

la
nd

lo
rd

s 
co

ck
ro

ac
he

s
**

13
4.

20
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
13

9.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
4.

80
3.

58
%

31
4

P
es

t C
on

tro
l -

 C
om

m
er

ci
al

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
LB

B
D

 a
nd

 p
riv

at
e 

la
nd

lo
rd

s 
ph

ar
ao

h 
an

ts
**

14
4.

10
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
14

9.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
4.

90
3.

40
%

31
5

P
es

t C
on

tro
l -

 C
om

m
er

ci
al

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
LB

B
D

 a
nd

 p
riv

at
e 

la
nd

lo
rd

s 
lo

w
 ri

sk
 in

se
ct

s 
fli

es
 a

nt
s 

et
c

**
14

4.
10

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

14
9.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

4.
90

3.
40

%

31
6

P
es

t C
on

tro
l -

 C
om

m
er

ci
al

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
LB

B
D

 a
nd

 p
riv

at
e 

la
nd

lo
rd

s 
sq

ui
rr

el
s 

pe
r w

ee
k 

or
 p

ar
t

**
18

5.
90

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

19
2.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

6.
10

3.
28

%

31
7

P
es

t C
on

tro
l -

 C
om

m
er

ci
al

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
LB

B
D

 a
nd

 p
riv

at
e 

la
nd

lo
rd

s 
pi

ge
on

s 
pe

r h
ou

r o
r p

ar
t p

lu
s 

m
at

er
ia

ls
**

10
3.

40
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
10

7.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
3.

60
3.

48
%

C
ar

el
in

e 
Se

rv
ic

e
31

8
S

oc
ia

l A
la

rm
 S

er
vi

ce
 - 

C
ha

rg
e 

pe
r a

nn
um

*
20

2.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

20
2.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

0.
00

%

R
eg

is
tr

ar
s

31
9

N
at

io
na

lit
y 

C
he

ck
in

g 
S

er
vi

ce
 F

la
t C

ha
rg

e 
pe

r D
oc

um
en

t
*

35
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
40

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

5.
00

14
.2

9%

32
0

In
di

vi
du

al
 C

iti
ze

ns
hi

p 
P

ay
m

en
ts

*
55

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

55
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

00
0.

00
%

32
1

In
di

vi
du

al
 C

iti
ze

ns
hi

p 
P

ay
m

en
ts

 (F
A

M
IL

Y
) -

 N
ew

 C
ha

rg
e 

fo
r 2

00
9/

10
*

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
75

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

n/
a

n/
a

32
2

M
ar

ria
ge

s/
C

iv
il 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s 
at

 A
rd

en
 H

ou
se

 (M
on

 - 
Th

ur
s)

*
80

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

80
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

00
0.

00
%

32
3

M
ar

ria
ge

s/
C

iv
il 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s 
at

 A
rd

en
 H

ou
se

 (F
rid

ay
)

*
10

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

10
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

0.
00

%

32
4

M
ar

ria
ge

s/
C

iv
il 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s 
at

 A
rd

en
 H

ou
se

 (S
at

 u
p 

to
 1

2.
30

pm
)

*
18

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

18
5.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

5.
00

2.
78

%

32
5

M
ar

ria
ge

s/
C

iv
il 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s 
at

 A
rd

en
 H

ou
se

 (S
at

 fr
om

 1
.4

5p
m

)
*

18
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
20

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
20

.0
0

11
.1

1%

32
6

M
ar

ria
ge

s/
C

iv
il 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s 
at

 A
rd

en
 H

ou
se

 (S
un

da
y 

&
 B

an
k 

H
ol

id
ay

s)
*

31
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
35

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
40

.0
0

12
.9

0%

32
7

M
ar

ria
ge

s/
C

iv
il 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s 
at

 A
pp

ro
ve

d 
P

re
m

is
es

*
29

3.
50

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

30
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

6.
50

2.
21

%

32
8

M
ar

ria
ge

s/
C

iv
il 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s 
at

 A
pp

ro
ve

d 
P

re
m

is
es

 (S
un

da
ys

 &
 B

an
k 

H
ol

id
ay

s)
 - 

N
ew

 C
ha

rg
e 

fo
r 2

00
9/

10
*

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
35

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
n/

a
n/

a

32
9

N
on

-S
ta

tu
to

ry
 C

er
em

on
ie

s 
(R

en
ew

al
 o

f V
ow

s 
&

 B
ab

y 
N

am
in

g)
 (M

on
-F

ri)
 - 

N
ew

 C
ha

rg
e 

fo
r 2

00
9/

10
**

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
10

2.
18

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
n/

a
n/

a

33
0

N
on

-S
ta

tu
to

ry
 C

er
em

on
ie

s 
(R

en
ew

al
 o

f V
ow

s 
&

 B
ab

y 
N

am
in

g)
 (S

at
ur

da
y)

**
13

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

13
7.

93
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

7.
93

6.
10

%

33
1

N
on

-S
ta

tu
to

ry
 C

er
em

on
ie

s 
(R

en
ew

al
 o

f V
ow

s 
&

 B
ab

y 
N

am
in

g)
 (S

un
da

y)
**

31
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
35

7.
61

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
47

.6
1

15
.3

6%

33
2

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

to
 b

e 
an

 A
pp

ro
ve

d 
P

re
m

is
es

- N
on

 re
fu

nd
ab

le
 a

pp
lic

at
io

n 
fe

e 
fo

r 3
 y

ea
r a

pp
ro

va
l e

xc
lu

di
ng

 th
e 

co
st

 o
f a

dv
er

tis
em

en
t w

hi
ch

 is
 th

e 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

of
 th

e 
ap

pl
ic

an
t

*
65

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

67
5.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

25
.0

0
3.

85
%

33
3

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

fo
r a

n 
A

pp
ro

ve
d 

P
re

m
is

es
- N

on
 re

fu
nd

ab
le

 a
pp

lic
at

io
n 

fo
r r

en
ew

al
 e

xc
lu

di
ng

 th
e 

co
st

 o
f a

dv
er

tis
em

en
t w

hi
ch

 is
 th

e 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

of
 th

e 
ap

pl
ic

an
t

*
65

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

67
5.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

25
.0

0
3.

85
%

33
4

A
pp

ro
ve

d 
P

re
m

is
es

- F
ee

 fo
r r

ev
ie

w
 b

y 
th

e 
R

ev
ie

w
 O

ffi
ce

r o
r A

ss
em

bl
y 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
re

fu
sa

l
*

28
7.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
30

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
13

.0
0

4.
53

%

33
5

W
eb

 C
as

tin
g 

fo
r C

iv
il 

M
ar

ria
ge

s 
- N

ew
 C

ha
rg

e 
fo

r 2
00

9/
10

**
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

10
.2

1
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
n/

a
n/

a

33
6

N
on

-S
ta

tu
to

ry
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

- c
om

m
em

or
at

iv
e 

ce
rti

fic
at

e 
- N

ew
 C

ha
rg

e 
fo

r 2
00

9/
10

**
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

10
.2

1
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
n/

a
n/

a

33
7

C
iti

ze
ns

hi
p 

- F
ra

m
ed

 C
er

tif
ic

at
e 

- N
ew

 C
ha

rg
e 

fo
r 2

00
9/

10
**

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
10

.2
1

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

n/
a

n/
a

33
8

P
rio

rit
y 

se
rv

ic
e 

fo
r c

op
y 

ce
rti

fic
at

es
 is

su
ed

 s
am

e 
da

y 
- N

ew
 C

ha
rg

e 
fo

r 2
00

9/
10

**
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

10
.2

1
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
n/

a
n/

a

33
9

M
ar

ria
ge

 R
eh

ea
rs

al
s 

- N
ew

 C
ha

rg
e 

fo
r 2

00
9/

10
**

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
25

.5
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

n/
a

n/
a

34
0

A
pp

oi
nt

m
en

ts
 fo

r M
ar

ria
ge

 N
ot

ic
es

 o
ut

si
de

 o
f n

or
m

al
 o

ffi
ce

 h
ou

rs
 - 

N
ew

 C
ha

rg
e 

fo
r 2

00
9/

10
*

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
10

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

n/
a

n/
a

Page 104



FE
ES

 A
N

D
 C

H
A

R
G

ES
 2

00
9/

10
A

PP
EN

D
IX

 A

*
N

ot
 V

at
ab

le

**
in

cl
ud

es
 V

A
T

**
*

ex
cl

ud
es

 V
A

T

 C
ur

re
nt

 2
00

8/
09

 
C

ha
rg

e 
 P

ro
po

se
d 

20
09

/1
0 

C
ha

rg
e 

£
£

£
%

Pr
op

os
ed

 In
cr

ea
se

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

of
 S

er
vi

ce

34
1

B
irt

h/
D

ea
th

/M
ar

ria
ge

 G
en

er
al

 S
ea

rc
h 

(h
is

to
ric

al
 s

ea
rc

h 
by

 p
ub

lic
 in

 in
de

xe
s)

 - 
N

ew
 C

ha
rg

e 
fo

r 2
00

9/
10

**
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

18
.3

9
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
n/

a
n/

a

34
2

M
ar

ria
ge

 - 
hi

st
or

ic
al

 s
ea

rc
he

s 
(if

 c
op

y 
no

t p
ro

vi
de

d)
 - 

N
ew

 C
ha

rg
e 

fo
r 2

00
9/

10
**

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
7.

16
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

n/
a

n/
a

34
3

C
op

y 
fu

ll 
&

 s
ho

rt 
ce

rti
fic

at
es

 (o
pe

n)
 - 

N
ew

 C
ha

rg
e 

fo
r 2

00
9/

10
**

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
3.

57
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

n/
a

n/
a

34
4

C
op

y 
fu

ll 
ce

rti
fic

at
es

 (c
lo

se
d)

 - 
N

ew
 C

ha
rg

e 
fo

r 2
00

9/
10

**
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

7.
16

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
n/

a
n/

a

34
5

C
op

y 
sh

or
t c

er
tif

ic
at

es
 (c

lo
se

d)
 - 

N
ew

 C
ha

rg
e 

fo
r 2

00
9/

10
**

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
5.

62
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

n/
a

n/
a

34
6

R
eg

is
tra

r A
tte

nd
an

ce
 a

t p
la

ce
 o

f w
or

sh
ip

 (i
nc

lu
de

s 
st

at
 c

er
tif

ic
at

e)
 - 

N
ew

 C
ha

rg
e 

fo
r 2

00
9/

10
**

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
51

.5
9

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

n/
a

n/
a

G
en

er
al

 H
ou

si
ng

34
7

E
as

tb
ro

ok
en

d 
- T

ra
ve

lle
rs

 c
ar

av
an

 s
ite

 W
ee

kl
y 

Li
ce

nc
e 

C
ha

rg
e 

- S
in

gl
e 

P
itc

h
*

82
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
86

.5
1

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

4.
51

5.
50

%

34
8

E
as

tb
ro

ok
en

d 
- T

ra
ve

lle
rs

 c
ar

av
an

 s
ite

 W
ee

kl
y 

Li
ce

nc
e 

C
ha

rg
e 

- D
ou

bl
e 

P
itc

h
*

10
2.

50
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
10

8.
13

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
5.

63
5.

49
%

O
n 

St
re

et
 P

ar
ki

ng
 S

er
vi

ce
s

34
9

O
pe

ra
tio

na
l P

er
m

it
*

60
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
66

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

6.
00

10
.0

0%

35
0

A
nn

ua
l R

es
id

en
ts

 P
ar

ki
ng

 P
er

m
it 

(fo
r f

irs
t v

eh
ic

le
)

*
22

.5
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

24
.7

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2.

25
10

.0
0%

35
1

A
nn

ua
l R

es
id

en
ts

 P
ar

ki
ng

 P
er

m
it 

(fo
r s

ec
on

d 
ve

hi
cl

e)
*

30
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
33

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

3.
00

10
.0

0%

35
2

A
nn

ua
l R

es
id

en
ts

 P
ar

ki
ng

 P
er

m
it 

(fo
r t

hi
rd

 v
eh

ic
le

)
*

40
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
44

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

4.
00

10
.0

0%

35
3

A
nn

ua
l R

es
id

en
ts

 P
ar

ki
ng

 P
er

m
it 

(fo
r f

ou
rth

 a
nd

 s
ub

se
qu

en
t v

eh
ic

le
)

*
60

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

66
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
6.

00
10

.0
0%

35
4

V
is

ito
r P

ar
ki

ng
 P

er
m

it 
(1

0 
lin

es
) -

 a
ll 

ar
ea

s
*

4.
50

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
4.

95
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
45

10
.0

0%

35
5

V
is

ito
r P

ar
ki

ng
 P

er
m

it 
(2

0 
lin

es
) -

 a
ll 

ar
ea

s
*

8.
50

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
9.

35
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
85

10
.0

0%

35
6

A
nn

ua
l H

ea
th

w
ay

 B
us

in
es

s 
P

ar
ki

ng
 P

er
m

it 
(O

n 
S

tre
et

)
*

11
8.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
12

9.
80

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
11

.8
0

10
.0

0%

35
7

S
us

pe
ns

io
n 

of
 p

ar
ki

ng
 s

pa
ce

 (p
er

 p
la

ce
 6

 m
et

re
 le

ng
th

 o
n 

st
re

et
)

*
20

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

22
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2.

00
10

.0
0%

35
8

B
us

in
es

s 
P

er
m

it 
- A

nn
ua

l -
 D

ag
en

ha
m

 E
as

t, 
U

pn
ey

, H
ea

th
w

ay
, B

ec
on

rte
e 

an
d 

C
ha

dw
el

l H
ea

th
 a

re
as

*
11

8.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

12
9.

80
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

11
.8

0
10

.0
0%

35
9

B
us

in
es

s 
P

er
m

it 
- A

nn
ua

l -
 B

ar
ki

ng
 T

ow
n 

C
en

tre
*

35
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
38

5.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
35

.0
0

10
.0

0%

O
n-

st
re

et
 P

ay
 &

 D
is

pl
ay

 - 
W

ak
er

in
g 

R
d,

 P
ar

k 
A

v,
 L

on
gb

rid
ge

 R
d,

 G
eo

rg
e 

St
, L

in
to

n 
R

d,
 L

on
do

n 
R

d,
 A

bb
ey

 R
d,

 S
t P

au
l's

36
0

U
p 

to
 3

0 
m

in
ut

es
**

0.
80

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

90
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
10

12
.5

0%

36
1

U
p 

to
 1

 h
ou

r
**

1.
50

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

60
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
10

6.
67

%

36
2

U
p 

to
 2

 h
ou

rs
**

2.
50

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2.

70
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
20

8.
00

%

36
3

U
p 

to
 3

 h
ou

rs
**

3.
50

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
3.

80
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
30

8.
57

%

36
4

U
p 

to
 4

 h
ou

rs
**

4.
50

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
4.

80
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
30

6.
67

%

36
5

S
ha

re
d 

B
us

in
es

s 
B

ay
s

**
35

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

37
6.

80
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

26
.8

0
7.

66
%

36
6

S
ki

p 
P

er
m

its
*

15
.5

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
15

.9
7

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
47

3.
03

%

36
7

Fo
ot

w
ay

 C
ro

ss
in

g 
A

dm
in

is
tra

tio
n 

Fe
e

*
79

.5
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

81
.8

9
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2.

39
3.

01
%

C
em

et
er

ie
s

36
8

G
ra

ve
 fe

es
  -

  A
 G

ra
de

 M
ou

nd
ed

 (5
0 

ye
ar

s)
*

2,
30

4.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
42

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
  

11
6.

00
5.

03
%

H
ig

hw
ay

s

Page 105



FE
ES

 A
N

D
 C

H
A

R
G

ES
 2

00
9/

10
A

PP
EN

D
IX

 A

*
N

ot
 V

at
ab

le

**
in

cl
ud

es
 V

A
T

**
*

ex
cl

ud
es

 V
A

T

 C
ur

re
nt

 2
00

8/
09

 
C

ha
rg

e 
 P

ro
po

se
d 

20
09

/1
0 

C
ha

rg
e 

£
£

£
%

Pr
op

os
ed

 In
cr

ea
se

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

of
 S

er
vi

ce

36
9

G
ra

ve
 fe

es
 - 

M
ou

nd
ed

 (5
0 

ye
ar

s)
*

1,
96

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
05

8.
00

   
   

   
   

   
  

98
.0

0
5.

00
%

37
0

G
ra

ve
 fe

es
 - 

La
w

n 
(5

0 
ye

ar
s)

*
93

3.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

98
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

47
.0

0
5.

04
%

37
1

G
ra

ve
 fe

es
 - 

C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

C
or

ne
r (

50
 y

ea
rs

) d
ep

th
 fo

r o
ne

 o
nl

y
*

33
2.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
34

9.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
17

.0
0

5.
12

%

37
2

G
ra

ve
 fe

es
 - 

A
sh

es
 o

nl
y 

gr
av

e 
in

 G
ar

de
n 

of
 R

es
t (

25
 y

ea
rs

)
*

20
3.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
21

4.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
11

.0
0

5.
42

%

37
3

G
ra

ve
 fe

es
 - 

A
sh

es
 o

nl
y 

ab
ov

e 
gr

ou
nd

 v
au

lt 
(2

5 
ye

ar
s)

*
92

1.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

96
8.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

47
.0

0
5.

10
%

37
4

In
te

rn
m

en
t f

ee
s 

- P
riv

at
e 

G
ra

ve
 - 

N
on

-p
riv

at
e 

G
ra

ve
 (e

xc
lu

di
ng

 s
til

l-b
or

n)
*

61
9.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
65

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
31

.0
0

5.
01

%

37
5

In
te

rn
m

en
t f

ee
s 

- A
dd

iti
on

al
 C

ha
rg

e 
pe

r C
as

ke
t

*
12

1.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

12
8.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

7.
00

5.
79

%

37
6

In
te

rn
m

en
t f

ee
s 

- A
dd

iti
on

al
 C

ha
rg

e 
pe

r b
od

y 
ov

er
 d

ep
th

 o
f t

w
o

*
10

5.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

11
1.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

6.
00

5.
71

%

37
7

In
te

rn
m

en
t f

ee
s 

- C
hi

ld
 in

 N
on

-p
riv

at
e 

G
ra

de
 (A

ge
d 

be
tw

ee
n 

3 
w

ee
ks

 a
nd

 1
2 

ye
ar

s)
*

10
7.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
11

3.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
6.

00
5.

61
%

37
8

In
te

rn
m

en
t f

ee
s 

- C
hi

ld
 u

p 
to

 th
e 

ag
e 

of
 1

2 
ye

ar
s 

ol
d 

in
 C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
C

or
ne

r (
de

pt
h 

fo
r 1

 o
nl

y)
*

11
2.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
11

8.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
6.

00
5.

36
%

37
9

In
te

rn
m

en
t f

ee
s 

- S
til

l B
or

n 
B

ab
ie

s 
&

 C
hi

ld
re

n 
up

 to
 3

 w
ee

ks
 o

ld
 

*
10

7.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

11
3.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

6.
00

5.
61

%

38
0

C
re

m
at

ed
 re

m
ai

ns
 fe

es
 - 

In
te

rn
m

en
t o

f c
hi

ld
's

 c
re

m
at

ed
 re

m
ai

ns
 in

 C
hi

ld
re

n'
s 

C
or

ne
r

*
11

2.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

11
8.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

6.
00

5.
36

%

38
1

C
re

m
at

ed
 re

m
ai

ns
 fe

es
 - 

In
te

rn
m

en
t o

f c
re

m
at

ed
 re

m
ai

ns
 in

 P
riv

at
e 

G
ra

ve
 - 

In
te

rn
m

en
t o

f c
re

m
at

ed
 re

m
ai

ns
 in

 A
sh

es
 G

ra
ve

 in
 G

ar
de

n 
of

 R
es

t -
 C

re
m

at
ed

 
re

m
ai

ns
 in

 G
ar

de
n 

of
 R

es
t a

nd
 tw

o 
lin

e 
in

sc
rip

tio
n 

in
 B

oo
k 

of
 R

em
em

br
an

ce
 (O

N
LY

)
*

15
3.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
16

1.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
8.

00
5.

23
%

38
2

C
re

m
at

ed
 re

m
ai

ns
 fe

es
 - 

E
ac

h 
ad

di
tio

na
l l

in
e 

in
 th

e 
B

oo
k 

of
 R

em
em

br
an

ce
*

34
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
36

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2.
00

5.
88

%

38
3

C
re

m
at

ed
 re

m
ai

ns
 fe

es
 - 

S
ec

on
d 

In
te

rn
m

en
t o

f c
re

m
at

ed
 re

m
ai

ns
 in

 "a
bo

ve
 g

ro
un

d 
va

ul
t".

*
64

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

68
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
4.

00
6.

25
%

38
4

M
em

or
ia

l f
ee

s 
- R

ig
ht

 to
 p

la
ce

 m
em

or
ia

l o
n 

la
w

n 
&

 n
on

-la
w

n 
ty

pe
 g

ra
ve

 - 
R

ig
ht

 to
 p

la
ce

 s
in

gl
e 

or
 d

ou
bl

e 
m

em
or

ia
l v

as
e 

on
 a

ny
 g

ra
ve

  -
 R

ig
ht

 to
 p

la
ce

 m
em

or
ia

l 
bo

ok
 o

r p
la

qu
e 

on
 n

on
-la

w
n 

ty
pe

 o
f g

ra
ve

 - 
R

ig
ht

 to
 a

dd
 k

er
bs

 - 
la

nd
in

g 
*

12
1.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
12

8.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
7.

00
5.

79
%

38
5

M
em

or
ia

l f
ee

s 
- P

ro
vi

si
on

 o
f s

oi
l i

n 
ke

rb
 s

et
s

*
56

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

59
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
3.

00
5.

36
%

38
6

M
em

or
ia

l f
ee

s 
- A

dd
in

g 
in

sc
rip

tio
n,

 le
ve

lli
ng

/s
tra

ig
ht

en
in

g 
m

em
or

ia
ls

, c
le

an
in

g/
re

st
or

at
io

n 
w

or
ks

*
44

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

47
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
3.

00
6.

82
%

38
7

U
se

 o
f C

em
et

er
y 

C
ha

pe
l

*
73

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

77
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
4.

00
5.

48
%

38
8

R
eg

is
tra

tio
n 

of
 d

ec
la

ra
tio

n 
re

ga
rd

in
g 

N
on

-p
ro

du
ct

io
n 

of
 R

eg
is

tra
r's

 C
er

tif
ic

at
e

*
28

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

30
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2.

00
7.

14
%

38
9

Tr
an

sf
er

 o
f E

xc
lu

si
ve

 R
ig

ht
 o

f B
ur

ia
l

*
28

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

30
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2.

00
7.

14
%

39
0

Fa
m

ily
 T

ra
ce

 (p
er

 n
am

ed
 e

nt
ry

)
*

22
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
24

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2.
00

9.
09

%

39
1

P
ho

to
co

pi
es

 p
er

 A
4 

sh
ee

t
*

1.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

1.
00

10
0.

00
%

39
2

G
ro

un
ds

 A
nn

ua
l M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 - 

no
n-

la
w

n 
ty

pe
 g

ra
ve

*
11

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

11
6.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

6.
00

5.
45

%

39
3

G
ro

un
ds

 A
nn

ua
l M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 - 

la
w

n 
ty

pe
 g

ra
ve

*
70

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

74
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
4.

00
5.

71
%

39
4

M
em

or
ia

l B
en

ch
es

 (S
ta

nd
ar

d 
6f

t H
ar

dw
oo

d 
B

en
ch

)
*

57
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
59

9.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
29

.0
0

5.
09

%

39
5

P
ro

vi
si

on
 o

f C
on

cr
et

e 
B

as
e 

on
to

 w
hi

ch
 a

 b
en

ch
 c

an
 b

e 
pl

ac
ed

*
25

5.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

26
8.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

13
.0

0
5.

10
%

39
6

P
ro

vi
si

on
 o

f C
om

m
em

or
at

iv
e 

P
la

qu
e 

- S
ta

nd
ar

d
*

55
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
58

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

3.
00

5.
45

%

39
7

P
ro

vi
si

on
 o

f C
om

m
em

or
at

iv
e 

P
la

qu
e 

- L
ar

ge
*

65
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
69

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

4.
00

6.
15

%

39
8

P
ro

vi
si

on
 o

f M
em

or
ia

l T
re

e 
- (

8/
10

 S
ta

nd
ar

d 
S

iz
ed

)
*

13
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
13

7.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
7.

00
5.

38
%

39
9

P
ro

vi
si

on
 o

f M
em

or
ia

l T
re

e 
P

la
qu

e
*

10
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
10

5.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
5.

00
5.

00
%

40
0

S
ca

tte
rin

g 
of

 a
sh

es
 a

nd
 p

la
qu

e 
in

 G
ar

de
n 

of
 R

es
t

*
12

6.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

13
3.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

7.
00

5.
56

%

H
ou

si
ng

 A
dv

ic
e 

Se
rv

ic
es

Pr
iv

at
e 

Se
ct

or
 L

ea
si

ng
40

1
P

riv
at

e 
S

ec
to

r L
ea

si
ng

, A
dm

in
is

tra
tio

n 
Fe

e
*

10
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
10

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
0.

00
%

Page 106



FE
ES

 A
N

D
 C

H
A

R
G

ES
 2

00
9/

10
A

PP
EN

D
IX

 A

*
N

ot
 V

at
ab

le

**
in

cl
ud

es
 V

A
T

**
*

ex
cl

ud
es

 V
A

T

 C
ur

re
nt

 2
00

8/
09

 
C

ha
rg

e 
 P

ro
po

se
d 

20
09

/1
0 

C
ha

rg
e 

£
£

£
%

Pr
op

os
ed

 In
cr

ea
se

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

of
 S

er
vi

ce

O
ff 

St
re

et
 P

ar
ki

ng
 S

er
vi

ce
s

40
2

D
oc

to
r's

 P
ar

ki
ng

 P
er

m
it

*
60

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

62
.5

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2.

50
4.

17
%

40
6

30
 D

ay
 T

em
po

ra
ry

 C
ov

er
 (R

es
id

en
ts

 P
er

m
its

)
*

11
.5

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
12

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
50

4.
35

%

40
7

A
nn

ua
l P

re
-P

ai
d 

P
ar

ki
ng

 P
er

m
it 

(lo
ca

l w
or

ke
r o

nl
y)

 - 
Lo

nd
on

 R
d 

&
 L

in
to

n 
R

d
*

42
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
44

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
20

.0
0

4.
76

%

40
8

Q
ua

rte
rly

 P
re

-P
ai

d 
P

ar
ki

ng
 P

er
m

it 
(lo

ca
l w

or
ke

r o
nl

y)
 - 

Lo
nd

on
 R

d 
&

 L
in

to
n 

R
d

*
12

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

12
5.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

5.
00

4.
17

%

40
9

A
nn

ua
l P

re
-P

ai
d 

P
ar

ki
ng

 P
er

m
it 

(lo
ca

l w
or

ke
r o

nl
y)

 - 
H

ea
th

w
ay

*
34

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

35
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

10
.0

0
2.

94
%

41
0

Q
ua

rte
rly

 P
re

-P
ai

d 
P

ar
ki

ng
 P

er
m

it 
(lo

ca
l w

or
ke

r o
nl

y)
 - 

H
ea

th
w

ay
*

95
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
10

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
5.

00
5.

26
%

41
1

M
et

ro
po

lit
an

 P
ol

ic
e 

(A
nn

ua
l) 

Lo
nd

on
 R

oa
d 

M
ul

ti-
S

to
re

y 
C

ar
 P

ar
k

*
21

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

22
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

10
.0

0
4.

76
%

41
2

E
ss

en
tia

l H
ea

lth
 W

or
ke

r P
ar

ki
ng

 P
er

m
it

*
35

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

36
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
2.

86
%

O
ff-

St
re

et
 P

ay
 &

 D
is

pl
ay

 A
xe

 S
t i

nc
lu

di
ng

 B
ro

ad
w

ay
 T

he
at

re
 S

er
vi

ce
 R

oa
d,

 L
on

do
n 

R
d 

&
 N

or
th

 S
tr

ee
t S

ho
pp

er
s 

C
ar

 P
ar

k,
 L

on
do

n 
R

oa
d 

M
ul

ti 
St

or
ey

, 
Li

nt
on

 R
d 

Sh
op

pe
rs

 C
ar

 P
ar

k

41
3

U
p 

to
 1

 h
ou

r
**

0.
90

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
10

11
.1

1%

41
4

U
p 

to
 2

 h
ou

rs
**

1.
50

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
4.

65
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

3.
15

21
0.

00
%

41
5

U
p 

to
 4

 h
ou

rs
**

2.
90

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
4.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

1.
10

37
.9

3%

41
6

U
p 

to
 6

 h
ou

rs
**

6.
50

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
7.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
50

7.
69

%

41
7

O
ve

r 6
 h

ou
rs

**
12

.5
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

12
.5

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

00
0.

00
%

O
ff-

St
re

et
 P

ay
 &

 D
is

pl
ay

 H
ea

th
w

ay
 M

ul
ti 

St
or

ey
 C

ar
 P

ar
k

41
8

U
p 

to
 1

 h
ou

r -
 N

ew
 C

ha
rg

e 
fo

r 2
00

9-
10

**
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
50

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
n/

a
n/

a

41
9

U
p 

to
 2

 h
ou

rs
**

1.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
00

0.
00

%

42
0

U
p 

to
 4

 h
ou

rs
**

1.
70

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

70
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
00

0.
00

%

42
1

U
p 

to
 6

 h
ou

rs
**

2.
50

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
3.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
50

20
.0

0%

42
2

O
ve

r 6
 h

ou
rs

**
3.

50
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

4.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
0.

50
14

.2
9%

St
re

et
 T

ra
di

ng
 S

er
vi

ce
s

42
3

S
tre

et
 T

ra
di

ng
 C

ha
rg

es
-  

2 
m

et
re

s+
 

**
25

5.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

26
5.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

10
.0

0
3.

92
%

42
4

1 
to

 2
 m

et
re

s
**

21
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
22

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
10

.0
0

4.
76

%

42
5

S
m

al
l a

re
a 

 (-
1 

m
et

re
).

**
16

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

16
7.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

7.
00

4.
38

%

42
6

M
ob

ile
 C

at
er

in
g 

V
an

s
**

25
5.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
26

5.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
10

.0
0

3.
92

%

B
ar

ki
ng

 M
ar

ke
t. 

Fe
es

 a
nd

 C
ha

rg
es

. S
at

ur
da

ys
.

42
7

Lo
nd

on
 R

oa
d 

**
4.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

4.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
0.

00
0.

00
%

42
8

R
ip

pl
e 

R
d.

**
4.

20
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

4.
20

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
0.

00
0.

00
%

42
9

E
as

t S
tre

et
**

4.
20

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
4.

20
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
00

0.
00

%

43
0

S
ta

tio
n 

P
ar

ad
e

**
4.

20
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

4.
20

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
0.

00
0.

00
%

43
1

O
ld

' E
as

t S
tre

et
.

**
3.

60
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

3.
60

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
0.

00
0.

00
%

R
EG

EN
ER

A
TI

O
N

Page 107



FE
ES

 A
N

D
 C

H
A

R
G

ES
 2

00
9/

10
A

PP
EN

D
IX

 A

*
N

ot
 V

at
ab

le

**
in

cl
ud

es
 V

A
T

**
*

ex
cl

ud
es

 V
A

T

 C
ur

re
nt

 2
00

8/
09

 
C

ha
rg

e 
 P

ro
po

se
d 

20
09

/1
0 

C
ha

rg
e 

£
£

£
%

Pr
op

os
ed

 In
cr

ea
se

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

of
 S

er
vi

ce

M
id

w
ee

k 
(T

ue
s/

Th
ur

s)
43

2
Lo

nd
on

 R
oa

d 
**

3.
10

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
3.

10
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
00

0.
00

%

43
3

R
ip

pl
e 

R
oa

d
**

3.
10

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
3.

10
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
00

0.
00

%

43
4

E
as

t S
tre

et
**

3.
10

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
3.

10
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
00

0.
00

%

43
5

S
ta

tio
n 

P
ar

ad
e

**
3.

10
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

3.
10

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
0.

00
0.

00
%

43
6

O
ld

' E
as

t S
tre

et
.

**
2.

50
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2.
50

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
0.

00
0.

00
%

Pl
an

ni
ng

 S
er

vi
ce

s
43

7
P

la
nn

in
g 

- p
os

t s
ea

rc
h 

en
qu

iri
es

 - 
w

ith
ou

t s
ite

 v
is

it
*

40
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
41

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

2.
50

%

43
8

P
la

nn
in

g 
- p

os
t s

ea
rc

h 
en

qu
iri

es
 - 

w
ith

 s
ite

 v
is

it
*

63
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
65

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2.
00

3.
17

%

43
9

C
ha

rg
es

 to
 c

on
su

lta
nt

 p
er

 h
ou

r
*

80
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
82

.5
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2.
50

3.
13

%

44
0

S
tre

et
 n

am
in

g 
an

d 
N

um
be

rin
g 

S
er

vi
ce

 - 
N

ew
 p

ro
pe

rty
 (1

)
*

38
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
39

.1
4

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
14

3.
00

%

44
1

S
tre

et
 n

am
in

g 
an

d 
N

um
be

rin
g 

S
er

vi
ce

 - 
ch

an
ge

 o
f a

pp
ro

ve
d 

ad
dr

es
s

*
38

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

39
.1

4
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

14
3.

00
%

44
2

S
tre

et
 n

am
in

g 
an

d 
N

um
be

rin
g 

S
er

vi
ce

 - 
ne

w
 R

oa
d 

N
am

e
*

20
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
20

6.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
6.

00
3.

00
%

44
3

S
tre

et
 n

am
in

g 
an

d 
N

um
be

rin
g 

S
er

vi
ce

 - 
ne

w
 p

ro
pe

rty
 n

am
e

*
18

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

18
5.

40
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

5.
40

3.
00

%

44
4

S
tre

et
 n

am
in

g 
an

d 
N

um
be

rin
g 

S
er

vi
ce

 C
on

ve
rs

io
n 

of
 e

xi
st

in
g 

pr
op

er
ty

 to
 u

p 
to

 4
 u

ni
ts

*
90

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

92
.7

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2.

70
3.

00
%

44
5

S
tre

et
 n

am
in

g 
an

d 
N

um
be

rin
g 

S
er

vi
ce

 - 
ne

w
 p

lo
ts

 (2
-2

5)
 e

ac
h

*
30

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

30
.9

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

90
3.

00
%

44
6

S
tre

et
 n

am
in

g 
an

d 
N

um
be

rin
g 

S
er

vi
ce

 - 
ne

w
 p

lo
ts

 2
6 

to
 9

9 
ea

ch
*

25
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
25

.7
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
75

3.
00

%

44
7

S
tre

et
 n

am
in

g 
an

d 
N

um
be

rin
g 

S
er

vi
ce

 - 
ne

w
 p

lo
ts

 1
00

 o
r m

or
e 

ea
ch

*
20

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

20
.6

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

60
3.

00
%

44
8

P
ar

k 
us

e 
- n

on
 c

om
m

er
ci

al
 (F

un
 D

ay
s)

*
10

8.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

11
2.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

4.
00

3.
70

%

44
9

P
ar

k 
us

e 
- n

on
 c

om
m

er
ci

al
 (s

m
al

l e
ve

nt
 - 

le
ss

 th
an

 2
00

 p
eo

pl
e 

at
te

nd
in

g 
(fu

nd
ra

is
in

g 
sp

on
so

re
d 

ev
en

ts
))

*
52

.5
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

55
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2.

50
4.

76
%

45
0

P
ar

k 
us

e 
- n

on
-c

om
m

er
ci

al
 fu

nd
ra

is
in

g 
ev

en
t -

 w
al

ks
 a

nd
 b

ik
e 

rid
es

 u
p 

to
 5

0 
pe

op
le

*
15

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

15
.5

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

50
3.

33
%

45
1

P
ar

k 
us

e 
- n

on
-c

om
m

er
ci

al
 u

p 
to

 5
00

 p
eo

pl
e 

(n
o 

en
try

 fe
e)

*
10

5.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

11
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

5.
00

4.
76

%

45
2

P
ar

k 
us

e 
- n

on
-c

om
m

er
ci

al
 u

p 
to

 2
,5

00
 p

eo
pl

e 
(n

o 
en

try
 fe

e)
*

30
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
31

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
10

.0
0

3.
33

%

45
3

P
ar

k 
us

e 
- n

on
-c

om
m

er
ci

al
 u

p 
to

 5
,0

00
 p

eo
pl

e 
(n

o 
en

try
 fe

e)
*

53
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
55

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
20

.0
0

3.
77

%

45
4

P
ar

k 
us

e 
- n

on
-c

om
m

er
ci

al
 o

ve
r 5

,0
00

 p
eo

pl
e 

(n
o 

en
try

 fe
e)

*
P

O
A

P
O

A
n/

a
n/

a

45
5

A
dd

iti
on

al
 F

ee
 p

er
 s

ix
 h

ou
rs

 o
f c

on
su

lta
tio

n
*

55
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
57

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2.
00

3.
64

%

45
6

P
ub

lic
 li

ab
ili

ty
 c

ov
er

 fo
r n

on
 c

om
m

er
ci

al
 p

ar
k 

us
e 

- u
p 

to
 £

2 
m

ill
io

n
*

16
.5

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
17

.5
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

6.
06

%

45
7

P
ar

k 
us

e 
co

m
m

er
ci

al
 - 

ca
te

go
ry

 1
*

54
5.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
56

5.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
20

.0
0

3.
67

%

45
8

P
ar

k 
us

e 
co

m
m

er
ci

al
 - 

ca
te

go
ry

 2
*

71
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
73

5.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
25

.0
0

3.
52

%

45
9

P
ar

k 
us

e 
co

m
m

er
ci

al
 - 

ca
te

go
ry

 3
*

87
5.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
91

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
35

.0
0

4.
00

%

46
0

P
ar

k 
us

e 
co

m
m

er
ci

al
 - 

ca
te

go
ry

 4
*

1,
03

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
10

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
  

70
.0

0
6.

80
%

46
1

P
ar

k 
us

e 
co

m
m

er
ci

al
 - 

pe
r a

dd
iti

on
al

 s
ix

 h
ou

rs
 o

f e
ve

nt
 ti

m
e

*
16

5.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

17
5.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

10
.0

0
6.

06
%

46
2

U
se

 o
f P

re
m

is
es

 L
ic

en
ce

 (C
om

m
er

ci
al

) w
he

re
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

 u
p 

to
 5

,0
00

*
50

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

52
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

20
.0

0
4.

00
%

46
3

U
se

 o
f P

re
m

is
es

 L
ic

en
ce

 (C
om

m
er

ci
al

) w
he

re
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

 u
p 

to
 1

0,
00

0
*

1,
50

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
65

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
  

15
0.

00
10

.0
0%

46
4

U
se

 o
f P

re
m

is
es

 L
ic

en
ce

 (C
om

m
er

ci
al

) w
he

re
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

 u
p 

to
 1

5,
00

0
*

3,
00

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

3,
30

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
  

30
0.

00
10

.0
0%

Ev
en

ts

Page 108



FE
ES

 A
N

D
 C

H
A

R
G

ES
 2

00
9/

10
A

PP
EN

D
IX

 A

*
N

ot
 V

at
ab

le

**
in

cl
ud

es
 V

A
T

**
*

ex
cl

ud
es

 V
A

T

 C
ur

re
nt

 2
00

8/
09

 
C

ha
rg

e 
 P

ro
po

se
d 

20
09

/1
0 

C
ha

rg
e 

£
£

£
%

Pr
op

os
ed

 In
cr

ea
se

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

of
 S

er
vi

ce

46
5

U
se

 o
f P

re
m

is
es

 L
ic

en
ce

 (C
om

m
er

ci
al

) w
he

re
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

 u
p 

to
 1

9,
99

9 
*

5,
00

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

5,
50

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
  

50
0.

00
10

.0
0%

46
6

B
an

ds
ta

nd
 h

ire
 - 

B
ar

ki
ng

 T
ow

n 
C

en
tre

*
31

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

32
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
3.

23
%

46
7

P
ar

k 
us

e 
(N

on
-a

ni
m

al
 C

irc
us

) -
 S

m
al

l -
 u

p 
to

 5
00

 s
ea

ts
 p

er
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 d

ay
*

18
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
19

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
10

.0
0

5.
56

%

46
8

P
ar

k 
us

e 
(N

on
-a

ni
m

al
 C

irc
us

) -
 M

ed
iu

m
 - 

up
 to

 7
50

 s
ea

ts
 p

er
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 d

ay
*

33
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
34

5.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
15

.0
0

4.
55

%

46
9

P
ar

k 
us

e 
(N

on
-a

ni
m

al
 C

irc
us

) -
 L

ar
ge

 - 
up

 to
 1

00
0 

se
at

s 
pe

r p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 d
ay

*
35

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

36
5.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

15
.0

0
4.

29
%

47
0

P
ar

k 
us

e 
(N

on
-a

ni
m

al
 C

irc
us

) -
 E

xt
ra

 L
ar

ge
 - 

up
 to

 2
00

0 
se

at
s 

pe
r p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 d

ay
*

52
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
55

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
30

.0
0

5.
77

%

47
1

P
ar

k 
us

e 
(N

on
-a

ni
m

al
 C

irc
us

) -
 N

on
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 d

ay
*

58
.5

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
61

.5
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

3.
00

5.
13

%

47
2

P
ar

k 
us

e 
by

 F
ai

rs
 - 

S
m

al
l F

ai
r

*
30

8.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

32
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

12
.0

0
3.

90
%

47
3

P
ar

k 
us

e 
by

 F
ai

rs
 - 

La
rg

e 
Fa

ir
*

40
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
41

5.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
15

.0
0

3.
75

%

47
4

P
ar

k 
us

e 
by

 F
ai

rs
 - 

E
ve

nt
 F

ai
r -

 2
 d

ay
s 

at
 D

ag
en

ha
m

 T
ow

n 
S

ho
w

*
65

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

67
5.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

25
.0

0
3.

85
%

47
5

P
ar

k 
us

e 
by

 F
ai

rs
 - 

N
on

 O
pe

ra
tio

na
l D

ay
s

*
58

.5
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

61
.5

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
3.

00
5.

13
%

47
6

C
ar

 P
ar

k 
at

 D
ag

en
ha

m
 T

ow
n 

S
ho

w
*

4.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
4.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
00

0.
00

%

Page 109



FE
ES

 A
N

D
 C

H
A

R
G

ES
 2

00
9/

10
A

PP
EN

D
IX

 A

*
N

ot
 V

at
ab

le

**
in

cl
ud

es
 V

A
T

**
*

ex
cl

ud
es

 V
A

T

 C
ur

re
nt

 2
00

8/
09

 
C

ha
rg

e 
 P

ro
po

se
d 

20
09

/1
0 

C
ha

rg
e 

£
£

£
%

Pr
op

os
ed

 In
cr

ea
se

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

of
 S

er
vi

ce

47
7

Le
is

ur
e 

- L
ei

su
re

S
m

ar
t c

ar
d 

- a
du

lt 
- p

a
**

30
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
31

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

3.
33

%

47
8

Le
is

ur
e 

- L
ei

su
re

S
m

ar
t c

ar
d 

- j
un

io
r -

 p
a

**
15

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

15
.5

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

50
3.

33
%

47
9

Le
is

ur
e 

- L
ei

su
re

S
m

ar
t c

ar
d 

- f
am

ily
 - 

pa
**

75
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
78

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

3.
00

4.
00

%

48
0

Le
is

ur
e 

- L
ei

su
re

S
m

ar
t c

ar
d 

- s
ta

ff 
- p

a
**

8.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
8.

25
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
25

3.
13

%

48
1

Le
is

ur
e 

- L
ei

su
re

S
m

ar
t c

ar
d 

- j
oi

ni
ng

 fe
e 

**
8.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

8.
25

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
0.

25
3.

13
%

48
2

Le
is

ur
e 

- L
ei

su
re

S
m

ar
t c

ar
d 

- r
ep

la
ce

m
en

t c
ar

d
**

4.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
4.

25
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
25

6.
23

%

48
3

Le
is

ur
e 

- L
ei

su
re

P
as

s 
- o

ff 
pe

ak
 - 

pa
**

4.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
4.

25
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
25

6.
25

%

48
4

Le
is

ur
e 

- L
ei

su
re

 P
as

s 
- N

on
 R

es
id

en
ts

 - 
O

ff 
pe

ak
 - 

pa
**

4.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
4.

25
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
25

6.
25

%

48
5

Le
is

ur
e 

- f
itn

es
s 

gy
m

 - 
ad

ul
t

**
5.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

5.
25

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
0.

25
5.

00
%

48
6

Le
is

ur
e 

- f
itn

es
s 

gy
m

 - 
ad

ul
t o

ff 
pe

ak
**

4.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
4.

25
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
25

6.
25

%

48
7

Le
is

ur
e 

- f
itn

es
s 

gy
m

 - 
le

is
ur

e 
pa

ss
**

2.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
00

0.
00

%

48
8

Le
is

ur
e 

- f
itn

es
s 

gy
m

 - 
fit

 fo
r l

ife
**

2.
80

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2.

80
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
00

0.
00

%

48
9

Le
is

ur
e 

- f
itn

es
s 

gy
m

 - 
ad

ul
t i

nd
uc

tio
n

*
12

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

12
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

00
0.

00
%

49
0

Le
is

ur
e 

- f
itn

es
s 

gy
m

 - 
le

is
ur

e 
pa

ss
 in

du
ct

io
n

*
6.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

6.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
0.

00
0.

00
%

49
1

Le
is

ur
e 

- b
ad

m
in

to
n 

- a
du

lt 
pe

ak
 3

0 
m

in
s

**
5.

50
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

5.
70

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
0.

20
3.

64
%

49
2

Le
is

ur
e 

- b
ad

m
in

to
n 

- a
du

lt 
of

f p
ea

k 
30

 m
in

s
**

4.
50

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
4.

70
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
20

4.
44

%

49
3

Le
is

ur
e 

- b
ad

m
in

to
n 

- j
un

io
r p

ea
k 

30
 m

in
s

**
4.

80
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

4.
80

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
0.

00
0.

00
%

49
4

Le
is

ur
e 

- b
ad

m
in

to
n 

- j
un

io
r o

ff 
pe

ak
 3

0 
m

in
s

**
2.

75
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2.
75

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
0.

00
0.

00
%

49
5

Le
is

ur
e 

- b
ad

m
in

to
n 

- l
ei

su
re

 p
as

s 
30

 m
in

s
**

2.
25

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2.

35
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
10

4.
44

%

49
6

Le
is

ur
e 

- b
ad

m
in

to
n 

- a
du

lt 
pe

ak
 1

 h
ou

r
**

10
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
10

.2
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
25

2.
50

%

49
7

Le
is

ur
e 

- b
ad

m
in

to
n 

- a
du

lt 
of

f p
ea

k 
1 

ho
ur

**
8.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

8.
50

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
0.

50
6.

25
%

49
8

Le
is

ur
e 

- b
ad

m
in

to
n 

- j
un

io
r p

ea
k 

60
 m

in
s

**
8.

50
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

8.
50

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
0.

00
0.

00
%

49
9

Le
is

ur
e 

- b
ad

m
in

to
n 

- j
un

io
r o

ff 
pe

ak
 6

0 
m

in
s

**
4.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

4.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
0.

00
0.

00
%

50
0

Le
is

ur
e 

- b
ad

m
in

to
n 

- l
ei

su
re

 p
as

s 
60

 m
in

s
**

4.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
4.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
00

0.
00

%

50
1

Le
is

ur
e 

- s
qu

as
h 

co
ur

t a
du

lt 
pe

ak
**

7.
50

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
7.

75
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
25

3.
33

%

50
2

Le
is

ur
e 

- s
qu

as
h 

co
ur

t a
du

lt 
of

 p
ea

k
**

5.
50

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
5.

75
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
25

4.
55

%

50
3

Le
is

ur
e 

- s
qu

as
h 

co
ur

t j
un

io
r p

ea
k

**
6.

50
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

6.
50

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
0.

00
0.

00
%

50
4

Le
is

ur
e 

- s
qu

as
h 

co
ur

t j
un

io
r o

ff 
pe

ak
**

3.
40

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
3.

40
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
00

0.
00

%

50
5

Le
is

ur
e 

- s
qu

as
h 

co
ur

t -
 le

is
ur

e 
pa

ss
 (o

ff 
pe

ak
)

**
3.

25
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

3.
35

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
0.

10
3.

08
%

50
6

Le
is

ur
e 

- t
ab

le
 te

nn
is

 a
du

lt 
pe

ak
**

3.
50

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
3.

60
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
10

2.
86

%

50
7

Le
is

ur
e 

- t
ab

le
 te

nn
is

 a
du

lt 
of

 p
ea

k
**

3.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
3.

10
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
10

3.
33

%

50
8

Le
is

ur
e 

- t
ab

le
 te

nn
is

 ju
ni

or
 p

ea
k

**
2.

80
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2.
90

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
0.

10
3.

57
%

50
9

Le
is

ur
e 

- t
ab

le
 te

nn
is

 ju
ni

or
 o

ff 
pe

ak
**

2.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2.

10
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
10

5.
00

%

51
0

Le
is

ur
e 

- t
ab

le
 te

nn
is

 - 
Le

is
ur

e 
P

as
s 

(o
ff 

pe
ak

)
**

2.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2.

10
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
10

5.
00

%

51
1

Le
is

ur
e 

- c
re

ch
e 

pe
r c

hi
ld

 p
er

 h
ou

r
**

2.
20

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2.

20
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
00

0.
00

%

51
2

C
re

ch
e

**
50

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

51
.5

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

50
3.

00
%

Le
is

ur
e 

A
ct

iv
iti

es

Page 110



FE
ES

 A
N

D
 C

H
A

R
G

ES
 2

00
9/

10
A

PP
EN

D
IX

 A

*
N

ot
 V

at
ab

le

**
in

cl
ud

es
 V

A
T

**
*

ex
cl

ud
es

 V
A

T

 C
ur

re
nt

 2
00

8/
09

 
C

ha
rg

e 
 P

ro
po

se
d 

20
09

/1
0 

C
ha

rg
e 

£
£

£
%

Pr
op

os
ed

 In
cr

ea
se

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

of
 S

er
vi

ce

51
3

Le
is

ur
e 

- f
iv

e 
a 

si
de

 p
itc

h 
ou

td
oo

r s
yn

th
et

ic
 a

du
lt 

pe
ak

**
30

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

31
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
3.

33
%

51
4

Le
is

ur
e 

- f
iv

e 
a 

si
de

 p
itc

h 
ou

td
oo

r s
yn

th
et

ic
 a

du
lt 

of
f p

ea
k

**
25

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

26
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
4.

00
%

51
5

Le
is

ur
e 

- f
iv

e 
a 

si
de

 p
itc

h 
ou

td
oo

r s
yn

th
et

ic
 ju

ni
or

 p
ea

k
**

20
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
21

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

5.
00

%

51
6

Le
is

ur
e 

- f
iv

e 
a 

si
de

 p
itc

h 
ou

td
oo

r s
yn

th
et

ic
 ju

ni
or

 o
ff 

pe
ak

**
15

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

15
.5

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

50
3.

33
%

51
7

Le
is

ur
e 

- f
iv

e 
a 

si
de

 p
itc

h 
ou

td
oo

r t
ar

m
ac

 a
du

lt 
pe

ak
**

20
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
21

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

5.
00

%

51
8

Le
is

ur
e 

- f
iv

e 
a 

si
de

 p
itc

h 
ou

td
oo

r t
ar

m
ac

 a
du

lt 
of

f p
ea

k
**

15
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
15

.5
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
50

3.
33

%

51
9

Le
is

ur
e 

- f
iv

e 
a 

si
de

 p
itc

h 
ou

td
oo

r t
ar

m
ac

 ju
ni

or
 p

ea
k

**
10

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

10
.5

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

50
5.

00
%

52
0

Le
is

ur
e 

- f
iv

e 
a 

si
de

 p
itc

h 
ou

td
oo

r t
ar

m
ac

 ju
ni

or
 o

ff 
pe

ak
**

7.
75

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
8.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
25

3.
23

%

52
1

Le
is

ur
e 

- h
al

l h
ire

 G
or

es
br

oo
k 

fu
ll 

pe
ak

 -p
h

**
10

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

10
5.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

5.
00

5.
00

%

52
2

Le
is

ur
e 

- h
al

l h
ire

 G
or

es
br

oo
k 

fu
ll 

of
f p

ea
k 

- p
h

**
75

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

77
.5

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2.

50
3.

33
%

52
3

Le
is

ur
e 

- h
al

l h
ire

 G
or

es
br

oo
k 

ha
lf 

pe
ak

 - 
ph

**
60

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

62
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2.

00
3.

33
%

52
4

Le
is

ur
e 

- h
al

f h
al

l h
ire

 G
or

es
br

oo
k-

 o
ff 

pe
ak

 - 
ph

**
40

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

41
.5

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

50
3.

75
%

52
5

Le
is

ur
e 

- h
al

l h
ire

 G
or

es
br

oo
k 

qu
ar

te
r p

ea
k

**
25

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

26
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
4.

00
%

52
6

Le
is

ur
e 

- h
al

l h
ire

 G
or

es
br

oo
k 

qu
ar

te
r o

ff 
pe

ak
**

20
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
21

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

5.
00

%

52
7

Le
is

ur
e 

- D
an

ce
 S

tu
di

o
**

65
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
70

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

5.
00

7.
69

%

52
8

Le
is

ur
e 

- h
al

l h
ire

 W
oo

d 
La

ne
/A

bb
ey

 fu
ll 

pe
ak

**
45

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

46
.5

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

50
3.

33
%

52
9

Le
is

ur
e 

- h
al

l h
ire

 W
oo

d 
La

ne
/A

bb
ey

 fu
ll 

of
f p

ea
k

**
35

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

36
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
2.

86
%

53
0

Le
is

ur
e 

- h
al

l h
ire

 W
oo

d 
La

ne
/A

bb
ey

 h
al

f p
ea

k
**

22
.5

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
23

.2
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
75

3.
33

%

53
1

Le
is

ur
e 

- h
al

l h
ire

 W
oo

d 
La

ne
/A

bb
ey

 h
al

f o
ff 

pe
ak

**
17

.5
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

18
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

50
2.

86
%

53
2

Le
is

ur
e 

- h
al

l h
ire

 W
oo

d 
La

ne
/A

bb
ey

 q
ua

rte
r p

ea
k

**
11

.2
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

11
.5

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

25
2.

22
%

53
3

Le
is

ur
e 

- h
al

l h
ire

 W
oo

d 
La

ne
/A

bb
ey

 q
ua

rte
r o

ff 
pe

ak
**

8.
75

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
9.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
25

2.
86

%

53
4

Le
is

ur
e 

- D
an

ce
 S

tu
di

o 
- A

bb
ey

**
26

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

27
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
3.

85
%

53
5

Le
is

ur
e 

- D
an

ce
 S

tu
di

o 
- W

LS
C

**
26

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

27
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
3.

85
%

53
6

Le
is

ur
e 

- r
ifl

e 
ra

ng
e 

pe
r h

ou
r (

A
ut

ho
ris

ed
 C

lu
bs

) -
 W

LS
C

**
18

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

18
.5

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

50
2.

78
%

53
7

Le
is

ur
e 

- m
ee

tin
g 

ro
om

 u
se

rs
 w

ith
 p

ub
lic

 li
ab

ili
ty

 in
su

ra
nc

e
**

26
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
27

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

3.
85

%

53
8

Le
is

ur
e 

- m
ee

tin
g 

ro
om

 u
se

rs
 w

ith
ou

t p
ub

lic
 li

ab
ili

ty
 in

su
ra

nc
e

**
30

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

31
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
3.

33
%

53
9

Le
is

ur
e 

- m
ee

tin
g 

ro
om

 h
ire

 - 
Li

ce
nc

e 
E

xt
en

si
on

 (T
em

po
ra

ry
 E

ve
nt

 N
ot

ic
e)

**
11

5.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

12
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

5.
00

4.
35

%

54
0

B
ar

**
55

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

57
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2.

00
3.

64
%

54
1

Le
is

ur
e 

- s
w

im
m

in
g 

D
ag

en
ha

m
/A

bb
ey

 a
du

lt
**

3.
10

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
3.

20
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
10

3.
23

%

54
2

Le
is

ur
e 

- s
w

im
m

in
g 

G
or

es
br

oo
k 

ad
ul

t
**

3.
90

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
4.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
10

2.
56

%

54
3

Le
is

ur
e 

- s
w

im
m

in
g 

D
ag

en
ha

m
/A

bb
ey

 ju
ni

or
**

2.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2.

10
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
10

5.
00

%

54
4

Le
is

ur
e 

- s
w

im
m

in
g 

G
or

es
br

oo
k 

ju
ni

or
**

2.
20

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2.

30
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
10

4.
55

%

54
5

Le
is

ur
e 

- s
w

im
m

in
g 

D
ag

en
ha

m
/A

bb
ey

 fa
m

ily
**

10
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
10

.5
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
50

5.
00

%

54
6

Le
is

ur
e 

- s
w

im
m

in
g 

G
or

es
br

oo
k 

fa
m

ily
**

12
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
12

.5
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
50

4.
17

%

54
7

Le
is

ur
e 

sw
im

m
in

g 
D

ag
en

ha
m

/A
bb

ey
 fa

m
ily

 (s
in

gl
e 

pa
re

nt
)

**
7.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

7.
25

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
0.

25
3.

57
%

54
8

Le
is

ur
e 

sw
im

m
in

g 
G

or
es

br
oo

k 
fa

m
ily

 (s
in

gl
e 

pa
re

nt
)

**
8.

25
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

8.
50

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
0.

25
3.

03
%

54
9

Le
is

ur
e 

- S
w

im
 fo

r a
 Q

ui
d

**
1.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
0.

00
0.

00
%

55
0

Fu
ns

pl
as

h 
- A

S
C

**
2.

10
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2.
20

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
0.

10
4.

76
%

Page 111



FE
ES

 A
N

D
 C

H
A

R
G

ES
 2

00
9/

10
A

PP
EN

D
IX

 A

*
N

ot
 V

at
ab

le

**
in

cl
ud

es
 V

A
T

**
*

ex
cl

ud
es

 V
A

T

 C
ur

re
nt

 2
00

8/
09

 
C

ha
rg

e 
 P

ro
po

se
d 

20
09

/1
0 

C
ha

rg
e 

£
£

£
%

Pr
op

os
ed

 In
cr

ea
se

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

of
 S

er
vi

ce

55
1

Fu
ns

pl
as

h 
- D

S
P

**
2.

10
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2.
20

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
0.

10
4.

76
%

55
2

P
ar

en
t &

 B
ab

y 
- D

S
P

**
3.

10
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

3.
20

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
0.

10
3.

23
%

55
3

P
ar

en
t &

 B
ab

y 
- G

LC
**

3.
90

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
4.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
10

2.
56

%

55
4

Le
is

ur
e 

- s
w

im
m

in
g 

le
ss

on
s 

ad
ul

t 1
0 

le
ss

on
s

*
50

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

51
.5

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

50
3.

00
%

55
5

Le
is

ur
e 

- s
w

im
m

in
g 

le
ss

on
s 

ad
ul

t 1
0 

le
ss

on
s 

w
ith

 L
ei

su
re

S
m

ar
t

*
40

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

41
.5

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

50
3.

75
%

55
6

Le
is

ur
e 

- s
w

im
m

in
g 

le
ss

on
s 

ju
ni

or
 1

0 
le

ss
on

s 
*

40
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
41

.5
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
50

3.
75

%

55
7

Le
is

ur
e 

- s
w

im
m

in
g 

le
ss

on
s 

ju
ni

or
 1

0 
le

ss
on

s 
w

ith
 L

ei
su

re
S

m
ar

t
*

30
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
31

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

3.
33

%

55
8

O
ne

 to
 O

ne
 S

w
im

m
in

g 
le

ss
on

s 
- D

S
P

**
15

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

15
.5

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

50
3.

33
%

55
9

O
ne

 to
 O

ne
 S

w
im

m
in

g 
le

ss
on

s 
- G

LC
**

15
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
15

.5
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
50

3.
33

%

56
0

E
du

ca
tio

n 
S

ch
oo

l S
w

im
m

in
g

*
1.

85
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
90

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
0.

05
2.

70
%

56
1

Le
is

ur
e 

- s
w

im
m

in
g 

po
ol

 h
ire

 - 
G

al
as

 - 
D

ag
en

ha
m

 3
 h

ou
rs

*
28

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

29
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

10
.0

0
3.

57
%

56
2

Le
is

ur
e 

- s
w

im
m

in
g 

po
ol

 h
ire

 - 
G

al
as

 - 
D

ag
en

ha
m

 h
ou

rly
 o

ve
r r

un
 c

ha
rg

e
*

11
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
11

5.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
5.

00
4.

55
%

56
3

Le
is

ur
e 

- s
w

im
m

in
g 

po
ol

 h
ire

 - 
cl

ub
s 

pe
r h

ou
r A

bb
ey

 m
ai

n 
po

ol
*

45
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
46

.5
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
50

3.
33

%

56
4

Le
is

ur
e 

- s
w

im
m

in
g 

po
ol

 h
ire

 - 
cl

ub
s 

pe
r h

ou
r D

ag
en

ha
m

 m
ai

n 
po

ol
*

50
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
51

.5
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
50

3.
00

%

56
5

Le
is

ur
e 

- s
w

im
m

in
g 

po
ol

 h
ire

 - 
cl

ub
s 

pe
r h

ou
r D

ag
en

ha
m

 le
ar

ne
r p

oo
l

*
31

.7
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

32
.7

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
3.

15
%

56
6

Le
is

ur
e 

- s
w

im
m

in
g 

po
ol

 h
ire

 - 
cl

ub
s 

pe
r h

ou
r D

ag
en

ha
m

 d
iv

in
g 

po
ol

*
38

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

39
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
2.

63
%

56
7

50
+ 

A
qu

ar
ob

ic
s

*
3.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

3.
10

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
0.

10
3.

33
%

56
8

A
qu

ar
ob

ic
s

*
4.

30
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

4.
40

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
0.

10
2.

33
%

56
9

A
er

ob
ic

s
*

4.
30

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
4.

40
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
10

2.
33

%

57
0

Le
gs

, B
um

s 
&

 T
um

s
*

4.
30

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
4.

40
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
10

2.
33

%

57
1

S
ta

ff 
A

er
ob

ic
s

*
3.

30
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

3.
40

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
0.

10
3.

03
%

57
2

B
od

y 
Tr

ai
ni

ng
 S

ys
te

m
s

*
4.

80
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

5.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
0.

20
4.

17
%

57
3

C
irc

ui
t T

ra
in

in
g

*
4.

40
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

4.
50

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
0.

10
2.

27
%

57
4

A
er

ob
ic

 C
irc

ui
t

*
4.

40
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

4.
50

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
0.

10
2.

27
%

57
5

Y
og

a 
1h

r
*

4.
40

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
4.

50
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
10

2.
27

%

57
6

P
ila

te
s

*
4.

40
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

4.
50

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
0.

10
2.

27
%

57
7

50
+ 

A
er

ob
ic

s
*

3.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
3.

10
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
10

3.
33

%

57
8

Fi
t B

al
l

*
4.

40
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

4.
50

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
0.

10
2.

27
%

57
9

E
ld

er
be

rr
ie

s
*

3.
10

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
3.

20
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
10

3.
23

%

M
em

be
rs

hi
ps

58
0

Jo
in

in
g 

Fe
e

**
35

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

36
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
2.

86
%

A
ct

iv
e 

Fi
tn

es
s

58
1

A
ct

iv
e 

Fi
tn

es
s 

- A
du

lt
**

35
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
36

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

2.
86

%

58
2

A
ct

iv
e 

Fi
tn

es
s 

- C
ou

pl
e

**
60

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

62
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2.

00
3.

33
%

58
3

A
ct

iv
e 

Fi
tn

es
s 

- F
am

ily
**

80
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
82

.5
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2.
50

3.
13

%

58
4

A
ct

iv
e 

Fi
tn

es
s 

- S
ta

ff
**

22
.5

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
23

.2
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
75

3.
33

%

58
5

A
ct

iv
e 

Fi
tn

es
s 

- G
ra

du
at

e
**

22
.5

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
23

.2
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
75

3.
33

%

58
6

A
ct

iv
e 

Fi
tn

es
s 

- E
ld

er
s

**
22

.5
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

23
.2

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

75
3.

33
%

Page 112



FE
ES

 A
N

D
 C

H
A

R
G

ES
 2

00
9/

10
A

PP
EN

D
IX

 A

*
N

ot
 V

at
ab

le

**
in

cl
ud

es
 V

A
T

**
*

ex
cl

ud
es

 V
A

T

 C
ur

re
nt

 2
00

8/
09

 
C

ha
rg

e 
 P

ro
po

se
d 

20
09

/1
0 

C
ha

rg
e 

£
£

£
%

Pr
op

os
ed

 In
cr

ea
se

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

of
 S

er
vi

ce

58
7

A
ct

iv
e 

Fi
tn

es
s 

- S
tu

de
nt

**
22

.5
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

23
.2

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

75
3.

33
%

A
ct

iv
e 

R
ac

ke
ts

58
8

A
ct

iv
e 

R
ac

ke
ts

 - 
A

du
lt

**
35

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

36
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
2.

86
%

58
9

A
ct

iv
e 

R
ac

ke
ts

 - 
C

ou
pl

e
**

60
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
62

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2.
00

3.
33

%

59
0

A
ct

iv
e 

R
ac

ke
ts

 - 
Fa

m
ily

**
80

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

82
.5

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2.

50
3.

13
%

59
1

A
ct

iv
e 

R
ac

ke
ts

 - 
S

ta
ff

**
22

.5
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

23
.2

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

75
3.

33
%

59
2

A
ct

iv
e 

R
ac

ke
ts

 - 
G

ra
du

at
e

**
22

.5
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

23
.2

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

75
3.

33
%

59
3

A
ct

iv
e 

R
ac

ke
ts

 - 
E

ld
er

s
**

22
.5

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
23

.2
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
75

3.
33

%

59
4

A
ct

iv
e 

R
ac

ke
ts

 - 
S

tu
de

nt
**

22
.5

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
23

.2
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
75

3.
33

%

59
5

A
ct

iv
e 

R
ac

ke
ts

 - 
K

id
s

**
17

.5
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

18
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

50
2.

86
%

A
ct

iv
e 

A
qu

a

59
6

A
ct

iv
e 

A
qu

a 
- A

du
lts

**
25

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

25
.7

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

75
3.

00
%

59
7

A
ct

iv
e 

A
qu

a 
- C

ou
pl

e
**

40
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
41

.2
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
25

3.
13

%

59
8

A
ct

iv
e 

A
qu

a 
- F

am
ily

**
60

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

62
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2.

00
3.

33
%

59
9

A
ct

iv
e 

A
qu

a 
- S

ta
ff

**
22

.5
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

23
.2

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

75
3.

33
%

60
0

A
ct

iv
e 

A
qu

a 
- G

ra
du

at
e

**
22

.5
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

23
.2

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

75
3.

33
%

60
1

A
ct

iv
e 

A
qu

a 
- E

ld
er

s
**

22
.5

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
23

.2
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
75

3.
33

%

60
2

A
ct

iv
e 

A
qu

a 
- S

tu
de

nt
**

22
.5

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
23

.2
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
75

3.
33

%

60
3

A
ct

iv
e 

A
qu

a 
- K

id
s

**
12

.5
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

12
.7

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

25
2.

00
%

A
ct

iv
e 

H
ea

lth

60
4

A
ct

iv
e 

H
ea

lth
 - 

A
du

lt
**

25
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
25

.7
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
75

3.
00

%

60
5

A
ct

iv
e 

H
ea

lth
 - 

C
ou

pl
e

**
46

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

47
.5

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

50
3.

26
%

60
6

A
ct

iv
e 

H
ea

lth
 - 

S
ta

ff
**

22
.5

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
23

.2
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
75

3.
33

%

60
7

A
ct

iv
e 

H
ea

lth
 - 

G
ra

du
at

e
**

22
.5

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
23

.2
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
75

3.
33

%

60
8

A
ct

iv
e 

H
ea

lth
 - 

E
ld

er
s

**
22

.5
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

23
.2

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

75
3.

33
%

60
9

A
ct

iv
e 

H
ea

lth
 - 

S
tu

de
nt

**
22

.5
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

23
.2

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

75
3.

33
%

P
re

m
ie

r A
ct

iv
e

61
0

P
re

m
ie

r A
ct

iv
e 

- A
du

lt
**

40
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
41

.5
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
50

3.
75

%

61
1

P
re

m
ie

r A
ct

iv
e 

- C
ou

pl
e

**
66

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

68
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2.

00
3.

03
%

61
2

P
re

m
ie

r A
ct

iv
e 

- F
am

ily
**

82
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
84

.5
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2.
50

3.
05

%

61
3

P
re

m
ie

r A
ct

iv
e 

- S
ta

ff
**

22
.5

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
23

.5
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

4.
44

%

61
4

P
re

m
ie

r A
ct

iv
e 

- G
ra

du
at

e
**

22
.5

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
23

.5
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

4.
44

%

61
5

P
re

m
ie

r A
ct

iv
e 

- E
ld

er
s

**
22

.5
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

23
.5

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
4.

44
%

61
6

P
re

m
ie

r A
ct

iv
e 

- S
tu

de
nt

**
22

.5
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

23
.5

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
4.

44
%

61
7

P
re

m
ie

r A
ct

iv
e 

- K
id

s
**

20
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
20

.5
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
50

2.
50

%

Fi
tn

es
s 

G
ym

61
8

Ju
ni

or
 G

ym
**

3.
20

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
3.

30
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
10

3.
12

%

61
9

Ju
ni

or
 G

ym
 In

du
ct

io
n

**
3.

50
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

3.
60

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
0.

10
2.

86
%

Page 113



FE
ES

 A
N

D
 C

H
A

R
G

ES
 2

00
9/

10
A

PP
EN

D
IX

 A

*
N

ot
 V

at
ab

le

**
in

cl
ud

es
 V

A
T

**
*

ex
cl

ud
es

 V
A

T

 C
ur

re
nt

 2
00

8/
09

 
C

ha
rg

e 
 P

ro
po

se
d 

20
09

/1
0 

C
ha

rg
e 

£
£

£
%

Pr
op

os
ed

 In
cr

ea
se

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

of
 S

er
vi

ce

62
0

P
er

so
na

l P
ro

gr
am

m
e

**
20

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

20
.5

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

50
2.

50
%

62
1

Fi
tn

es
s 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t

**
20

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

20
.5

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

50
2.

50
%

62
2

Fi
t f

or
 L

ife
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t
**

6.
70

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
6.

90
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
20

2.
99

%

62
3

P
er

so
na

l T
ra

in
in

g
**

25
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
26

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

4.
00

%

62
4

H
ea

lth
 C

he
ck

s
**

25
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
26

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

4.
00

%

62
5

H
ea

lth
 C

he
ck

 - 
Le

is
ur

e 
P

as
s

**
12

.5
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

13
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

50
4.

00
%

H
ol

id
ay

 A
ct

iv
iti

es

62
6

H
al

f D
ay

 
**

5.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
5.

15
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
15

3.
00

%

62
7

Fu
ll 

D
ay

 
**

8.
50

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
8.

75
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
25

2.
94

%

62
8

W
ee

k 
**

40
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
41

.2
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
20

3.
00

%

62
9

H
al

f D
ay

 - 
W

LS
C

**
5.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

5.
15

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
0.

15
3.

00
%

63
0

Fu
ll 

D
ay

 - 
W

LS
C

**
8.

50
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

8.
75

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
0.

25
2.

94
%

63
1

W
ee

k 
- W

LS
C

**
40

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

41
.2

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

20
3.

00
%

C
ou

rs
es

63
2

N
P

LQ
**

21
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
22

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
10

.0
0

4.
76

%

63
3

N
P

LQ
 R

en
ew

al
**

70
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
75

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

5.
00

7.
14

%

63
4

Fi
rs

t A
id

 a
t W

or
k

**
21

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

22
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

10
.0

0
4.

76
%

63
5

Fi
rs

t A
id

 a
t W

or
k 

- R
en

ew
al

**
70

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

75
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
5.

00
7.

14
%

Im
ag

es

63
6

E
ss

en
tia

ls
 F

ac
ia

l
**

26
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
26

.9
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
95

3.
65

%

63
7

Le
s 

A
ro

m
at

ic
s

**
32

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

32
.9

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

95
2.

97
%

63
8

H
yd

ra
de

rm
ie

**
42

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

43
.5

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

50
3.

57
%

63
9

H
yd

ra
de

rm
ie

 P
lu

s
**

62
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
63

.9
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
95

3.
15

%

64
0

Li
fto

so
m

e 
si

ng
le

**
39

.5
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

40
.5

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
2.

53
%

64
1

Li
fro

so
m

e 
Tr

ea
tm

en
t (

C
ou

rs
e 

of
 2

)
**

76
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
79

.5
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

3.
50

4.
61

%

64
2

B
ea

ut
e 

N
eu

ve
**

35
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
36

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

2.
86

%

64
3

B
ea

ut
e 

N
eu

ve
 - 

C
ou

rs
e 

of
 3

**
95

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

99
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
4.

00
4.

21
%

64
4

H
yd

ra
de

rm
ie

 L
ift

**
48

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

49
.5

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

50
3.

13
%

64
5

H
yd

ra
de

rm
ie

 L
ift

 F
irs

t T
re

at
m

en
t

**
27

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

27
.9

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

95
3.

52
%

64
6

H
yd

ra
de

rm
ie

 L
ift

 D
el

ux
e

**
58

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

59
.5

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

50
2.

59
%

64
7

E
xt

ra
 L

ift
**

65
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
67

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2.
00

3.
08

%

64
8

H
yd

ra
de

rm
ie

 L
ift

 &
 F

ac
ia

l
**

90
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
67

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-2
3.

00
-2

5.
56

%

64
9

E
ye

la
sh

 T
in

t
**

15
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
15

.5
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
50

3.
33

%

65
0

E
ye

br
ow

 T
in

t
**

8.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
8.

50
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
50

6.
25

%

65
1

E
ye

la
sh

/B
ro

w
 T

in
t

**
20

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

22
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2.

00
10

.0
0%

65
2

E
ye

br
ow

 S
ha

pe
**

8.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
8.

25
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
25

3.
13

%

65
3

B
as

ic
 M

an
ic

ur
e

**
18

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

18
.5

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

50
2.

78
%

65
4

B
as

ic
 M

an
ic

ur
e 

&
 P

ol
is

h
**

22
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
22

.9
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
95

4.
32

%

Page 114



FE
ES

 A
N

D
 C

H
A

R
G

ES
 2

00
9/

10
A

PP
EN

D
IX

 A

*
N

ot
 V

at
ab

le

**
in

cl
ud

es
 V

A
T

**
*

ex
cl

ud
es

 V
A

T

 C
ur

re
nt

 2
00

8/
09

 
C

ha
rg

e 
 P

ro
po

se
d 

20
09

/1
0 

C
ha

rg
e 

£
£

£
%

Pr
op

os
ed

 In
cr

ea
se

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

of
 S

er
vi

ce

65
5

Lu
xu

ry
 M

an
ic

ur
e

**
26

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

26
.9

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

95
3.

65
%

65
6

M
en

s 
H

an
d 

G
ro

om
in

g 
Tr

ea
tm

en
t

**
15

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

16
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
6.

67
%

65
7

M
en

s 
Lu

xu
ry

 H
an

d 
Tr

ea
tm

en
t

**
20

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

21
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
5.

00
%

65
8

B
as

ic
 P

ed
ic

ur
e

**
26

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

26
.5

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

50
1.

92
%

65
9

Lu
xu

ry
 P

ed
ic

ur
e

**
30

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

30
.5

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

50
1.

67
%

66
0

M
en

s 
Lu

xu
ry

 F
oo

t T
re

at
m

en
t

**
26

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

27
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
3.

85
%

66
1

Ti
re

d 
Fe

et
 T

re
at

m
en

t
**

20
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
20

.9
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
95

4.
75

%

66
2

C
ra

ck
ed

 H
ee

ls
/F

oo
t T

re
at

m
en

t
**

27
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
27

.9
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
95

3.
52

%

66
3

C
ra

ck
ed

 H
ee

ls
 - 

C
ou

rs
e 

of
 3

**
70

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

75
.5

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
5.

50
7.

86
%

S
w

ed
is

h

66
4

Fu
ll 

B
od

y
**

32
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
32

.9
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
95

2.
97

%

66
5

H
al

f B
od

y
**

24
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
24

.9
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
95

3.
96

%

66
6

Fu
ll 

B
od

y 
(+

S
ca

lp
, F

ac
e 

&
 N

ec
k)

**
42

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

43
.5

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

50
3.

57
%

66
7

Tr
an

qu
ili

ty
 M

as
sa

ge
**

44
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
44

.9
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
95

2.
16

%

66
8

V
ita

lit
y 

M
as

sa
ge

**
40

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

41
.5

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

50
3.

75
%

66
9

Im
ag

es
 S

po
rts

 M
as

sa
ge

**
28

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

29
.5

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

50
5.

36
%

67
0

B
od

y 
B

ei
n 

A
tre

 (b
y 

G
ui

m
o)

**
52

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

52
.9

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

95
1.

83
%

67
1

A
ro

m
at

ic
 B

od
y 

Tr
ea

tm
en

t
**

52
.5

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
53

.5
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

1.
90

%

67
2

Fu
ll 

B
od

y 
E

xf
ol

ia
tio

n
**

30
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
31

.5
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
50

5.
00

%

67
3

U
ni

ve
rs

al
 C

on
to

ur
 W

ra
p

**
65

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

65
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

00
0.

00
%

67
4

U
ni

ve
rs

al
 C

on
to

ur
 W

ra
p 

(C
ou

rs
e 

of
 3

)
**

16
5.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
16

5.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
0.

00
%

67
5

E
ur

ow
av

e 
In

ch
 L

os
e 

Tr
ea

tm
en

t
**

18
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
18

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
00

0.
00

%

67
6

E
ur

ow
av

e 
Tr

ia
l S

es
si

on
**

9.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
9.

50
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
50

5.
56

%

67
7

E
ur

ow
av

e 
In

ch
 L

os
e 

(C
ou

rs
e 

of
 1

0)
**

15
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
15

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
0.

00
%

67
8

A
ne

si
 C

el
lu

lit
e/

S
ki

n 
Fi

rm
in

g
**

28
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
28

.5
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
50

1.
79

%

67
9

A
ne

si
 C

el
lu

lit
e/

S
ki

n 
Fi

rm
in

g 
(C

ou
rs

e 
of

 6
)

**
14

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

15
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

10
.0

0
7.

14
%

68
0

A
ne

si
 C

el
lu

lit
e/

S
ki

n 
Fi

rm
in

g 
(C

ou
rs

e 
of

 1
0)

**
23

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

24
5.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

15
.0

0
6.

52
%

W
ax

in
g

68
1

Fu
ll 

Le
g

**
30

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

30
.9

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

95
3.

18
%

68
2

Fu
ll 

Le
g,

 B
ik

in
i, 

U
nd

er
 A

rm
**

38
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
38

.9
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
95

2.
50

%

68
3

H
al

f L
eg

**
15

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

15
.5

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

50
3.

33
%

68
4

3/
4 

Le
g

**
22

.5
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

23
.5

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
4.

44
%

68
5

B
ik

in
i L

in
e

**
9.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

9.
50

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
0.

50
5.

56
%

68
6

H
al

f L
eg

 a
nd

 B
ik

in
i

**
22

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

24
.5

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2.

50
11

.3
6%

68
7

E
xt

en
de

d 
B

ik
in

i L
in

e
**

12
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
13

.5
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
50

12
.5

0%

68
8

U
nd

er
 A

rm
**

9.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
9.

50
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
50

5.
56

%

68
9

U
pp

er
 L

ip
**

8.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
8.

50
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
50

6.
25

%

69
0

C
hi

n
**

8.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
8.

50
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
50

6.
25

%

Page 115



FE
ES

 A
N

D
 C

H
A

R
G

ES
 2

00
9/

10
A

PP
EN

D
IX

 A

*
N

ot
 V

at
ab

le

**
in

cl
ud

es
 V

A
T

**
*

ex
cl

ud
es

 V
A

T

 C
ur

re
nt

 2
00

8/
09

 
C

ha
rg

e 
 P

ro
po

se
d 

20
09

/1
0 

C
ha

rg
e 

£
£

£
%

Pr
op

os
ed

 In
cr

ea
se

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

of
 S

er
vi

ce

69
1

U
pp

er
 L

ip
 &

 C
hi

n
**

13
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
13

.5
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
50

3.
85

%

69
2

E
ye

br
ow

 S
ha

pe
**

8.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
8.

50
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
50

6.
25

%

69
3

Fo
re

ar
m

 o
r h

al
f a

rm
**

15
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
16

.5
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
50

10
.0

0%

69
4

Fu
ll 

A
rm

**
20

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

22
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2.

00
10

.0
0%

69
5

Fu
ll 

B
ac

k
**

30
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
31

.5
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
50

5.
00

%

69
6

U
pp

er
 B

ac
k

**
20

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

22
.5

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2.

50
12

.5
0%

69
7

B
ra

zi
lia

n
**

22
.5

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
24

.5
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2.
00

8.
89

%

69
8

E
le

ct
ro

ly
si

s 
- 1

5 
m

in
s

**
14

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

14
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

00
0.

00
%

69
9

E
le

ct
ro

ly
si

s 
- 3

0 
m

in
s

**
25

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

25
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

00
0.

00
%

S
un

 B
ed

70
0

S
un

 B
ed

 - 
5 

m
in

s
**

3.
20

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
3.

25
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
05

1.
56

%

70
1

S
un

 B
ed

 - 
10

 m
in

s
**

6.
40

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
6.

50
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
10

1.
56

%

70
2

S
un

 B
ed

 - 
C

ou
rs

e 
- 6

0 
m

in
s

**
32

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

32
.5

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

50
1.

56
%

70
3

S
un

 B
ed

 - 
C

ou
rs

e 
- 1

00
 m

in
s

**
52

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

52
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

00
0.

00
%

70
4

P
ow

er
 T

ow
er

 - 
5 

m
in

s
**

4.
20

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
4.

25
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
05

1.
19

%

70
5

P
ow

er
 T

ow
er

 - 
10

 m
in

s
**

8.
40

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
8.

50
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
10

1.
19

%

70
6

P
ow

er
 T

ow
er

 - 
C

ou
rs

e 
- 6

0 
m

in
s

**
42

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

42
.5

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

50
1.

19
%

70
7

P
ow

er
 T

ow
er

 - 
C

ou
rs

e 
- 1

00
 m

in
s

**
70

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

70
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

00
0.

00
%

70
8

S
t T

ro
pe

x 
In

st
an

t T
an

 - 
Fu

ll 
B

od
y

**
40

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

42
.5

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2.

50
6.

25
%

70
9

S
t T

ro
pe

x 
In

st
an

t T
an

 - 
H

al
f B

od
y 

(u
pp

er
 o

r l
ow

er
)

**
22

.5
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

25
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2.

50
11

.1
1%

71
0

S
t T

ro
pe

x 
In

st
an

t T
an

 - 
Fa

ce
 o

nl
y

**
16

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

16
.5

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

50
3.

13
%

71
1

H
ea

lth
 S

ui
te

 - 
A

du
lt 

P
ea

k
**

7.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
7.

50
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
50

7.
14

%

71
2

H
ea

lth
 S

ui
te

 - 
A

du
lt 

O
ff 

P
ea

k
**

6.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
6.

50
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
50

8.
33

%

71
3

M
en

s 
H

ot
 T

ow
el

 F
ac

ia
l

**
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

20
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
n/

a
n/

a

71
4

M
en

s 
D

el
ux

 H
ot

 T
ow

el
 F

ac
ia

l
**

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
35

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

n/
a

n/
a

71
5

P
ar

ks
 - 

pi
tc

h 
an

d 
pu

tt 
- a

nn
ua

l s
ea

so
n 

tic
ke

t
**

12
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
12

4.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
4.

00
3.

33
%

71
6

P
ar

ks
 - 

pi
tc

h 
an

d 
pu

tt 
- j

un
io

r/s
en

io
r c

iti
ze

n 
- a

nn
ua

l s
ea

so
n 

tic
ke

t
**

10
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
10

3.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
3.

00
3.

00
%

71
7

P
ar

ks
 - 

pi
tc

h 
an

d 
pu

tt 
- A

du
lt

**
4.

50
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

4.
65

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
0.

15
3.

33
%

71
8

P
ar

ks
 - 

pi
tc

h 
an

d 
pu

tt 
- s

tu
de

nt
**

4.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
4.

15
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
15

3.
75

%

71
9

P
ar

ks
 - 

pi
tc

h 
an

d 
pu

tt 
- s

en
io

r c
iti

ze
ns

**
3.

50
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

3.
60

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
0.

10
2.

86
%

72
0

P
ar

ks
 - 

pi
tc

h 
an

d 
pu

tt 
- j

un
io

r
**

3.
50

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
3.

60
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
10

2.
86

%

72
1

P
ar

ks
 - 

pi
tc

h 
an

d 
pu

tt 
- A

du
lt 

S
m

ar
tc

ar
d 

ho
ld

er
**

3.
50

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
3.

60
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
10

2.
86

%

72
2

P
ar

ks
 - 

pi
tc

h 
an

d 
pu

tt 
- J

un
io

r S
m

ar
tc

ar
d 

ho
ld

er
**

2.
50

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2.

60
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
10

4.
00

%

72
3

P
ar

ks
 - 

C
en

tra
l &

 B
ar

ki
ng

 P
ar

k 
te

nn
is

 c
ou

rt 
- A

du
lts

 p
er

 c
ou

rt 
- 4

 P
la

ye
rs

 p
er

 c
ou

rt 
M

ax
im

um
**

5.
30

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
5.

50
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
20

3.
77

%

72
4

P
ar

ks
 - 

C
en

tra
l &

 B
ar

ki
ng

 P
ar

k 
te

nn
is

 c
ou

rt 
- J

un
io

rs
 p

er
 c

ou
rt 

- 4
 P

la
ye

rs
 p

er
 c

ou
rt 

M
ax

im
um

**
3.

20
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

3.
30

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
0.

10
3.

12
%

72
5

P
ar

ks
 - 

C
ric

ke
t a

du
lts

 - 
M

ay
es

br
oo

k 
P

ar
k 

&
 S

t C
ha

d'
s 

P
ar

k
**

63
.5

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
66

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2.
50

3.
94

%

Pa
rk

 S
po

rt
s

Page 116



FE
ES

 A
N

D
 C

H
A

R
G

ES
 2

00
9/

10
A

PP
EN

D
IX

 A

*
N

ot
 V

at
ab

le

**
in

cl
ud

es
 V

A
T

**
*

ex
cl

ud
es

 V
A

T

 C
ur

re
nt

 2
00

8/
09

 
C

ha
rg

e 
 P

ro
po

se
d 

20
09

/1
0 

C
ha

rg
e 

£
£

£
%

Pr
op

os
ed

 In
cr

ea
se

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

of
 S

er
vi

ce

72
6

P
ar

ks
 - 

C
ric

ke
t j

un
io

rs
 - 

M
ay

es
br

oo
k 

P
ar

k 
&

 S
t C

ha
d'

s 
P

ar
k

**
31

.7
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

33
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

25
3.

94
%

72
7

B
ar

ki
ng

 P
ar

k 
- C

ric
ke

t N
et

**
6.

50
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

6.
70

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
0.

20
3.

08
%

72
8

P
ar

ks
 - 

C
ric

ke
t -

 A
du

lts
 4

0 
ga

m
es

 p
lu

s 
pa

vi
lio

n 
- M

ay
es

br
oo

k 
P

ar
k 

&
 S

t C
ha

d'
s 

P
ar

k
*

2,
54

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
64

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
  

10
0.

00
3.

94
%

72
9

C
ric

ke
t C

lu
bs

 w
ith

 D
el

eg
at

ed
 M

an
ag

em
en

t /
 L

ea
se

 A
gr

ee
m

en
t o

n 
P

av
ili

on
 F

ac
ili

tie
s 

- A
du

lts
**

44
.4

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
46

.2
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
75

3.
94

%

73
0

C
ric

ke
t C

lu
bs

 w
ith

 D
el

eg
at

ed
 M

an
ag

em
en

t /
 L

ea
se

 A
gr

ee
m

en
t o

n 
P

av
ili

on
 F

ac
ili

tie
s 

- A
du

lts
*

1,
77

8.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
84

8.
00

   
   

   
   

   
  

70
.0

0
3.

94
%

73
1

C
ric

ke
t C

lu
bs

 w
ith

 D
el

eg
at

ed
 M

an
ag

em
en

t /
 L

ea
se

 A
gr

ee
m

en
t o

n 
P

av
ili

on
 F

ac
ili

tie
s 

- J
un

io
rs

**
22

.2
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

23
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

80
3.

60
%

73
2

P
ar

ks
 - 

Fo
ot

ba
ll 

pi
tc

h 
- a

du
lts

**
54

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

56
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2.

00
3.

70
%

73
3

P
ar

ks
 - 

Fo
ot

ba
ll 

pi
tc

h 
- J

un
io

rs
**

27
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
28

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

3.
70

%

73
4

P
ar

ks
 - 

Fo
ot

ba
ll 

pi
tc

h 
- M

in
i S

oc
ce

r
**

13
.5

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
14

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
50

3.
70

%

73
5

P
ar

ks
 - 

Fo
ot

ba
ll 

pi
tc

h 
ad

ul
ts

 s
ea

so
n 

pr
ep

ai
d 

by
 0

1/
10

/0
9 

 - 
30

 G
am

es
 (1

5%
 d

is
co

un
t f

or
 fu

ll 
pa

ym
en

t b
ef

or
e 

01
/1

0/
09

)
*

1,
37

7.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
42

8.
00

   
   

   
   

   
  

51
.0

0
3.

70
%

73
6

P
ar

ks
 - 

Fo
ot

ba
ll 

pi
tc

h 
ad

ul
ts

 s
ea

so
n 

(3
0 

ga
m

es
 ) 

pa
id

 b
y 

6 
in

st
al

lm
en

ts
 - 

fir
st

 o
n 

si
gn

at
ur

e 
of

 c
on

tra
ct

 a
nd

 5
 e

qu
al

 p
ay

m
en

ts
 S

ep
t, 

O
ct

, N
ov

, D
ec

 &
 J

an
. -

 3
0 

ga
m

es
*

1,
62

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
68

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
  

60
.0

0
3.

70
%

73
7

P
ar

ks
 - 

Fo
ot

ba
ll 

pi
tc

h 
ad

ul
ts

 s
ea

so
n 

pr
ep

ai
d 

 b
y 

1/
10

/0
9 

- A
lte

rn
at

e 
w

ee
ks

 - 
15

 G
am

es
(1

5%
 d

is
co

un
t f

or
 fu

ll 
pa

ym
en

t b
ef

or
e 

01
/1

0/
09

)
*

68
8.

50
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
71

4.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
25

.5
0

3.
70

%

73
8

P
ar

ks
 - 

Fo
ot

ba
ll 

pi
tc

h 
ad

ul
ts

 s
ea

so
n(

15
 g

am
es

) p
ai

d 
by

 6
 in

st
al

lm
en

ts
 - 

fir
st

 o
n 

si
gn

at
ur

e 
of

 c
on

tra
ct

 a
nd

 5
 e

qu
al

 p
ay

m
en

ts
 S

ep
t, 

O
ct

, N
ov

, D
ec

 &
 J

an
. -

 1
5 

ga
m

es
*

81
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
84

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
30

.0
0

3.
70

%

73
9

P
ar

ks
 - 

Fo
ot

ba
ll 

pi
tc

h 
ju

ni
or

s 
se

as
on

 p
re

pa
id

 w
ee

kl
y 

by
 0

1/
10

/0
9 

 - 
30

 G
am

es
(1

5%
 d

is
co

un
t f

or
 fu

ll 
pa

ym
en

t b
ef

or
e 

01
/1

0/
09

)
*

68
8.

50
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
71

4.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
25

.5
0

3.
70

%

74
0

P
ar

ks
 - 

Fo
ot

ba
ll 

pi
tc

h 
ju

ni
or

s 
se

as
on

 p
ai

d 
by

 6
 in

st
al

lm
en

ts
 - 

fir
st

 o
n 

si
gn

at
ur

e 
of

 c
on

tra
ct

 a
nd

 5
 e

qu
al

 p
ay

m
en

ts
 S

ep
t, 

O
ct

, N
ov

, D
ec

 &
 J

an
. -

 3
0 

ga
m

es
*

81
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
84

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
30

.0
0

3.
70

%

74
1

P
ar

ks
 - 

Fo
ot

ba
ll 

pi
tc

h 
ju

ni
or

s 
se

as
on

 p
re

pa
id

  b
y 

1/
10

/0
9 

- A
lte

rn
at

e 
w

ee
ks

 - 
15

 G
am

es
(1

5%
 d

is
co

un
t f

or
 fu

ll 
pa

ym
en

t b
ef

or
e 

01
/1

0/
09

)
*

34
4.

25
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
35

7.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
12

.7
5

3.
70

%

74
2

P
ar

ks
 - 

Fo
ot

ba
ll 

pi
tc

h 
ju

ni
or

s 
se

as
on

 (1
5 

ga
m

es
) p

ai
d 

by
 6

 in
st

al
lm

en
ts

 - 
fir

st
 o

n 
si

gn
at

ur
e 

of
 c

on
tra

ct
 a

nd
 5

 e
qu

al
 p

ay
m

en
ts

 S
ep

t, 
O

ct
, N

ov
, D

ec
 &

 J
an

. -
 1

5 
ga

m
es

*
40

5.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

42
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

15
.0

0
3.

70
%

74
3

P
ar

ks
 - 

fo
ot

ba
ll 

tra
in

in
g 

pe
rm

it 
- u

p 
to

 5
0 

pa
rti

ci
pa

nt
s

*
31

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

32
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

00
3.

23
%

74
4

P
ar

ks
 - 

fo
ot

ba
ll 

tra
in

in
g 

pe
rm

it 
- u

p 
to

 2
00

 p
ar

tic
ip

an
ts

*
62

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

64
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2.

00
3.

23
%

74
5

P
ar

ks
 - 

fo
ot

ba
ll 

cl
ub

s 
w

ith
 d

el
eg

at
ed

 m
an

ag
em

en
t o

f f
ac

ili
tie

s 
- a

du
lts

 p
er

 p
itc

h 
pe

r g
am

e
**

37
.8

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
39

.2
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
40

3.
70

%

74
6

P
ar

ks
 - 

fo
ot

ba
ll 

cl
ub

s 
w

ith
 d

el
eg

at
ed

 m
an

ag
em

en
t o

f f
ac

ili
tie

s 
- j

un
io

rs
 p

er
 p

itc
h 

pe
r g

am
e

**
18

.9
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

19
.6

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

70
3.

70
%

74
7

P
ar

ks
 - 

fo
ot

ba
ll 

cl
ub

s 
w

ith
 d

el
eg

at
ed

 m
an

ag
em

en
t o

f f
ac

ili
tie

s 
- m

in
i s

oc
ce

r p
er

 g
am

e
**

9.
45

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
9.

80
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
35

3.
70

%

74
8

P
ar

ks
 - 

fo
ot

ba
ll 

cl
ub

s 
w

ith
 d

el
eg

at
ed

 m
an

ag
em

en
t o

f f
ac

ili
tie

s 
- a

du
lts

 3
0 

w
ee

ks
*

1,
13

4.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
17

6.
00

   
   

   
   

   
  

42
.0

0
3.

70
%

74
9

P
ar

ks
 - 

fo
ot

ba
ll 

cl
ub

s 
w

ith
 d

el
eg

at
ed

 m
an

ag
em

en
t o

f f
ac

ili
tie

s 
- j

un
io

rs
 3

0 
w

ee
ks

*
56

7.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

58
8.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

21
.0

0
3.

70
%

75
0

P
ar

ks
 - 

fo
ot

ba
ll 

cl
ub

s 
w

ith
 d

el
eg

at
ed

 m
an

ag
em

en
t o

f f
ac

ili
tie

s 
- a

du
lts

 1
5 

w
ee

ks
*

56
7.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
58

8.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
21

.0
0

3.
70

%

75
1

P
ar

ks
 - 

fo
ot

ba
ll 

cl
ub

s 
w

ith
 d

el
eg

at
ed

 m
an

ag
em

en
t o

f f
ac

ili
tie

s 
- j

un
io

rs
 1

5 
w

ee
ks

*
28

3.
50

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

29
4.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

10
.5

0
3.

70
%

75
2

P
ar

ks
 - 

R
ug

by
 p

er
 g

am
e

**
54

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

56
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2.

00
3.

70
%

75
3

P
ar

ks
 - 

R
ug

by
 3

0 
w

ee
k 

se
as

on
- i

nc
lu

de
d 

pr
ev

io
us

ly
 w

ith
 fo

ot
ba

ll 
pi

tc
he

s
*

1,
62

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
68

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
  

60
.0

0
3.

70
%

75
4

P
ar

ks
 - 

R
ug

by
 p

itc
h 

ad
ul

ts
 s

ea
so

n 
pr

ep
ai

d 
by

 0
1/

10
/0

9 
 - 

30
 G

am
es

 (1
5%

 d
is

co
un

t f
or

 fu
ll 

pa
ym

en
t b

ef
or

e 
01

/1
0/

09
)

*
1,

37
7.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

42
8.

00
   

   
   

   
   

  
51

.0
0

3.
70

%

75
5

P
ar

ks
 - 

H
ur

lin
g 

pe
r s

ea
so

n
*

31
5.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
32

5.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
10

.0
0

3.
17

%

75
6

P
ar

ks
 - 

B
ow

lin
g 

G
re

en
s 

- c
lu

b 
re

nt
al

 p
ric

e 
pe

r g
re

en
*

3,
90

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

4,
01

7.
00

   
   

   
   

   
  

11
7.

00
3.

00
%

75
7

P
ar

ks
 - 

B
ow

lin
g 

G
re

en
s 

- P
av

ili
on

 (2
0%

 D
is

co
un

t f
or

 P
ar

sl
oe

s 
P

ar
k)

*
1,

00
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

03
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

  
30

.0
0

3.
00

%

Page 117



FE
ES

 A
N

D
 C

H
A

R
G

ES
 2

00
9/

10
A

PP
EN

D
IX

 A

*
N

ot
 V

at
ab

le

**
in

cl
ud

es
 V

A
T

**
*

ex
cl

ud
es

 V
A

T

 C
ur

re
nt

 2
00

8/
09

 
C

ha
rg

e 
 P

ro
po

se
d 

20
09

/1
0 

C
ha

rg
e 

£
£

£
%

Pr
op

os
ed

 In
cr

ea
se

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

of
 S

er
vi

ce

75
8

P
ar

ks
 - 

B
ow

lin
g 

G
re

en
s 

- C
lu

b 
gu

es
t c

ha
rg

e 
pe

r h
ou

r (
ke

pt
 b

y 
bo

w
lin

g 
cl

ub
) -

 A
du

lt
**

3.
10

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
3.

20
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
10

3.
23

%

75
9

P
ar

ks
 - 

B
ow

lin
g 

G
re

en
s 

- C
lu

b 
gu

es
t c

ha
rg

e 
pe

r h
ou

r (
ke

pt
 b

y 
bo

w
lin

g 
cl

ub
) -

 J
un

io
r /

 S
en

io
r C

iti
ze

n
**

1.
50

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1.

55
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
05

3.
33

%

76
0

P
ar

ks
 - 

P
av

ili
on

 H
ire

, T
he

 L
ey

s 
- o

cc
as

io
na

l l
et

tin
g 

4h
rs

 - 
M

on
 to

 S
at

*
15

5.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

16
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

5.
00

3.
23

%

76
1

P
ar

ks
 - 

P
av

ili
on

 H
ire

, T
he

 L
ey

s 
- o

cc
as

io
na

l l
et

tin
g 

4h
rs

 - 
S

un
*

20
5.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
21

5.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
10

.0
0

4.
88

%

76
2

P
ar

ks
 - 

P
av

ili
on

 H
ire

, T
he

 L
ey

s 
- o

cc
as

io
na

l l
et

tin
g 

- A
dd

iti
on

al
 h

ou
rly

 c
ha

rg
e 

fo
r a

bo
ve

 4
hr

s 
us

e
*

31
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
32

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

3.
23

%

76
3

P
ar

ks
 - 

A
th

le
tic

s 
- L

ic
en

ce
 A

gr
ee

m
en

t w
ith

 M
ay

es
br

oo
k 

an
d 

H
av

er
in

g 
A

A
  (

H
M

A
) f

or
 u

se
 3

 ti
m

es
 a

 w
ee

k
*

5,
75

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

5,
95

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
  

20
0.

00
3.

48
%

76
4

P
ar

ks
 - 

A
th

le
tic

s 
- h

ou
rly

 c
ha

rg
e 

fo
r H

M
A

 u
se

 o
f a

re
na

*
17

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

17
.5

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

50
2.

94
%

76
5

P
ar

ks
 - 

A
th

le
tic

s 
- h

ou
rly

 c
ha

rg
e 

fo
r u

se
 o

f a
re

na
 b

y 
sc

ho
ol

s 
an

d 
ot

he
r g

ro
up

s
*

34
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
35

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

2.
94

%

76
6

A
er

o 
C

lu
b 

- L
ic

en
ce

 A
gr

ee
m

en
t w

ith
 D

ag
en

ha
m

 M
od

el
 A

er
o 

C
lu

b
*

19
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
19

6.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
6.

00
3.

16
%

76
7

B
ar

ki
ng

 P
ar

k 
Lo

dg
e 

C
af

é 
- N

ew
 C

ha
rg

e 
20

09
/1

0
*

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
8,

50
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

  
n/

a
n/

a

76
8

B
ar

ki
ng

 P
ar

k 
M

od
el

 R
ai

lw
ay

 - 
N

ew
 C

ha
rg

e 
20

09
/1

0
*

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
1.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

n/
a

n/
a

76
9

C
os

t p
er

 a
cr

e 
of

 u
sa

bl
e 

al
lo

tm
en

t l
an

d 
le

as
ed

 to
 A

llo
tm

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

ns
*

10
1.

92
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
10

5.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
3.

08
3.

02
%

77
0

E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l E
du

ca
tio

n 
- 3

0 
S

tu
de

nt
s 

M
ax

im
um

 (S
ch

oo
l V

is
its

 to
 E

as
tb

ro
ok

en
d 

C
ou

nt
ry

 P
ar

k,
 T

he
 C

ha
se

 &
 u

se
 o

f M
ill

en
ni

um
 C

en
tre

)
*

37
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
38

.1
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
15

3.
11

%

77
1

M
ill

en
ni

um
 C

en
tre

 - 
In

te
rn

al
 O

rg
an

is
at

io
ns

 - 
H

ire
 o

f C
la

ss
ro

om
*

8.
50

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
8.

75
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

0.
25

2.
94

%

77
2

M
ill

en
ni

um
 C

en
tre

 - 
E

xt
er

na
l O

rg
an

is
at

io
ns

 - 
H

ire
 o

f C
la

ss
ro

om
*

12
.7

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
13

.2
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
50

3.
92

%

77
3

M
ill

en
ni

um
 C

en
tre

 - 
O

ut
 o

f H
ou

rs
 H

ire
 - 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
st

af
f a

va
ila

bi
lit

y
*

31
.5

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
32

.5
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

3.
17

%

77
4

A
ng

lin
g 

Li
ce

ns
e 

- V
al

en
ce

 M
oa

t (
B

ec
M

ai
n)

*
26

2.
65

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

26
2.

65
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

0.
00

%

77
5

O
ut

re
ac

h 
S

es
si

on
s 

in
 P

ar
ks

 a
nd

 O
pe

n 
S

pa
ce

s
*

31
.5

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
32

.5
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1.
00

3.
17

%

77
6

O
ut

 o
f B

or
ou

gh
 S

ch
oo

ls
 - 

fo
r s

ta
nd

ar
d 

2 
ho

ur
 v

is
it

*
63

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

65
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2.

00
3.

17
%

77
7

B
ar

da
g 

La
ke

 - 
B

ar
da

g 
A

ng
lin

g 
S

oc
ie

ty
*

3,
89

5.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

4,
01

1.
85

   
   

   
   

   
  

11
6.

85
3.

00
%

77
8

La
ke

 - 
To

m
 T

hu
m

b 
- L

ak
e 

cu
rr

en
tly

 b
ei

ng
 re

de
ve

lo
pe

d.
*

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
55

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
n/

a
n/

a

77
9

La
ke

 - 
E

as
tb

ro
ok

 P
on

d 
&

 C
ha

se
 W

at
er

s
*

2,
05

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
11

1.
50

   
   

   
   

   
  

61
.5

0
3.

00
%

78
0

La
ke

 - 
H

oo
ks

 H
al

l P
on

d
*

1,
17

8.
75

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
21

4.
11

   
   

   
   

   
  

35
.3

6
3.

00
%

78
1

La
ke

 - 
Th

e 
M

em
be

rs
 P

oo
l

*
92

2.
50

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

95
0.

18
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

27
.6

8
3.

00
%

Po
st

 &
 D

X
78

2
Fu

ll 
S

ea
rc

h
*

13
1.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
15

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
19

.0
0

14
.5

0%

78
3

LL
C

1
*

60
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
67

.5
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

7.
50

12
.5

0%

78
4

C
on

 2
9 

<R
>

*
88

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

82
.5

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-5

.5
0

-6
.2

5%

78
5

C
on

 2
9 

(O
) Q

ue
st

io
ns

*
16

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

16
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

00
0.

00
%

78
6

A
dd

iti
on

al
 P

ar
ce

l o
f L

an
d 

*
25

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

25
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

00
0.

00
%

78
7

C
om

m
on

 L
an

d 
V

ill
ag

e 
G

re
en

*
16

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

16
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

00
0.

00
%

Lo
ca

l L
an

d 
C

ha
rg

es

A
llo

tm
en

ts

R
an

ge
r S

er
vi

ce
s

Page 118



FE
ES

 A
N

D
 C

H
A

R
G

ES
 2

00
9/

10
A

PP
EN

D
IX

 A

*
N

ot
 V

at
ab

le

**
in

cl
ud

es
 V

A
T

**
*

ex
cl

ud
es

 V
A

T

 C
ur

re
nt

 2
00

8/
09

 
C

ha
rg

e 
 P

ro
po

se
d 

20
09

/1
0 

C
ha

rg
e 

£
£

£
%

Pr
op

os
ed

 In
cr

ea
se

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

of
 S

er
vi

ce

 
N

at
io

na
l L

an
d 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

Se
rv

ic
e

78
8

Fu
ll 

S
ea

rc
h

*
14

5.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

11
3.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-3
2.

00
-2

2.
07

%

78
9

LL
C

1
*

73
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
51

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-2
2.

00
-3

0.
14

%

79
0

C
on

 2
9 

<R
>

*
88

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

62
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-2

6.
00

-2
9.

55
%

79
1

C
on

n 
29

 (O
) Q

ue
st

io
ns

*
16

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

14
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-2

.0
0

-1
2.

50
%

79
2

A
dd

iti
on

al
 P

ar
ce

l o
f L

an
d 

*
25

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

23
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-2

.0
0

-8
.0

0%

79
3

C
om

m
on

 L
an

d 
V

ill
ag

e 
G

re
en

*
16

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

14
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-2

.0
0

-1
2.

50
%

M
is

ce
lla

ne
ou

s 
Se

rv
ic

es
79

4
P

er
so

na
l S

ea
rc

h 
(C

ur
re

nt
ly

 R
eg

ul
at

ed
)

*
11

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

11
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

00
0.

00
%

79
5

C
op

y 
D

oc
um

en
ts

 - 
Fi

rs
t P

ag
e

*
11

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1.
50

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-9

.5
0

-8
6.

36
%

79
6

C
op

y 
D

oc
um

en
ts

 - 
S

ub
se

qu
en

t P
ag

es
*

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
0.

10
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

n/
a

n/
a

79
7

C
op

ie
s 

of
 S

ea
rc

he
s

*
22

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

29
.3

8
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
7.

38
33

.5
5%

R
ig

ht
 T

o 
B

uy
 (R

TB
)

79
8

R
ep

ay
m

en
t o

f D
is

co
un

t
*

75
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
80

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

5.
00

6.
67

%

79
9

D
ee

ds
 o

f C
ov

en
an

t/R
ec

tif
ic

at
io

n/
V

ar
ia

tio
n/

E
nf

or
ce

m
en

t
*

40
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
42

5.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
25

.0
0

6.
25

%

80
0

Li
ce

nc
es

*
40

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

42
5.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

25
.0

0
6.

25
%

80
1

Li
ce

nc
es

 fo
r G

ar
de

n 
La

nd
*

11
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
12

5.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
15

.0
0

13
.6

4%

80
2

S
al

e 
of

 G
ar

de
n 

La
nd

*
40

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

42
5.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

25
.0

0
6.

25
%

80
3

D
up

lic
at

e 
D

S
1/

R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t f
or

m
 5

3
*

25
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
30

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

5.
00

20
.0

0%

80
4

D
ee

d 
of

 R
el

ea
se

*
51

5.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

55
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

35
.0

0
6.

80
%

80
5

C
op

y 
Tr

an
sf

er
*

50
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
55

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

5.
00

10
.0

0%

80
6

N
ot

ic
e 

of
 A

ss
ig

nm
en

t
*

75
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
75

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
00

0.
00

%

80
7

N
ot

ic
e 

of
 M

or
tg

ag
e

*
75

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

75
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

00
0.

00
%

80
8

N
ot

ic
e 

of
 S

ub
-le

t
*

75
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
75

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
00

0.
00

%

80
9

P
os

tp
on

em
en

ts
*

65
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
65

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
00

0.
00

%

81
0

R
et

rie
va

l o
f f

ile
 

*
10

.0
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

15
.0

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
5.

00
50

.0
0%

81
1

R
et

ro
sp

ec
tiv

e 
C

on
se

nt
 (c

ha
rg

ed
 b

y 
H

ou
si

ng
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

V
A

T)
**

12
0.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
12

5.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
5.

00
4.

17
%

81
2

Le
as

e 
ho

ld
er

s 
E

nq
ui

rie
s 

(in
cl

ud
in

g 
V

A
T)

**
12

0.
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

12
5.

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

5.
00

4.
17

%

Page 119



Page 120

This page is intentionally left blank



 

THE EXECUTIVE 
 

17 February 2009 
 

JOINT REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES AND 
CORPORATE DIRECTOR OF ADULTS & COMMUNITY SERVICES 

 

Title: Dagenham and Redbridge Football Club For Decision 

 
Summary:  
 
Dagenham and Redbridge F.C. are required to develop their ground for additional covered 
seating and have approached the Council for assistance in part funding the overall cost of 
£1.36m. 
 
The report proposes a way forward to assist the Club in this project. 
 
Wards Affected:  All wards 
 
 
Recommendations 
 
The Executive is asked to: 
 
1. Agree that Dagenham and Redbridge F.C. are awarded a capital grant of £250,000 

and a loan of £200,000 towards the development of a new stand. 
 
Subject to 1 above. 
 
2. Approve the inclusion of the capital sum of £450,000 in the Council’s capital 
 programme for 2009/10. 
 
Reason: 
To support the community benefit to the Borough. 
 
Implications: 
 

Financial: 
The proposal will necessitate the need for a sum of £450,000 to be included in the 
Council’s capital programme for 2009/10 with consequent revenue costs of around 
£35,000 per annum arising from the relevant borrowing costs for this capital sum.  This 
sum is allowed for in the Council’s corporate borrowing requirement. 
 
Legal: 
The Local Government Act 2000 allows a local authority to give financial assistance 
including loans to individuals or groups within its area for the purpose of promoting the 
economic, social and environmental well-being of its area.  The Council’s exercise of this 
power is likely to be in respect of community groups or the voluntary sector.  
 
The Local Government Act 1989 also empowers local authorities to encourage economic 
development within its area with specific reference to provision of  loans and credit for 
such purpose.  

AGENDA ITEM 11

Page 121



 

 
Comments of the Legal Partner: 
The legal implications of the recommendations are incorporated in the report 
 
Risk Management: 
There are no risk management implications to consider. 
 
Social Inclusion and Diversity: 
As this report does not concern a new or revised policy there are no specific adverse 
impacts insofar as this report is concerned. 
 
Crime and Disorder: 
There are no specific implications insofar as this report is concerned. 
 
Options Appraisal: 
A review has been undertaken on the position of a capital grant and/or loan advance. 
 

Contact Officer 
Joe Chesterton 
 
Paul Hogan 
 

Title: 
Divisional Director - 
Corporate Finance 
Head of Leisure and Arts 
 

Contact Details: 
Tel:020 8227 2932 
E-mail: joe.chesterton@lbbd.gov.uk 
Tel: 020 8 3576 
E-mail: paul.hogan@lbbd.gov.uk 
 

 
1.  Introduction and Background 
 
1.1 Dagenham and Redbridge Football Club need to increase the size of their stadium 

to comply with the Football League regulations regarding seating capacity and 
standing capacity.  Within their current Division the club have to have a minimum 
capacity of 5,000 of which 2,000 need to be covered seating. Currently they have 
1,000 covered seats. This has to be in place by May 2010 otherwise they will be 
relegated. The Football League have written 3 times to the club asking them when 
they will comply. 

 
1.2 The Club have made a planning application to the Council to extend the western 

stand and provide additional seating. This is currently going through the Council’s 
development control system. This would give the club a total capacity of 6,000 with 
2,200 seats under cover.  

 
1.3 The new stand will cost £1.36m.In order to fund this extension the club have applied 

to the Football Foundation for a grant of £750,000, the supporters and the club will 
provide £160,000.  The Club have approached the Council to look at options for 
funding the balance of £450,000 from the Council. 

 
2.  Way Forward 
 
2.1 It is proposed that the Council provide a capital grant of £250,000 and a loan of 

£200,000 to Dagenham and Redbridge F.C. to enable the relevant changes to the 
western stand to be undertaken. 

 
2.2 Arising from the above, negotiations will be undertaken with the Club to agree a 

package of support.  This will include: 
 

Page 122



 

• that the Club offers to train local football coaches of teams who do not coach to 
a high standard  

• that the Council takes responsibility for shirt sponsorship if the current 
arrangements is coming to an end  

• the Club provides regular free tickets for children via schools  
• the Club provides a school football trophy  
• local labour is used for building works if possible 
• participate in and support the delivery of the holiday activity programmes 

delivered by the Council and its partners. 
 
3. Financial Implications 
 
3.1 If approved by Members, the sum of £450,000, split £250,000 as a capital grant and 

£200,000 as a loan to the club would need to be included in the Council capital 
programme for 2009/10, as currently there is no specific provision for this scheme. 

 
3.2 The annual borrowing costs for the Council to finance this sum would be around 

£35k per annum and this can be contained within the Council’s budget provision for 
corporate borrowing costs. 

 
3.3 The loan of £200,000 would mean repayments of about £15,000 per annum, which 

would offset the annual costs in 3.2 above. 
 
4. Consultees 
 
4.1 The members and officers consulted on this report are: 
                 
           Councillor C Fairbrass-  Leader 
 Rob Whiteman -Chief Executive 

Corporate Management Team 
  
Background Papers Used in the Preparation of the Report: 
 
 Not applicable. 

Page 123



Page 124

This page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM 14

Page 125

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 140

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 141

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 144

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 145

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 146

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 147

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 148

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 149

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 150

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 151

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 152

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 153

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 154

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes - To confirm as correct the minutes of the meeting held on 20 January 2009
	4 Council Debt Write-Offs
	5 Treasury Management Annual Strategy and Prudential Indicators
	(Joe Chesterton)TM 2009-10 Appendix A
	(Joe Chesterton)TM 2009-10 Appendix B
	(Joe Chesterton)TM 2009-10 Appendix C
	(Joe Chesterton)TM 2009-10 Appendix D

	6 Budget Monitoring 2008/09
	(lee Russell)BudgetMonAppendix A
	(lee Russell)BudgetMonAppendix B
	(lee Russell)BudgetMontAppendix C
	(lee Russell)BudgetMonAppendix D
	(lee Russell)BudgetMonAppendix E

	7 Fees and Charges 2009/10
	(lee Russell)Fees  Charges  2009-10 - Appendix A

	11 Dagenham and Redbridge Football Club
	14 Replacement of Customer Relationship Management (CRM) System
	(Tim Pearce)ExecCRM Procurement (Appendix A)
	(Tim Pearce)ExecCRM Procurement (Appendix B)
	(Tim Pearce)ExecCRM Procurement (Appendix C)
	(Tim Pearce)ExecCRM Procurement (Appendix D)
	(Tim Pearce)ExecCRM Procurement (Appendix E)
	(Tim Pearce)ExecCRM Procurement (Appendix F)


